Isles of Bartram Park

Community Development District

NOVEMBER 14, 2025



Isles of Bartram Park

Community Development District

475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, FL 32092
Phone: 904-940-5850 - Fax: 904-940-5899

November 6, 2025

Board of Supervisors
Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District

Dear Board Members:

The Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District Board of Supervisors is
scheduled for Friday, November 14 2025, at 10:00 a.m. at the Offices of GMS, 475
West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, FL 32092.

Following is the advance agenda for this meeting:

L. Roll Call
II. Audience Comment
1. Approval of Minutes of the August 8, 2025 Meeting

IVv. Consideration of Proposals for Capital Reserve Report
A. Community Advisors

B. Custom Reserves
C. Reserve Advisors

V. Consideration of:
A. Grau and Associates Engagement Letter

B. Policies for Use of Lakes and Other Stormwater Management Facilities

VL Consideration of Proposals:
A. Innovative Fountain Services for Pond Fountain Services

B. Innovative Fountain Services for Installation of Strainer
C. Innovative Fountain for Floating Fountain Maintenance

D. Yellowstone Landscape for Bore Project along Sitara Lane



VIL

VIIL

IX.

XI.

XII.

XIII.

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

E.

Pond Bank Inspection Report

Discussion of Fountain Installation at Pond 7

Ratification of Proposal from First Choice Aquatics for Treatment of Pond 7

Consideration of Resolution 2026-01, Amending the General Fund & Capital
Reserve Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 2025

Other Business

Staff Reports

A.

B.

C.

D.

Attorney
Engineer

Manager
1. Review of Fiscal Year 2025 Goals and Objectives

2. Annual Ethics Training

First Choice Aquatics

Supervisors’ Requests

Audience Comments

Financial Reports

A.

B.

C.

Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2025 and Statement of Revenues &
Expenditures

Assessment Receipt Schedule

Approval of Check Register

Next Scheduled Meeting — February 20, 2026 at 10:00 a.m.

Adjournment



THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS



MINUTES OF MEETING
ISLES OF BARTRAM PARK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Isles of Bartram Park Community
Development District was held on Friday, August 8, 2025, at 12:00 p.m. at the Offices of GMS,
475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida.

Present and constituting a quorum were:

Scott Forshey-Friedman Chairman
Joseph Zemel Vice Chairman
Nancy Brown Supervisor
James Pudner Supervisor
Scott Kelley Supervisor

Also present were:

Marilee Giles District Manager, GMS
Wes Haber by phone District Counsel, Kutak Rock
Sarah Sweeting GMS

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call

Ms. Giles called the meeting to order at 12:00 p.m. Five Board members were in

attendance, constituting a quorum.

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comment

Ms. Giles noted that two members of the public were present but had no questions.

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Minutes of the May 9, 2025, and
June 6, 2025, Meetings
Ms. Giles presented the minutes of May 9, 2025, and June 6, 2025 meetings and asked for

comments, corrections, or changes. The Board had no changes to the minutes.



August 8, 2025 Isles of Bartram Park CDD

On MOTION by Mr. Forshey-Friedman, and seconded by Ms.
Brown, with all in favor, the Minutes of the May 9, 2025, and June
6, 20245 Meetings were approved.

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposals:
A. Lake Maintenance Services with Frist Coast Aquatics
Ms. Giles presented the First Coast Aquatics proposal for FY26 lake maintenance covering

all 11 ponds. She said the initial treatment was $2,205, with the same monthly rate, and that grass
carp stocking was priced at $10 per fish. Staff explained that the number of fish added depends on
pond size and regulatory limits, and that stocking is done only when needed based on pond
conditions. They compared it to last year’s budget, noting lake maintenance increased from about
$64,972 to $68,884, which was in line with other service increases. It was clarified that the fish
are triploid grass carp and that not all ponds are restocked each year. Pond 6 already has new
fountains, so they expect to monitor results there first, while Pond 7 might need attention next if
conditions worsen. After discussion, the Board approved the proposal for lake maintenance

services.

On MOTION by Mr. Forshey-Friedman, and seconded by Mr.
Kelley, with all in favor, the Lake Maintenance Services with Frist
Coast Aquatic was approved.

B. Pond Bank Inspection Report (will be sent under separate cover)
Ms. Giles stated that the inspection report had not been completed. The Board agreed to

table the item and have staff follow up with the engineer for an update.

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing Adopting the Budget for
Fiscal Year 2026
Ms. Giles discussed the budget overview. She noted that the table of contents was helpful

because it showed the District’s fund types — the general fund, the 2015 and 2017 debt service
funds, and the capital reserve fund. She added that although there were some line-item adjustments,
the FY26 budget remained flat overall, with no change in resident assessments. The O&M
assessment stayed at $533 per lot. Ms. Giles also referred to a comparison chart showing FY25
and FY26 side by side. Ms. Sweeting said she had no further comments, and Ms. Giles added that

the narrative pages were useful since they included monthly and annual costs and contingencies



August 8, 2025 Isles of Bartram Park CDD

based on past invoices. Ms. Giles noted that any unused funds stayed with the District and helped
cover first-quarter expenses before tax revenues were received. Ms. Giles asked for a motion to

open public comments.

On MOTION by Mr. Forshey-Friedman, and seconded by Ms.
Brown, with all in favor, Opening the Public Hearing, was approved.

Ms. Giles stated looking for a motion to close the public hearing.

On MOTION by Mr. Forshey-Friedman, and seconded by Mr.
Kelley, with all in favor, Closing the Public Hearing, was approved.

A. Consideration of Resolution 2025-04, Relating to the Annual Appropriations and
Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2026
Mr. Haber explained that both resolutions were part of the budget process. Resolution

2025-04 officially adopted the District’s final budget for Fiscal Year 2025-2026 and authorized
the use of funds as outlined. He added that the Board had already approved a proposed budget
earlier, which was sent to St. Johns County for the required 60-day review period before final
adoption. Mr. Haber added that Resolution 2025-05 was the formal assessment levy resolution,
which allowed the District to collect both the operations and maintenance assessments and the debt
assessments to fund the budget. He noted that it authorized GMS to send the assessment roll to the
tax collector so the amounts would appear on residents’ annual tax bills. Mr. Haber stated that he
was happy to answer any questions about either resolution.

The Board discussed the FY26 budget and whether any changes were needed before
adoption. A Board member raised concerns about the capital reserves. He stated that some
stormwater assets had initially been included in the HOA’s reserve study, and the CDD hadn’t
increased its funding to cover them. Ms. Giles added that the CDD didn’t have its own reserve
study, but the current budget included a capital transfer of about $55,600, which was slightly higher
than last year’s $50,000. The Board had reviewed how carry-forward balances and reserve
contributions worked. They confirmed that unspent funds rolled over each year and that upcoming
expenses would draw from the reserve. They discussed the long-term need to plan for stormwater

repairs anticipated around 2031. They agreed it would be beneficial to get proposals for a formal



August 8, 2025 Isles of Bartram Park CDD

capital reserve study to project future funding needs. Ms. Giles asked for a motion to approve

Resolution 2025-04, which approved the FY26 budget.

On MOTION by Mr. Kelley, and seconded by Ms. Brown, with all
in favor, Resolution 2025-04, Relating to the Annual Appropriations
and Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2026, was approved.

B. Consideration of Resolution 2025-05, Imposing Special Assessments and Certifying
an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2026
Ms. Giles stated that Mr. Haber had explained that it was the one who allowed the county

to place the assessments on the tax rolls. There were no questions or comments, and a motion to

adopt the resolution was made.

On MOTION by Ms. Brown, and seconded by Mr. Pudner, with all
in favor, Resolution 2025-05, Imposing Special Assessments and
Certifying an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2026, was approved.

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Innovative Maintenance Report
Ms. Giles stated that the Board had reviewed the Innovative maintenance report for the

front entrance fountain. She added that it included before-and-after photos showing the treatment
results. Ms. Sweeting confirmed that it referred to the front fountain. She said that the chlorine
inner drain valve had been dripping, but that part was replaced earlier in June after the fountain
went dry. The repair was minor. Ms. Giles noted that no motion was needed; it was for Board

discussion only.

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business

Ms. Giles presented that a Board member had asked for an update on the two fountains
being installed. Ms. Giles said the electrical work was finished and that, weather permitting,
installation was expected that Friday. The Board discussed how to communicate the update to
residents. Ms. Giles stated that CDD-related updates are usually shared in the newsletter rather
than through HOA e-blasts to keep the two separate. They also wanted to avoid stirring up
complaints from residents who might question why only certain ponds were getting fountains. The

Board agreed to keep the communication low-key or skip it from the newsletter, since people



August 8, 2025 Isles of Bartram Park CDD

would notice once the fountains were installed. Ms. Giles added that they were aware of the reason
behind the two selected ponds and that the CDD had documentation to support the decision. Ms.
Giles noted that the two fountains were being installed as a test before considering additional ones.
The discussion ended with some light joking about not wanting assessments to increase if more

fountains were added.

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports
A. Attorney
Mr. Haber had nothing further to report. He offered to take questions.

B. Engineer
Ms. Giles stated that the District engineer was not present, but offered to take any questions

or comments on his behalf.

C. Manager
1. Discussion of Fiscal Year 2026 Meeting Schedule
Ms. Giles stated that the next meeting would be on November 14, 2025, at 10:00 am.,

February 20, 2026, May 15, 2026, and August 21, 2026,

On MOTION by Mr. Kelley, and seconded by Ms. Brown, with all
in favor, the Fiscal Year 2026 Meeting Schedule was approved.

2. Goals & Objectives
Ms. Sweeting and Mr. Pudner reviewed the statutory requirements and developed the

FY25 goals and objectives for the District. The Board discussed that these needed to be measured
by December 1 and posted on the website. The goals were kept simple since the District was
already meeting its administrative obligations effectively. During the review, they focused on the
goal of holding at least 5 Board meetings. Since the District typically held four meetings, the Board
decided to revise that language to say “at least two meetings” per year to reflect the minimum
required for budget adoption and approval. The Board agreed that the goals could be adjusted each
year as needed. The Board then made and approved a motion to adopt the FY25 goals and

objectives as amended.



August 8, 2025 Isles of Bartram Park CDD

On MOTION by Mr. Forshey-Friedman, and seconded by Mr.
Kelley, with all in favor, the Goals and Objectives were approved.

D. First Choice Aquatics
Ms. Giles and Ms. Sweeting had nothing to report.

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisors’ Requests

There being no comments, the next item followed.

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments
There being no members of the public present, there were no comments; the next item

followed.

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Financial Reports
A. Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2025, and Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
Ms. Giles noted the financials are through June 30, 2025. She stated they are in good

financial shape.

B. Assessment Receipt Schedule
Ms. Giles stated that the District is 100% collected.

C. Approval of Check Register
Ms. Giles stated that the check register for the months of April, May, and June in the

amount of $60,634.92 is in the agenda package for Board consideration. She stated that she could

answer any questions, then asked for a motion to approve.

On MOTION by Mr. Kelley, and seconded by Mr. Forshey-
Friedman, all in favor, the Check Register, was approved.

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting, November 14, 2025
Ms. Giles stated the next scheduled meeting is November 14, 2025, at 10:00 a.m.

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment



August 8, 2025 Isles of Bartram Park CDD

On MOTION by Mr. Kelley, seconded by Mr. Forshey-Friedman, all
in favor, the Meeting was adjourned.

Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairperson / Vice Chairperson



FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS






community
® qdvisors®

Isles of Bartram Park CDD
St. Johns, Florida

Empowering Financially-Sustainable Communities

Reserve Studies | Structural Integrity Reserve Studies | Pre-Construction Planning

Community Development
a Districts (CDD)

Presented by

Charlie Sheppard PRA, RS, CCI
CSheppard@communityadvisors.com
904-303-3275

Commercial Buildings

Visit Our Website!



Table of Contents

3 Introduction

Purpose of a Reserve
Study

8 Services Offered

9 Scope of Work

10 Terms of Service

13 Contact Us




INTRODUCTION

About Community Advisors

Established in 2009, Community Advisors, based in Jacksonville, Florida,
specializes in capital reserve planning and property inspections across the
Southern and Mid-Atlantic States. With over 1,000 completed studies, we
serve a wide range of properties, including homeowners associations,
condominiums, CDD’s, schools, and commercial buildings.

Our Commitment

We provide long-term financial planning to minimize the risk of special
assessments and deferred maintenance, helping to protect property values.

Why Choose Us?

Using advanced software, we deliver clear, customized reports with various
funding methods. As experienced builders, we understand construction and
maintenance needs, ensuring you're fully prepared to protect your investment.

Our Partnerships

We're proud members of the Association of Professional Reserve Analysts
(APRA), Community Associations Institute (CAl), and the Association of
Construction Inspectors (ACI), demonstrating our commitment to industry

standards.
®

PLANNING A BRIGHT FUTURE %ﬁ"& o M

& J J \ MEMBER OF . GCI ™
A p’ R’— J— 3 coIminmnunil y association of

= ASSOCIATIONS INSTITUTE construction
Association of Professional Reserve Analysts |nSpeCTO|’S
3

Community Advisors, LLC - 10459 Hunters Creek Court - Jacksonville Florida 32256 - (904) 303-3275



INTRODUCTION

Mission and Vision

Mission Vision

Develop a solid relationship with Our forward thinking approach
our clients that provides guidance keeps assessments moderate,
on property maintenance, repair maintains property values and
and capital replacements to insure avoids special assessments or
stable and effective reserve funds loans.

LY

are available when needed.
Q/ \ E— ,
[é = é

Community Advisors, LLC - 10459 Hunters Creek Court - Jacksonville Florida 32256 - (904) 303-3275




OUR CLIENTS

We Have Worked With:

a Community Development Districts

Tolomato, (Nocatee)  pqrkland Preserve Rivers Edge
A'mella Concfourse Cross Creek Aberdeen
TISOD.S Landing Six Mile Creek Durbin Crossing
Amelia |./Valk Dunes Utility St. Johns Forrest
South Village Bannon Lakes
Double Branch
Sampson Creek . R . Deer Run
Middle Village Pine Ridge Plantation Trails
Ridgewood Trails Brandy Creek Southaven
Glen St. Johns Turnbull Creek Madeira Beach
Bartram Springs Arlington Ridge Armstrong
Bainbridge Magnolia West

Communities

Hammock Dunes Communities

Queens Harbour - Jacksonville, FL

The Georgia Club - Statham, GA

Corolla Light POA - Corolla, NC

The Landings - Skidaway Island, GA

Beresford Hall Assembly - North Charleston, SC
Cumberland Harbour - St. Mary’s, GA

Villas of Nocatee - Jacksonville, FI

Vizcaya HOA - Jacksonville, FL

Cimarrone POA - St. Johns, FL

Deercreek Country Club - Jacksonville, FL
Deerwood Country Club - Jacksonville, FL
Coastal Oaks - Ponte Vedra, FL

Preserve at Summer Beach - Fernandina Bch, FL
Amelia Park Neighborhood - Fernandina Bch, FL
Amelia Oaks - Fernandina Beach, FL

Coastal Oaks Amelia - Fernandina Beach, FL
Oyster Bay POA - Fernandina, FL

Oyster Bay Yacht Club - Fernandina, FL

Ocean Breeze HOA - Fernandina Beach, FL

The Enclave at Summer Beach - Fernandina Beach, FL
RiverPlace at Summer Beach - Fernandina Beach, FL
Amelia National - Fernandina, FL

Community Advisors, LLC - 10459 Hunters Creek Court - Jacksonville Florida 32256 - (904) 303-3275



OUR CLIENTS

We Have Worked With:

e Condominiums

Carlton Dunes - Amelia Island, FL The Peninsula - Jacksonville, FL

Spyglass Villas - Amelia Island, FL The Plaza at Berkman Plaza - Jacksonville, FL
Ocean Club Villas - Amelia Island, FL 1661 Riverside - Jacksonville, FL

Sand Dollar Condo - Amelia Island, FL Seascape - Jacksonville Beach, FL

Captain’s Court - Amelia Island, FL Southshore Condominium -

Dunes Club Villas - Amelia Island, FL Jacksonville Beach, FL

Villas at Summer Bch - Amelia Island, Fl Ocean Villas at Serenata Beach - St. Augustine, FL
Beachwood Villas - Amelia Island, FL Watermark - Jacksonville Beach, FL

Coastal Cottages - Amelia Island, FL Oceanic Condominium - Jacksonville Beach, FL
Harrison Cove - Amelia Island, FL Ocean 14 Condominium - Jacksonville Beach, FL
Marina San Pablo - Jacksonville, FL Serena Point Condominium - Jacksonville Beach, FL
Laterra at World Golf - St. Augustine, FL Oceania Condominium - Jacksonville Beach, FL
Surf Club Il - Palm Coast, FL Cumberland On Church - Nashville, TN

Active Adult Communities

Del Webb Ponte Vedra - Ponte Vedra, FL

Stone Creek by Del Webb - Ocala, FL

Villages of Seloy - St. Augustine, FL

Cascades at World Golf Village - St. Augustine, FL
The Haven at New Riverside - Bluffton, SC
Artisan Lakes - Jacksonville, FL

Religious/Schools

St. Mark’s Episcopal Church - Brunswick, GA
Memorial Presbyterian - St. Augustine, FL
Grace Mem. Presbyterian - St. Augustine, FL
Trinity Episcopal Church - St. Augustine, FL
St. Mark’s Towers - Brunswick, GA

Isle of Faith Methodist - Jacksonville, FL
Deermeadows Baptist - Jacksonville, FL
Frederica Academy - St. Simons Island, GA
Fishburne Military School - Waynesboro, VA
The Greenwood School - Jacksonville, FL

Community Advisors, LLC - 10459 Hunters Creek Court - Jacksonville Florida 32256 - (904) 303-3275



PURPOSE OF A RESERVE
STUDY

A Reserve Study Consists of:

Physical Analysis

Onsite evaluation of all components owned or
maintained by the Association/District ( roofs,
streets, pools, Etc.) to determine component
quantity, condition and remaining life. Our
years of experience are critical for this step!

Financial Analysis

Creates a long-term plan that provides
adequate funding for all reserve component
with as moderate contributions as possible.

Following the Plan

Your report is easy to read with a detailed
inventory of your major components that
we verify with you. This maintains a historic
record of replacements that tracks cost
and facilitates report updates. We are
available to review the report and address
any concerns.

7

Community Advisors, LLC - 10459 Hunters Creek Court - Jacksonville Florida 32256 - (904) 303-3275



Services Offered

Level |
Full Reserve Study

Level Il

Reserve Study Update

Level Il
Financial Update

Structural Integrity
Reserve Study
(SIRS)

Field Observations

Vist Your Community Vv 4 No v
Meet Board of ;

Available
Directors/Manager v v
Observe Association Assets v NA Specific Components

Quantify Components

Completed in Original
Report

Completed in Original
Report

Specific Components

Establish Compoment

RIRIRIRIR

Completed in Original

Completed in Original

Specific Components

Inventory Report Report
Deter‘rr'wlne Compo'nent. v v Based on Association Input Specific Components
Condition/Remaining Life
Report Generation
Apply Component Life . . . . . . . .
Typical For Location Typical For Location Typical For Location Typical For Location

Projections

Use Local Replacement Cost

Local Vendor Cost

Local Vendor Cost

Local Vendor Cost

Local Vendor Cost

General Remaining Life
Projections

Based on Experience

Based on Experience

Based on Experience

Based on Experience

Test Various Funding Plans

Cash Flow or Component

Cash Flow or
Component

Cash Flow or Component

Cash Flow or Component

Funding Plan

Custom Made

Custom Made

Custom Made

Custom Made

Data Output

v v
Provide Custom Funding Plan v v
lv‘l

Include Various Charts v v u v
Easy to Read Format v v v v
Photos of Major Components v v v v
Report Delivered In PDF File v v v v
CAl & APRA Standards Followed v v v Florida Statute Requirements

Support
Meeting to Review Report v v V4 v
Subject to Availability
Phone/Video Support available v v v v

v

A Report Revision Included v v v
Your Report Stored in Our Data v v v v
Base
24/7 Support v v v v




SCOPE OF WORK

August 21, 2025

Isles of Bartram Park CDD
475 West Town Place, Suite 114
St. Augustine, Florida 32092

Attn: District Supervisors

Our scope of work includes producing an new reserve study that includes a site visit to observe major
component condition, determine replacement cost and life projections. Components include: stormwater
system, waterfall/pond entry feature, entry road to gates.

Charles R. Sheppard RS PRA CCI
President & Reserve Analyst

Community Advisors, LLC - 10459 Hunters Creek Court - Jacksonville Florida 32256 - (904) 303-3275



A. Physical Analysis

The site visit includes meeting with your representative to discuss any maintenance or operational concerns. We
observe major components to determine quantity, age, condition and remaining useful life. Quantities are
determined by field measurement and internet measurement tools or aerial measurement services.

Building walls, trim and other features are observed from ground level. Flat roofs are observed only if safe fixed stair
access is available. Pitched roofs are observed from ground level. Building Systems are not operated.
Underground components or utility lines are not evaluated, however, allowances for replacement can be included.
Upon completion of the site visit, an inventory of major components is established which includes quantity,
replacement cost and remaining useful life. We recommend you review this information and provide historical costs
and previous replacement time for any components.

CA assumes the accuracy of any information and data that you provide, without CA performing any independent
verification of the information and data provided.

You agree to provide CA with all available documents and information, including but not limited to, historical and
financial information, the governing documents, and any other information requested and deemed necessary to
complete the inspection and report of your property. You also agree to provide CA with access to all common areas
of the property.

B. Financial Analysis

A review of your current funding plan is completed to determine fund status and performance. We provide a funding
plan using the Cash Flow Method (pooled cash) with a funding goal of adequate funding which keeps reserves
above a percent funded or balance threshold level. If component funding (line item) is used, then full funding is the
funding goal.

C. Your Reserve Study Includes

Executive summary with current funding status, fund balances and assumptions.

Cash Flow includes a 30-Year cash flow projection or a one-year component funding projection.

Inventory of major components with replacement cost, useful and remaining life projections.

Various charts and photographs of major components.

Completed Report is sent via email in a PDF file. Printed & bound copies available at additional cost.

CA'’s report contains opinions of estimated replacement costs or deferred maintenance expenses and remaining
useful lives, which are neither a guarantee of the actual costs or expenses of replacement or deferred maintenance
nor a guarantee of remaining useful lives of any property element.

Your use of the report issued is limited to only its stated purposes. You acknowledge that CA is the exclusive owner
of all intellectual property rights in and relating to its report. You hereby acknowledge that any use or reliance by you
on the report for any unauthorized purpose is at your own risk and that you will be liable for the consequences of any
unauthorized use or distribution of the report. Use or possession of the report by any unauthorized third party is
prohibited. You may show the report in its entirety to the following third parties: members of your organization
(including your directors, officers, members, tenants and prospective purchasers), your accountants, attorneys,
financial institutions and property managers who need to review the information contained herein, and any other
third party who has a right to inspect the report under applicable law including, but not limited, to any government
entity or agency, or any utility companies. Without the written consent of CA, you shall not disclose the report to any
other third party. By engaging our services, you agree that the report contains intellectual property developed and
owned solely by CA and agree that you will not reproduce or distribute the report to any party that conducts reserve
studies.

Community Advisors, LLC - 10459 Hunters Creek Court - Jacksonville Florida 32256 - (904) 303-3275



D. Payment Agreement and Terms

One revision with limited adjustments is included for your report after your review within 30 days of issue. Additional
revisions are invoiced for $350.00 per issue. One site visit with a meeting is included. Additional site visits are
invoiced at $500.00 plus travel expenses each.

To maintain excellent customer service and the requested delivery schedules CA asks that your acceptance of this
proposal is made within 30 days. Signed proposals received after 30 days are subject to revision of delivery time and
cost. If indicated a deposit fee may be required with the signed agreement to place your project in our production
schedule and begin your study. A progress payment may be requested upon completion of the site visit depending
on the size of the project. The remaining fee is due on receipt of the report. Payments not received 30 days after the
invoice date are assessed at 1.5% interest per month. After 90 days have passed, due payments will be subject to
additional charges for collection including attorney fees and other reasonable costs incurred by CA. Returned checks
will be invoiced at $25.00 each.

CA'’s financial analysis is based on information provided by you, which CA assumes is accurate. Your report is a
guide to be used for future capital component replacement planning, not a complete property inspection analysis.

E. Additional Terms

CA performs its services as an independent contractor in accordance with its professional practice standards and its
compensation is not contingent upon its conclusions.

CA cannot and shall not provide an opinion on, nor is CA responsible for, your property’s conformity to specific
governmental code requirements for fire, building, earthquake, occupancy or otherwise.

CA is not responsible for any conditions that have changed, or changes to your property, between the time of its
inspection and the issuance of its report.

CA does not investigate, nor assume any responsibility for, any existence or impact of any hazardous materials or
structural defects that are latent or hidden defects that may or may not be present on or within your property.

Except to the extent resulting from CA’s willful misconduct in connection with the performance of its obligations
under this Agreement, you agree to indemnify, defend, and hold Community Advisors, LLC and its affiliates, officers,
managers, employees, agents, successors and assigns (each, an “CA Party”) harmless from and against (and
promptly reimburse each CA Party for) any and all losses, claims, actions, demands, judgments, orders, damages,
expenses or liabilities, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, asserted against or to which any CA
Party may become subject in connection with this engagement, including, without limitation, as a result of any false,
misleading or incomplete information which CA relied upon that was supplied by you or others under your direction,
or which may result from any improper use or reliance on CA'’s report by you or third parties under your control or
direction or to whom you provided such report.

THE MAXIMUM LIABILITY (IF ANY) OF COMMUNITY ADVISORS, LLC WITH RESPECT TO THIS AGREEMENT
AND COMMUNITY ADVISOR, LLC’S OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER IS LIMITED TO THE AMOUNT OF FEES
ACTUALLY RECEIVED BY COMMUNITY ADVISORS, LLC FROM YOU FOR THE SERVICES AND REPORT
PERFORMED BY COMMUNITY ADVISORS, LLC AT YOUR PROPERTY UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER
ARISING IN CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHERWISE.
NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER PROVISION IN THIS AGREEMENT TO THE CONTRARY, YOU AGREE THAT
COMMUNITY ADVISORS, LLC SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY GENERAL, DIRECT, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY,
PUNITIVE, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES.

CA disclaims all representations and warranties whatsoever, express or implied or of any nature, with regard to the
services and its report, including without limitation, merchantability or fithess for a particular purpose.

This Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the state of Florida. Both Parties consent to
jurisdiction under the state and federal courts within Duval County, Florida, and the prevailing party shall be entitled
to recover all cost, fees, and expenses incurred in such action from the other party.

Community Advisors, LLC - 10459 Hunters Creek Court - Jacksonville Florida 32256 - (904) 303-3275



. Waiver of Jury Trial. The Parties knowingly and intentionally, irrevocably and unconditionally, waive any and all
right to a trial by jury in any litigation arising out of or concerning this Agreement.

. Should any portion of this Agreement be deemed unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining
portions shall remain unaffected and be interpreted as if such unenforceable portions were initially deleted.

. If CAis ever, at any time in the future, called and/or required to be a witness; to answer discovery in any formal legal
action; to provide deposition testimony; to provide testimony at trial; to make any filings in a legal proceeding; to
provide information, respond in writing, or to communicate formally with any governmental entity or judicial forum; to
participate in any mediation or arbitration; or to otherwise participate in any legal proceeding due to CA’s services
and/or written reports provided to you, then you agree to reimburse CA for its time at a rate of $200.00 per hour for
each hour that CA, including any employees, must dedicate to such matter, issue, or event. CA will provide you with
an invoice for its time dedicated to such matter, issue, or event, and payment is due from you 30 days after the
invoice date. Payments not received 30 days after the invoice date are assessed 1.5% interest per month. After 90
days have passed, due payments will be subject to additional charges for collection including attorney fees and
other reasonable costs incurred by CA. Returned checks will be invoiced at $25.00 each.

. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to the scope of work and supersedes all
prior agreements, both written or oral, made or entered into by the Parties. Neither party has relied upon any
representation not contained in this Agreement. This Agreement may not be amended or modified in any way except
by an instrument in writing executed by each party.

. This Agreement is not assignable by either party.

. Neither party is liable to the other for any failure to perform due to causes beyond its reasonable control including,
but not limited to, acts of God, acts of civil authorities, acts of military authorities, riots, acts of nature and natural
disasters, embargo, fire, flood, pandemic and other acts which may be due to unforeseen circumstances, provided,
however, that you shall not be relieved from your obligations to make any payment(s) to CA when due hereunder.

. This Agreement is made solely and specifically between, and for the benefit of, the Parties hereto, and no other
person shall have any rights, interest or claims hereunder or be entitled to any benefits under or on account of this
Agreement as a third-party beneficiary or otherwise. You hereby for yourself and other parties claiming under you,
release and discharge CA from and against all claims arising from the hazards covered by your insurance, it being
expressly agreed and understood that no insurance company or insurer will have any right of subrogation against
CA.

. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of
which together will constitute one and the same instrument. Facsimile, e-mail, or other electronic transmission and
electronic signatures are acceptable to bind the Parties.

This Agreement for consulting services is accepted on the below-listed date and by your signature below

Professional Fee: $2,800.00 Deposit Required: N/A
Name Of District:
Authorized Signature: Title:
Printed Name: Date:
Phone Number: Email:

Community Advisors, LLC - 10459 Hunters Creek Court - Jacksonville Florida 32256 - (904) 303-3275



Lets Partner!

community
® qdvisors®

Established in 2009

Charlie Sheppard PRA, RS, CCI
CSheppard@communityadvisors.com
904-303-3275

Visit Our Website!

Community Advisors, LLC - 10459 Hunters Creek Court - Jacksonville Florida 32256 - (904) 303-3275






CustomReserves:

PREPARED FOR:

Isles of Bartram Park

Community Development

Reserve Study Proposal

PREPARED BY: S\ GRIFL,

SRR M 7,
Paul Grifoni, PRA,RS =,/ ™7™ = =
Engineer 2 A S
. N RO
Reserve Specialist, RS 7z @é-f?_ss,em\q}‘.-'vg S
. ”, S AR O
Professional Reserve Analyst, PRA ’f/;?xE SPe\S\’\\\‘
1 \
Licensed Home Inspector i
\\\\\H”””///
S\oession 7,
Custom Reserves S 27,
, S35/ Paml %%
5470 E Busch Blvd., Unit 171 SE! Cefoni o5
Tampa, FI 33617 23, s 2
Office: (888) 927-7865 Ty, R s
%, R S
Fax: (813) 200-8448 ) A B N
/////f;llm “ﬁ\\\\\\\\\\

www.CustomReserves.com



http://www.customreserves.com/

Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District
Reserve Study Proposal

Sarah Sweeting
District Manager

Isles Of Bartram Park Community Development District
Reference #1566

Thomas Ivy Blvd YEARSG
Saint Johns, FL ENCE

Thank you for the opportunity to be of service to your community. Custom Reserve’s takes great
pride in our work and in helping all our clients navigate through the Reserve Study process.

Dear Board of Supervisors:

A Reserve Study is a key financial planning tool that helps Management and the Board in
maintaining the common property components and planning for the future.

Included in Your Reserve Study:

e Excellent communication with our team. Custom Reserve’s listen to its clients’ concerns.
From the timing of the inspection and report delivery to the financial or physical aspects
of the community, Custom Reserve’s always listen and hear your concerns.

¢ Industry-leading experience in all varieties of associations, community development
districts, cooperatives commercial properties, and more! With over 25 years of
experience in the industry, Custom Reserve’s take the guess work out of budget season.

e Timely contract completion is a must. Custom Reserve’s understands how important
your receivables can be for budget and community meetings. Custom Reserve’s takes
great care in saying what it means and meaning what is said when it comes to delivery.

e Accuracy in results. The results depicted in a reserve study are only as good as the
estimates of useful life, replacement cost and age of the individual components. More
experience leads to greater accuracy in our product.

e Relationship-building is paramount. A reserve study should be updated periodically to
keep up to date with changes in construction costs, inflation and interest rate, and new
technology. Custom Reserve’s puts our client relationships at the forefront of our core

values.


http://www.customreserves.com/

Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District
Reserve Study Proposal

Benefits of a Custom Reserves Report

Proper and accurate reserve planning for the Click Here

For More Information

future

Increased awareness of upcoming major
property repairs and replacements
Maximized property and re-sale values when
adequately funded

Increased likelihood of loans being granted by
lenders when adequately funded

Decreased stress in knowing that a special

assessment is not looming around the corner!

Florida Clients Served

Town Park River Club
“'""‘-" “l“"' aters Edge at Port Orange

' Rivvera Betl
Windcv_mcu‘?vd\n VIIES Y, Bouchelle Island

Jox Run‘qpung\ Park Area
5 Bk Luke Pagn :darivood Village

N
ﬂuvuu . "(goulrcmsc Parcel 45
gau;nn:r""p‘ a’“" & Cobmtéy Cilib 0, ¢ Edge East
Heritage Springs GCC )'900 Hightinds Regal Palms REsQIT

AIA (ond ""7“"‘ Lo
- wArbor ukﬁw.uow Poln Coystal Lake
olphin QOw

Landmark Towers «4 \ur'\Nwrg\lv at V‘f'n(og""‘ﬂv\' Cove
The Willows Condominium Non'ucy at Lake Semirole
Treasure T\Iahd lWr\lwond Greens \\ =r
Terrace IV 4t River $uu&’r oach Momesit

A8}
Mount VBERoA Avaunce HOA Y

Royal Oaks of (-uy‘

Balintor

-
3
‘)
/ =
oS e P Slexington Lakes
-

Vi No R SN
"5 Tomnhomes | athCran paradizo. ‘\\
Slum\ybu&\ C00 |

sanctuary at Cape u;‘{i mnolc Cardens (1 Classics at Bear Pakes
Jmlll( Cartens No."
“""’b'" &V gent Tree Villas West
Hideawdy®tiub

Bella Tegra Vi 3s 2
Trieste at Wisari Village l‘h' ,3, ondo
Spmdn?l-\lun \lnlmg Place g vo A

.vu Inard

-\u\ of Boca Lago

Kings (’ ch West



http://www.customreserves.com/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=-W2cel7VMfU

Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District
Reserve Study Proposal

Report Content and Data Visualization

CONDITION MODEL

Component 1st Year of

Type Component Name Condition Urgency Replacement
Exterior Building  Chimney Caps, Partial Replacements
Exterior Building  Roofs, Aluminum-Coated Shakes (Incl. Soffit and Fascia)

Exterior Building ~ Walls, Siding, Wood, Paint Finishes, Phased

Exterior Building ~ Walls, Siding, Wood, Partial Replacements

Property Site Asphalt Pavement, Crack Repair and Patch

Property Site Asphalt Pavement, Mill and Overlay, Phased

Property Site Concrete Streets and Common Flatwork, Partial Replacement
Property Site Light Fixtures, Bollards (Incl. Pool Area)

Property Site Pipes, Subsurface Utilities, Partial Replacement

Clubhouse Clubhouse, Deck, Composite and Wood, Replacement (Incl. Rail)
Clubhouse Clubhouse, Exterior Renovation

Clubhouse Clubhouse, HVAC Equipment, Replacement

Clubhouse Clubhouse, Interior Renovations

Clubhouse Clubhouse, Parking Area and Pool, Light Poles and Fixtures
Clubhouse Clubhouse, Roof, Aluminum (Incl. Gutters and Downspouts)
Clubhouse Clubhouse, Windows and Doors

Pool Pool, Bulkhead, Wood, Replacement

Pool Pool, Deck, Pavers, Replacement (Incl. Clubhouse Area)

Pool L R S S .
REMAINING

PROPERTY COMPONE T MODEL COMMON COMPONENTS (X) VCOMPONENTS (0)

COMPONENT RESERVES  OPERATING LONG-LIVED  OWNER OTHER
Asphalt Pavement, Crack Repair and Patch
Asphalt Pavement, Mill and Overlay, Phased
Chimney Caps, Partial Replacements
Clubhouse, Bicycle Rack
Clubhouse, Deck, Composite and Wood, Replacement (Incl. Rail)
Clubhouse, Exterior Renovation
Clubhouse, HVAC Equipment, Replacement
Clubhouse, Interior Renovations
Clubhouse, Parking Area and Pool, Light Poles and Fixtures
Clubhouse, Roof, Aluminum (Incl. Gutters and Downspouts)
— s Windows and Doors
iveways at Cluster Homes
) ‘eets and Common Flatwork, Partial Replacement
Easily view ge, Serving Cluster Homes
ts by 3lkways, Serving Cluster Homes
Componen 'ss Than $7,000
s

; and
funding Sourc® B
Slbmty and Associated Components

Respon Downspouts, Serving Cluster Homes
)stem Air Conditioners, Serving Cluster Homes
wrigation System, Controls
Irrigation System, Pumps
Light Fixtures, Bollards (Incl. Pool Area)
Light Fixtures, Exterior, Serving Cluster Homes
Light Poles and Fixtures at Streets
Other Repairs Normally Funded Through the Operating Budget
Pipes, Subsurface Utilities, Partial Replacement
Ponds, Serving Goif Course
Pool, Bulkhead, Wood, Replacement
Pool, Deck, Pavers, Replacement (Incl. Clubhouse Area)
Pool, Fence, Metal, Replacement
Pool, Finishes, Plaster and Tile (Incl. Coping)
Pool, Structure and Deck, Total Replacement
Pool, Trash Receptacles

(<

Easily view
components by
Condition and

Urgency

Wﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂlﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ

.\
4



http://www.customreserves.com/

Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District
Reserve Study Proposal

Objectives

Conduct an on-site inspection of the common property, document condition and forecast a
customized funding plan required to replace or repair these elements as they wear out over the
course of their useful lives.

Scope of Services

1. An on-site meeting with Management and/or the Board.

2. Physical Analysis that includes an on-site inspection of the common property
documented by photographs.

3. 30-year replacement/repair schedule that includes custom useful lives.

4. Financial Analysis with a 30-year Cash Flow and/or Component method of funding.

oz

Electronic copy in PDF format of the Reserve Study that includes a detailed narrative
including tables, graphs and charts depicting the findings.

Expenditures and Funding Plan in Excel upon request.
One hard copy of the Full Reserve Study upon request.

Free unlimited phone and online support.

L 0 N o

One revision of the study up to the end of the current fiscal year.

Affiliations

Our services are provided by an Engineer with reserve study credentials from the Association of
Professional Reserve Analysts (APRA) and Community Associations Institute (CAI). Additional
qualifications include a Licensed Home Inspector with the Florida Association of Building
Inspectors, construction management experience including estimating and scheduling.

Custom Reserves experience includes inspection and condition analysis of hundreds of
communities. A partial list of relevant experience is included on the last page.

@
ooﬁ Px

E%Bfffﬁlunity A PRI\

ASSOCIATIONS INSTITUTE



http://www.customreserves.com/

Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District
Reserve Study Proposal

When the Reserve Study is complete, your community will have access to live support and edit capability
until the budget is approved. These revisions include adjustments to variables such as costs, times of
replacement, inflation, and interest rates.

Cost estimates are based on localized information gathered from resources that include, but are not
limited to, local vendors and industry databases, combined with experience in home building, site
development and actual data gathered from conducting thousands of reserve studies, collectively. Useful
lives are generated from several factors such as environment, construction materials and historical
information.

Client Responsibilities

This project requires involvement by your accounting personnel. To help achieve a smooth and successful
implementation, it will be your responsibility to perform the following:

1. Include a copy of the financial statements i.e. (balance sheet, income statement and/or copy of
the annual budget along with other financial reports.)

2. Supply the governing documents if applicable.
3. Provide access to all common areas.

4. Disclose known historical information.

Report Use

You may show our report in its entirety to those third parties who need to review the information
contained herein. The Client and other third parties viewing this report should not reference Custom
Reserves or our report, in whole or in part, in any document prepared and/or distributed to third parties
without our written consent. This report contains intellectual property by Custom Reserves, LLC specified
to this engagement.

Client agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Custom Reserves against any and all loses, claims, actions,
damages, expenses or liabilities, including attorney’s fees, to which Custom Reserves may become subject
in connection with this engagement, because of any false, misleading or incomplete information supplied
by client or third parties under client’s control or direction.

The inspection and analysis of the subject property is limited to visual observations and is noninvasive.
Custom Reserves does not investigate, nor assume any responsibility for any existence or impact of any
hazardous materials, structural, latent or hidden defects which may or may not be present on or within
the property. Our opinions of estimated costs and remaining useful lives are not a guarantee or a warranty
of the common components.

Client Name

Custom Reserves maintains the confidentiality of all conversations, documents provided and the contents
of the report, subject to legal or administrative process or proceedings. These conditions can only be
modified by written documents executed by both parties.


http://www.customreserves.com/

Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District
Reserve Study Proposal

For Sample Report

Components Anticipated to be Included in Your Custom
Reserve Study

Component Category Component Name

Asphalt Pavement | Concrete Flatwork | Irrigation System | Lighting | Pavers |

Property Site o )
Retaining Walls | Ponds | Storm Water System | Signage 4


http://www.customreserves.com/
https://www.dropbox.com/s/tp205rmbbve6acv/CDD%20Reserve%20Study%20Sample%20Report_Redacted.pdf?dl=0

Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District
Reserve Study Proposal

Confirmation of Services
REF #: 1566

Fee estimates are based on the components summarized in the previous table. The fee for this Full Reserve Study

oo e e oo e oo oo e e ee e ee e $4,100.

Custom Reserves appreciates the opportunity to be of service. Upon acceptance of this proposal, please sign and
return this page along with a fifty percent (50%) retainer payment. We will contact you to schedule a site visit
and inspection upon receipt of this payment. The remaining balance will be due upon receipt of the report.

This letter sets forth the understanding of the community and serves as confirmation of services provided by
Custom Reserves.

Owner reserves the right to reject any and/or all Proposals received, and to rebid if the Owner deems
necessary. Owner is not subject to pay any costs incurred by Vendors in the preparation and submission of their
Proposals.

Sincerely,

% " M /AW :
= CustomReserves:

Paul Grifoni, PRA, RS 5470 € Busch Bivd., Unit 171

Engineer Tampa, FI 33617

Reserve Specialist Office: (888) 927-7865
Professional Reserve Analyst Fax: (813) 200-8448

Licensed Insurance Adjuster contact@customreserves.com
Licensed Home Inspector www.CustomReserves.com

—

Accepted By Title Date


http://www.customreserves.com/
http://www.customreserves.com/

Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District
Reserve Study Proposal

Experience

Experience includes condominiums, homeowners associations, planned unit developments, property
owner associations, co-operatives and community development districts with construction styles that
range from townhouses to hi-rises. Other experience includes specialty establishments such as golf clubs,
international properties, vacation ownership resorts (timeshares) as well as worship, retreat and camp

facilities.
A partial list of recent reserve study experience follows below:

Tradewinds is an apartment style development built in 1974, located in St. Augustine, FL and is
responsible for the common elements shared by 60 owners within five three-story buildings. The
development also contains a clubhouse, pool, dock, dune walkover and sea wall. Sullivan Ranch is a
planned unit development located in Mount Dora, Florida and is responsible for the common components
shared by 692 homes established in 2006. The Association is also responsible for the replacement of the
roofs and painting of a Service Area that comprises 34 Villas and 32 Garden units. The development

contains clubhouse, pool and property site components.

Somerset Community Development District Is a local unit of special purpose government located within
Walton County, Florida established by the county in 2005. The District has constructed and/or acquired
certain public infrastructure within the Alys Beach Community developed by EBSCO Gulf Coast
Development, Inc. The development also contains other property site components such as a beach dune,

irrigation system and street pavers.

The Gallery Homes of Tapestry Park Is a commercial condominium located in Jacksonville FL built in 2008
and responsible for the common elements shared by 21 homes and 12 retail units within 3 three-story

buildings.

Harbor Bay Community Development District owns and operates the community areas of Mira Bay in
Apollo Beach FL including common areas, recreational facilities, public roadways, storm
water management systems, street lighting, landscaping, clubhouse with café, lap pool, waterslide, clay

tennis courts 35,000 linear feet of sea wall, boatlifts.


http://www.customreserves.com/




RESERVE"
ADVISORS

Long-term thinking. Everyday commitment.

Michael Silvares, Account Specialist

Property Wellness (813) 536.7198
Reserve StUdy PI"OgI"am Proposal michael@reserveadvisors.com

Level | Reserve Study

Isles of Bartram Park Community Development
District
Fruit Cove, Florida

Report Overview

(813) 536-7198 | reserveadvisors.com


https://www.reserveadvisors.com/

Reserve Advisors
Your Property Wellness Consultants

of associations
lack sufficient
reserve funds

Our Property Wellness Reserve Study Program

Your home is the most expensive personal property you will ever own. The responsibility for
preserving its value reaches beyond your home to include the spaces you share with your neighbors.
Structures, systems, streets and amenities must be maintained to protect the value of your
investment. But the required responsibility often stretches beyond individual knowledge and
expertise. That's why associations turn to Reserve Advisors. As your property wellness consultants,
our reserve study helps associations understand their assets, expected lifespans, and both the
budgets and maintenance needed to keep them in great working order.

A
lnl

(813) 536-7198 | reserveadvisors.com


https://www.reserveadvisors.com/who-we-are/

A Proactive Property Wellness Program

Our engineers provide a thorough evaluation of your property and shared assets, and create a
strong, informed plan to maximize your community’s physical and financial wellness for the long haul.
Because proactive care ensures that your shared property is cared for the way you would care for
your home. We have been helping communities thrive for over 30 years. But the job we are
obsessed with is making sure you and your neighbors have what you need to protect your property
today and prevent costly and avoidable repairs tomorrow. It is the best way to care for the place that
makes you feel welcome, safe, secure and proud.

Threshold Funding Strategy i’

The most stable and equitable
approach to funding reserves,
this strategy aggregates all
future expenditures and
calculates annual reserve
contributions such that the
reserve balance never falls
below a minimum threshold.

(813) 536-7198 | reserveadvisors.com



Helping Communities Thrive for Over 30 Years

With a team of 60+ engineers whose
engineering backgrounds include civil, 37;000"'
structural, mechanical, and more, we RESERVE STUDIES CONDUCTED
have over 350 years of combined
experience conducting reserve studies for
common interest realty associations 1 9!000"'
nationwide. Our service area is one of the ASSOCIATIONS SERVED
largest in the industry, and we pride
ourselves on delivering unbiased
recommendations that give communities 3,950,000"‘
the plans they need to ensure the future RESIDENTS SERVED
well-being of the property.

Industry Leadership

We were instrumental in pioneering the Community Association Institute's (CAl) Reserve Study
Standards, and were influential in revising these standards in 2023 through our participation in an
industry task force. This diverse group included reserve specialists, professional managers,
community board members, attorneys, and accountants. Additionally, we continue to shape best
practices in the field through active involvement with the Foundation for Community Association
Research (FCAR), including chairing the Reserve Study Best Practices Report.

As a national member of CAl, we are actively involved in over 30 chapters nationwide, regularly
supporting the organization's members through structured education, speaking engagements, and
publications for managers and board members. Our leadership team members, Michelle Baldry and
Matt Kuisle, are board members of FCAR and CAl, respectively. In addition to complying with
legislative requirements specific to reserve studies, we are compliant with and/or accredited by:

» Association of Professional Reserve Analysts (APRA)

*  Community Associations Institute (CAl)
* American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)

(813) 536-7198 | reserveadvisors.com



Your Trusted Neighborhood Partner

Hear What Our Clients Say

reserve study process. She has been quick to respond to
any and all questions our Board of Directors had, and her
in-depth answers were well received by our Unit Owners
during our monthly board meeting. Lisa's presentation
exceeded our expectations, and we look forward to working
with her again in the future."

Afsheen Awan, General Manager
Lexington Square Condominiums

(813) 536-7198 | reserveadvisors.com

S ) orange
eons

Widwood o Ook Hill

Leesburg M Dora— & Sanford

Gocgle My Maps -3

B @i gy
e kil =k I r\.(.}‘.

A SGOLET L S

e P

"| greatly appreciated Reserve Advisors' level of
engagement with our HOA officers throughout the entire
process from our initial meeting, through their site visit and
the publication of our study. Fred was very thorough and
detailed and he addressed all our concerns and issues as
well as presented solid, realistic, and executable
recommendations."

James Holland, Vice President & Treasurer
Fallstone of Alexandria Homeowners Association



Level | Full Reserve Study

RESERVE"
ADVISORS

LEVEL | LEVEL Il LEVEL llI

FULL RESERVE STUDY RESERVE STUDY UPDATE RESERVE STUDY
I . WITH SITE-VISIT WITHOUT SITE-VISIT
Long-term thinking. Everyday commitment.
RESERVE STUDY PROCESS
ONSITE VISUAL INSPECTION Y] ]
PRE-INSPECTION MEETING () ]
COMPONENT INVENTORY PLUS Established Re-Assessed/Evaluated Reflects prior study
COMPONENT QUANTITIES
& MEASUREMENTS
CONDITION ASSESSMENTS Based on Based on As reported

visual observation

visual observation

by association

USEFUL LIFE ESTIMATES

Based on engineer's
condition assessment

Based on engineer's
condition assessment

Based on client’'s
reported condition

VALUATION/COST ESTIMATES

Established for each

Re-evaluated for each

Re-evaluated for each

VIA PROPRIETARY BID DATABASE reserve component reserve component reserve component
KEY DELIVERABLES

MEETS AND EXCEEDS CAI'S

NATIONAL RESERVE STUDY ] (] (]

STANDARDS

PRIORITIZED LIST OF %

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 9 Z Z

CUSTOMIZED RECOMMENDED

FUNDING PLAN(S) v g v

RECOMMENDED PREVENTATIVE

MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES v v

INCLUSION OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS (] ] ()

ELECTRONIC REPORT Comprehensive report Comprehensive report Executive summary
with component detail with component detail overview

EXCEL SPREADSHEETS (] () ()

SUPPORT WITH IMPLEMENTATION

OF REPORT v g Z

COMPLIMENTARY REPORT

REVISION g Y

UNCONDITIONAL POST-STUDY

SUPPORT AT NO ADDITIONAL COST o U] U]

INCLUDING REPORT PRESENTATION

RECOMMENDED
SERVICE LEVEL

We are proposing a Level | Full Reserve Study. This service involves developing a component list
and quantification of each item - a crucial aspect often overlooked by unqualified providers. This
service is suitable for communities that have never undergone a reserve study, as well as those
contemplating a change in reserve study providers. Conducting a Level | Reserve Study allows us to
not only verify the accuracy of the component inventory and related quantities/measurements with
certainty - the foundation of any reserve study - but to also present capital planning

recommendations with unwavering confidence.

(813) 536-7198 | reserveadvisors.com



Property Wellness Reserve Study Program

Reserve Advisors will perform a Level | Reserve Study in accordance with Community
Associations Institute (CAl) National Reserve Study Standards. Your reserve study is comprised of
the following:

Physical Analysis: The reserve study consultant will develop a detailed list of reserve
components, also known as a component inventory, and related quantities for each. We will
complete a condition assessment or physical evaluation for each reserve component and the
current condition of each will be documented with photographs. Life and cost estimates will be
performed to determine estimated useful lives, remaining useful lives and current cost of repair or
replacement.

Financial Analysis: The reserve study consultant will identify the current reserve fund status in
terms of cash value and prepare a customized funding plan. The funding plan outlines
recommended annual reserve contributions to offset the future cost of capital projects over the
next 30 years.

Property Description
Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District comprises the following reserve components:

Streets and Curbs, Irrigation System, Monuments, Landscaping, Pond(s), and other property
specifically identified that you’d like us to include.

Scope of work includes all property owned-in-common as defined in your association’s declaration and other property specifically
identified that you’d like us to include.

(813) 536-7198 | reserveadvisors.com



Key Elements of Your Property Wellness Reserve Study Program

Reserve Advisors' Exclusive Tools

Reserve Advisors’ exclusive tools allow you to make informed decisions to maintain your association’s long-
term physical and financial health.

Reserve Expenditures

-_E} View your community’s entire schedule of prioritized View Example
@ expenditures for the next 30 years on one easy-to-read
- - spreadsheet.

S Funding Plan

Establishes the most stable and equitable recommended
annual reserve contributions necessary to meet your future
project needs.

View Example

Reserve Funding Graph

Highlights your community’s current financial health and

il provides visibility to your projected cash flow over the next
0 30 years.

View Example

Component Specific Details

Including photographic documentation of conditions, project
.|_IJ_L|. specific best practices outlining the scope of future projects,
. and preventative maintenance activities to maximize

component useful lives.

View Example

Excel Spreadsheets

Empowering you to make more informed decisions by
adjusting project schedules, future costs, and annual
contributions in real time.

(813) 536-7198 | reserveadvisors.com


https://bit.ly/42KA9Dq
https://bit.ly/3Q5HA09
https://bit.ly/3CGPYQJ
https://bit.ly/40IDD6x

For Confidence in All Decisions

Personalized Experience Guarantee

As your trusted advisor, we are committed to providing clarity on
the true cost of property ownership through a comprehensive
capital planning solution and unmatched advisory services. If the
experience we provide fails to live up to your expectations,
contact us at any time for a refund.

Your property is your biggest investment. Here’s why we’re the right partner to protect it.

0«0 — 0
— OO0
Full Engagement Detailed Understanding Ongoing Support

It's our job to understand your We will do whatever it takes to Unlike other firms, we provide
specific concerns and to discuss ensure you have complete current and future boards with
your priorities in order to ensure confidence in interpreting and additional insight, availability to
your experience exceeds putting into practice our findings answer questions and guidance

expectations. and recommendations. well beyond report delivery.

66

RA is comprised of a highly professional team with the depth of knowledge, access to extensive research
resources, and sensitive interpersonal skills needed to collaborate with our community group comprised of
board members and ad-hoc committee members to produce a detailed and relevant reserve study vital to
keeping our community in a strong fiscal position as we plan for the future. Our engineer did an excellent job
preparing the community for the site visit, listening to and incorporating information shared by our stakeholders,
and leading them through a virtual meeting review of the completed study, answering questions and noting
tweaks needed to finalize the reserve study for the community.

Ellen C. | Treasurer ’ ’

(813) 536-7198 | reserveadvisors.com



The Time to Protect Your Property's Long-Term Health is Now
This proposal, dated 8/27/2025, for a Reserve Study, is valid for 90 days.

To Start Your Property Wellness Reserve Study Program Today:

1. Select the service options below to confirm scope of engagement

Service Price

Reserve Study (Level I) $5,000.00
This service includes a pre-project meeting to discuss your unique needs and priorities
with our engineer. You'll receive: 1) a PDF report with 30-year expenditure and funding
plan tables, 2) Excel spreadsheet with formulas, and 3) Complimentary support with
implementation of your study and ongoing guidance.

We provide ongoing, tailored support—at no additional cost. We’'ll meet with you to walk through your study, explain key
recommendations, and answer any questions—ensuring you have the knowledge and confidence to make informed decisions for
your community’s long-term success.

Total $5,000.00

2. Sign below

Signature: Title:

Name: Date:

For: Isles of Bartram Park Community_ Ref: 253380
Development District
3. Pay 50% retainer. An Mailing Address ACH
invoice will be emailed to Reserve Advisors, LLC Send Remittances to 'accounting@reserveadvisors.com'
you upon project PO Box 88955 at time of payment

Checking Account Number: 151391168

Routing Number: 075905787

Financial Institution: First Business Bank

17335 Golf Parkway, Suite 150 | Brookfield, WI 53045

authorization. Milwaukee, WI 53288-8926

You will receive your electronic report approximately four (4) weeks after our inspection, based on timely receipt of all necessary information from you. Authorization to inspection
time varies depending on demand for our services. This proposal, dated 8/27/2025, is valid for 90 days, and may be executed and delivered by facsimile, portable document format
(.pdf) or other electronic signature pages, and in any number of counterparts, which taken together shall be deemed one and the same instrument. One complimentary hard copy
report is available upon request.

(813) 536-7198 | reserveadvisors.com



Professional Service Conditions

Our Services - Reserve Advisors, LLC (“RA”) performs its services as an independent contractor in accordance with our professional practice
standards and its compensation is not contingent upon our conclusions. The purpose of our reserve study is to provide a budget planning tool that
identifies the current status of the reserve fund, and an opinion recommending an annual funding plan, to create reserves for anticipated future
replacement expenditures of the subject property. The purpose of our energy benchmarking services is to track, collect and summarize the subject
property’s energy consumption over time for your use in comparison with other buildings of similar size and establishing a performance baseline for
your planning of long-term energy efficiency goals. The purpose of our Milestone Phase | is to evaluate the structural integrity of the building on the
subject property and provide an inspection report summarizing our findings related to structural issues, or lack thereof.

In each case, our inspection and analysis of the subject property is limited to visual observations, is noninvasive and is not meant to nor does it
include investigation into statutory, regulatory or code compliance. RA inspects sloped roofs from the ground and inspects flat roofs where safe
access (stairs or ladder permanently attached to the structure) is available. Our energy benchmarking services with respect to the subject property
is limited to collecting energy and utility data and summarizing such data in the form of an Energy Star Portfolio Manager Report or any other
similar report, and hereby expressly excludes any recommendations with respect to the results of such energy benchmarking services or the
accuracy of the energy information obtained from utility companies and other third-party sources with respect to the subject property. Our Milestone
Phase | inspections are limited to a visual examination of habitable and uninhabitable areas of the building, including the primary structural
members and systems. The inspection aims to determine the presence of substantial structural deterioration, and unsafe or dangerous conditions
with the structure. The reserve report, Milestone Phase | report, and any energy benchmarking report (i.e., any Energy Star Portfolio Manager
Report) (including any subsequent revisions thereto pursuant to the terms hereof, collectively, the “Report”) are based upon a “snapshot in time” at
the moment ofinspection. RA may note visible physical defects in the Report. The inspection is made by employees generally familiar with real
estate and building construction. Except to the extent readily apparent to RA, RA cannot and shall not opine on the structural integrity of or other
physical defects in the property under any circumstances. Without limitation to the foregoing, RA cannot and shall not opine on, nor is RA
responsible for, the subject property’s conformity to specific governmental code requirements for fire, building, earthquake, occupancy or otherwise.

RA is not responsible for conditions that have changed between the time of inspection and the issuance of the Report. RA does not provide any
invasive testing whatsoever (including, without limitation, on any mechanical systems that provide energy to the property), nor can RA opine on any
system components that are not easily accessible during the inspection. RA does not investigate, nor assume any responsibility for any existence
or impact of any hazardous materials, such as asbestos, urea-formaldehyde foam insulation, other chemicals, toxic wastes, environmental mold or
other potentially hazardous materials or structural defects that are latent or hidden defects which may or may not be present on or within the
property. RA does not make any soil analysis or geological study as part of its services, nor does RA investigate vapor, water, oil, gas, coal, or other
subsurface mineral and use rights or such hidden conditions, and RA assumes no responsibility for any such conditions. The Report may contain
opinions of estimated replacement costs or deferred maintenance expenses and remaining useful lives, which are neither a guarantee of the actual
costs or expenses of replacement or deferred maintenance nor a guarantee of remaining useful lives of any property element.

RA assumes, without independent verification, the accuracy of all data provided to it. Except to the extent resulting from RA’s willful misconduct
in connection with the performance of its obligations under this agreement, you agree to indemnify, defend, and hold RA and its affiliates, officers,
managers, employees, agents, successors and assigns (each, an “RA Party”) harmless from and against (and promptly reimburse each RA Party
for) any and all losses, claims, actions, demands, judgments, orders, damages, expenses or liabilities, including, without limitation, reasonable
attorneys' fees, asserted against or to which any RA Party may become subject in connection with this engagement, including, without limitation, as
a result of any false, misleading or incomplete information which RA relied upon that was supplied by you or others under your direction, or which
may result from any improper use or reliance on the Report by you or third parties under your control or direction or to whom you provided the
Report. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER PROVISION HEREIN TO THE CONTRARY, THE AGGREGATE LIABILITY (IF ANY) OF RAWITH
RESPECT TO THIS AGREEMENT AND RA'S OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER IS LIMITED TO THE AMOUNT OF THE FEES ACTUALLY
RECEIVED BY RAFROM YOU FOR THE SERVICES AND REPORT PERFORMED BY RA UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER ARISING IN
CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHERWISE. YOUR REMEDIES SET FORTH HEREIN ARE
EXCLUSIVE AND ARE YOUR SOLE REMEDIES FOR ANY FAILURE OF RATO COMPLY WITH ITS OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER OR
OTHERWISE. RA SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY
DAMAGES OF ANY KIND, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY LOST PROFITS AND LOST SAVINGS, LOSS OF USE OR INTERRUPTION
OF BUSINESS, HOWEVER CAUSED, WHETHER ARISING IN CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), BREACH OF WARRANTY,
STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHERWISE, EVEN IF RA HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. IN NO EVENT WILL RA
BE LIABLE FOR THE COST OF PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES. RA DISCLAIMS ALL REPRESENTATIONS AND
WARRANTIES WHATSOEVER, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED OR OF ANY NATURE, WITH REGARD TO THE SERVICES AND THE REPORT,
INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

(813) 536-7198 | reserveadvisors.com



Professional Service Conditions - Continued

Report - RA will complete the services in accordance with the Proposal. The Report represents a valid opinion of RA's findings and
recommendations with respect to the reserve study or Milestone Phase |, as applicable, and is deemed complete. RA will consider any additional
information made available to RA within 6 months of issuing the Report and issue a revised Report based on such additional information if a timely
request for a revised Report is made by you. RA retains the right to withhold a revised Report if payment for services was not tendered in a timely
manner. All information received by RA and all files, work papers or documents developed by RA during the course of the engagement shall remain
the property of RA and may be used for whatever purpose it sees fit. RA reserves the right to, and you acknowledge and agree that RA may, use
any data provided by you in connection with the services, or gathered as a result of providing such services, including in connection with creating
and issuing any Report, in a de-identified and aggregated form for RA's business purposes.

Your Obligations - You agree to provide us access to the subject property for an inspection. You agree to provide RA all available, historical
and budgetary information, the governing documents, and other information that we request and deem necessary to complete the Report.
Additionally, you agree to provide historical replacement schedules, utility bills and historical energy usage files that RA requests and deems
necessary to complete the energy benchmarking services, and you agree to provide any utility release(s) reasonably requested by RA permitting
RA to obtain any such data and/or information from any utility representative or other third party. You agree to pay actual attorneys’ fees and any
other costs incurred to collect on any unpaid balance for RA’s services.

Use of Our Report and Your Name - Use of the Report is limited to only the purpose stated herein. You acknowledge that RA is the exclusive
owner of all intellectual property rights in and relating to the Report. You hereby acknowledge that any use or reliance by you on the Report for any
unauthorized purpose is at your own risk and that you will be liable for the consequences of any unauthorized use or distribution of the Report.
Use or possession of the Report by any unauthorized third party is prohibited. The Report in whole or in part is not and cannot be used as a
design specification for design engineering purposes or as an appraisal. You may show the Report in its entirety to the following third parties:
members of your organization (including your directors, officers, tenants and prospective purchasers), your accountants, attorneys, financial
institutions and property managers who need to review the information contained herein, and any other third party who has a right to inspect the
Report under applicable law including, but not limited, to any government entity or agency, or any utility companies. Without the written consent of
RA, you shall not disclose the Report to any other third party. By engaging our services, you agree that the Report contains intellectual property
developed (and owned solely) by RA and agree that you will not reproduce or distribute the Report to any party that conducts reserve studies
without the written consent of RA.

RA will include (and you hereby agree that RA may include) your name in our client lists. RA reserves the right to use (and you hereby agree
that RA may use) property information to obtain estimates of replacement costs, useful life of property elements or otherwise as RA, in its sole
discretion, deems appropriate.

Payment Terms, Due Dates and Interest Charges - The retainer payment for any reserve study, Milestone Phase | inspection, and/or
combined services is due upon execution of this agreement and prior to the inspection by RA, and any balance is due net 30 days from the Report
shipment date. If only energy benchmarking services are performed by RA, then the retainer payment is due upon execution of this agreement and
any balance is due net 30 days from the Report shipment date. In any case, any balance remaining 30 days after delivery of the Report shall
accrue an interest charge of 1.5% per month. Unless this agreement is earlier terminated by RA in the event you breach or otherwise fail to comply
with your obligations under this agreement, RA’s obligations under this agreement shall commence on the date you execute and deliver this
agreement and terminate on the date that is 6 months from the date of delivery of the Report by RA. Notwithstanding anything herein to the
contrary, each provision that by its context and nature should survive the expiration or early termination of this agreement shall so survive,
including, without limitation, any provisions with respect to payment, intellectual property rights, limitations of liability and governing law. We reserve
the right to limit or decline refunds in our sole discretion. Refunds vary based on the applicable facts and circumstances.

Miscellaneous — Neither party shall be liable for any failures or delays in performance due to fire, flood, strike or other labor difficulty, act of
God, act of any governmental authority, riot, embargo, fuel or energy shortage, pandemic, wrecks or delays in transportation, or due to any other
cause beyond such party’s reasonable control; provided, however, that you shall not be relieved from your obligations to make any payment(s) to
RA as and when due hereunder. In the event of a delay in performance due to any such cause, the time for completion or date of delivery will be
extended by a period of time reasonably necessary to overcome the effect of such delay. You may not assign or otherwise transfer this agreement,
in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of RA. RA may freely assign or otherwise transfer this agreement, in whole or in part, without
your prior consent. This agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsin without regard to any principles of conflicts of law that
would apply the laws of another jurisdiction. Any dispute with respect to this agreement shall be exclusively venued in Milwaukee County Circuit
Court or in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Wisconsin. Each party hereto agrees and hereby waives the right to a trial by
jury in any action, proceeding or claim brought by or on behalf of the parties hereto with respect to any matter related to this agreement.

(813) 536-7198 | reserveadvisors.com



Fairway

Townhome Association

January 1, 2025 . Madison, USA

FULL RESERVE STUDY

RESERVE"

ADVISORS

Long-term thinking. Everyday commitment.



RE s E RVE Corporate Office
A Dv | S O R S Reserve Advisors, LLC
735 N. Water Street, Suite 175

Milwaukee, W1 53202

Long-term thinking. Everyday commitment.

Fairway Townhome Association
Madison, USA

Dear Board of Directors of Fairway Townhome Association:

At the direction of the Board that recognizes the need for proper reserve planning, we
have conducted a Full Reserve Study of Fairway Townhome Association in Madison,
USA and submit our findings in this report. The effective date of this study is the date of
our visual, noninvasive inspection, January 1, 2025.

This Full Reserve Study exceeds the Association of Professional Reserve Analysts
(APRA) standards fulfilling the requirements of a “Level | Full Reserve Study.”

An ongoing review by the Board and an Update of this Reserve Study are necessary to
ensure an equitable funding plan since a Reserve Study is a snapshot in time. We
recommend the Board budget for an Update to this Reserve Study in two- to three-years.
We look forward to continuing to help Fairway Townhome Association plan for a
successful future.

As part of our long-term thinking and everyday commitment to our clients, we are available
to answer any questions you may have regarding this study.

Respectfully submitted on January 23: 2025 by:
Reserve Advisors, LLC

Visual Inspection and Report by: RESERVE ADVISORS ENGINEER
Review by: DIRECTOR OF QUALITY ASSURANCE, RS', PRA?

Our report and experience backed by our
Personalized Experience Guarantee.

Our trusted advisors work with you to tailor a
reserve study that ensures clarity on the true cost
of property ownership, providing you with peace of

mind and expert guidance every step of the way.

1 RS (Reserve Specialist) is the reserve provider professional designation of the Community Associations
Institute (CAIl) representing America's more than 300,000 condominium, cooperative and homeowners
associations.

2 PRA (Professional Reserve Analyst) is the professional designation of the Association of Professional
Reserve Analysts. Learn more about APRA at hitp://www.apra-usa.com.

s
APRA e
MEMBER OF . t
Association of Professional Reserve Analysts gsgmm];}sgis y

(800) 221-9882 www.reserveadvisors.com Fax: (414) 272-3663



RESERVE"

ADVISORS

Long-term thinking. Everyday commitment.

NEW TO RESERVE STUDIES?

ACCESS OUR
QUICK START GUIDE

©2023 Reserve Advisors, LLC. All rights reserved.



oD

©® N o o

RESERVE

ADVISORS
Table of Contents
RESERVE STUDY EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .......coomiiiiieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeeeeeeeeas 1.1
RESERVE STUDY REPORT ... ssssssss s s mmmnss s e en s 21
RESERVE EXPENDITURES and FUNDING PLAN........ccccciimimimreeeeeeeeeeeeeee 31
RESERVE COMPONENT DETAIL........ccoooetrerrrisssssmess s e s s sssmssss s 4.1
Exterior Building Elements............ooo 4.1
Gutters and Downspouts, Aluminum ...........ccoouiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e, 4.1
Roofs, Asphalt ShiNGIEs ........cooiiiiie e 4.2
Walls, Fiber Cement Siding and Trim ..o 4.7
LAV 1S 1 =0 S 4.9
Property Site EIements .........oooeiiiiiiee e 4.10
Asphalt Pavement, Repaving ........ccouuiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e 4.10
Concrete Sidewalks and StOOPS......uoieeeieiiieiiiiiieee e 413
o] o AN =Y = | (o N 414
Pond, Erosion Control ... 4.14
Signage, Entrance Monument ... 4.16
Reserve Study Update..........ooooiiiii 417
METHODOLOGY ....ccoiiiiiiiiiicicssnsneeessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssssssssssns 5.1
CREDENTIALS ... cssssrr e s s smsn s mmn s e e e s s mmmmnn s 6.1
DEFINITIONS ... cccseeer e e e s s s s s ssssns s s e s s s ammn e e e e e e s e mmmnn e e e e e nnnan 71

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE CONDITIONS .........ccoiiiiiiirennsnnennssneennns 8.1



RESERVE
ADVISORS

1.RESERVE STUDY EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Client: Fairway Townhome Association (Fairway)
Location: Madison, USA
Reference: 123456

Property Basics: Fairway Townhome Association consists of 34 units in 17 buildings. The
community was built from 2007 to 2013.

Reserve Components Identified: 20 Reserve Components.
Inspection Date: January 1, 2025.

Funding Goal: The Funding Goal of this Reserve Study is to maintain reserves above an
adequate, not excessive threshold during one or more years of significant expenditures. Our
recommended Funding Plan recognizes these threshold funding years in 2030 and 2050 due to
the replacement and subsequent replacement of the asphalt shingle roofs, respectively. In
addition, the Reserve Funding Plan recommends 2055 year end accumulated reserves of
approximately $855,700. We judge this amount of accumulated reserves in 2055 necessary to
fund the likely replacement of the fiber cement siding after 2055. These future needs, although
beyond the limit of the Cash Flow Analysis of this Reserve Study, are reflected in the amount of
accumulated 2055 year end reserves.

Methodology: We use the Cash Flow Method to compute the Reserve Funding Plan. This
method offsets future variable Reserve Expenditures with existing and future stable levels of
reserve funding. Our application of this method also considers:

e Current and future local costs of replacement

e 2.7% anticipated annual rate of return on invested reserves

o 3.3% future Inflation Rate for estimating Future Replacement Costs

Sources for Local Costs of Replacement: Our proprietary database, historical costs and
published sources, i.e., R.S. Means, Incorporated.

Unaudited Cash Status of Reserve Fund:
e $590,000 as of January 1, 2025
e 2025 budgeted Reserve Contributions of $48,500
¢ A potential deficit in reserves might occur by 2030 based upon continuation of the most
recent annual reserve contribution of and the identified Reserve Expenditures.

Project Prioritization: We note anticipated Reserve Expenditures for the next 30 years in the
Reserve Expenditures tables and include a Five-Year Outlook table following the Reserve
Funding Plan in Section 3. We recommend the Association prioritize the following projects in
the next five years based on the conditions identified:
¢ Replacement of the asphalt shingle roofs due to deterioration including loose shingles,
weathered shingles and sheathing deflection
o Repaving as deferral will result in dangerous road conditions and vehicle damage
o Repairs to the et el st osmaisasa s aaicdlantasanatheir guests
e Repairs to the The executive summary puts your
community’s financial roadmap and near-term
priorities front and center, making it easy for
all stakeholders to quickly understand the

community’s financial and physical needs.

Page 1.1 - Executive Summary



RESERVE
ADVISORS

Recommended Reserve Funding: We recommend the following in order to achieve a stable
and equitable Cash Flow Methodology Funding Plan:
e Phased increases of $6,300 each year, from 2026 through 2030
¢ Inflationary increases thereafter through 2055, the limit of this study's Cash Flow Analysis
Initial adjustment in Reserve Contributions of $6,300 represents an average monthly
increase of $15.44 per owner and about a five percent (5.3%) adjustment in the 2025 Total
Budget of $120,000

Fairway
Recommended Reserve Funding Table and Graph

Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve
Year Contributions ($) Balances ($) | Year Contributions ($) Balances ($) | Year Contributions ($) Balances ($)
2026 54,800 682,037 2036 97,100 393,324 2046 134,300 1,488,216
2027 61,100 659,356 2037 100,300 496,320 2047 138,700 1,323,755
2028 67,400 433,183 2038 103,600 584,856 2048 143,300 751,358
2029 73,700 260,315 2039 107,000 678,097 2049 148,000 425,346
2030 80,000 89,480 2040 110,500 808,397 2050 152,900 84,693
2031 82,600 108,224 2041 114,100 945,864 2051 157,900 218,793
2032 85,300 161,698 2042 117,900 1,034,395 | 2052 163,100 336,184
2033 88,100 225,130 2043 121,800 1,164,005 | 2053 168,500 516,036
2034 91,000 313,334 | 2044 125,800 1,308,954 | 2054 174,100 687,081
2035 94,000 400,278 2045 130,000 1,402,811 2055 179,800 855,729
2000
1500
1000
%’ ﬁ
S 500
»n
S
8
— 0
»
-500
-1000
) Al ) N %) \3) 3\ ) N\ %) ) A ) A %) )
?\(L@* g q’Q‘L 1%’5 qgs?’ 1%’5 PR 1%3 r@“ fLQb‘ q&b‘ rLQb‘ fLQb‘ 1%5 1%6 1%6

e Reserve Expenditures
mmm Recommended Reserve Contributions
—Year-End Reserve Balances

Threshold reserve funding ensures
stable and the most equitable
contributions over time, while reducing

the risk of inadequate reserve funds
over the next 30 years.

Page 1.2 - Executive Summary



RESERVE
ADVISORS

2.RESERVE STUDY REPORT

At the direction of the Board that recognizes the need for proper reserve planning, we
have conducted a Full Reserve Study of

Fairway Townhome Association

Madison, USA

and submit our findings in this report. The effective date of this study is the date of our
visual, noninvasive inspection, January 1, 2025.

We present our findings and recommendations in the following report sections and
spreadsheets:

¢ Identification of Property - Segregates all property into several areas of
responsibility for repair or replacement

o Reserve Expenditures - Identifies reserve components and related
quantities, useful lives, remaining useful lives and future reserve
expenditures during the next 30 years

¢ Reserve Funding Plan - Presents the recommended
Reserve Contributions and year-end Reserve Balances for the next 30
years

¢ Five-Year Outlook - Identifies reserve components and anticipated
reserve expenditures during the first five years

e Reserve Component Detail - Describes the reserve components,
includes photographic documentation of the condition of various property
elements, describes our recommendations for repairs or replacement,
and includes detailed solutions and procedures for replacements for the
benefit of current and future board members

¢ Methodology - Lists the national standards, methods and procedures
used to develop the Reserve Study

¢ Definitions - Contains definitions of terms used in the Reserve Study,
consistent with national standards

¢ Professional Service Conditions - Describes Assumptions and
Professional Service Conditions

e Credentials and Resources

Page 2.1 - Report



RESERVE
ADVISORS
IDENTIFICATION OF PROPERTY

Our investigation includes Reserve Components or property elements as set forth in your
Declaration or which were identified as part of your request for proposed services. The
Expenditure tables in Identification of property and the  NISSCVARCUEEIENEE
begins by segregating responsibility matrix on the following responsibility for repair
and replacement. page(s) convey ownership and clarify
the funding mechanism for each
asset within the community.

Our process of identi the management team
understand whether r¢ d certain replacements
and assists in preparation of the annual budget. We derive these segregated classes of
property from our review of the information provided by the Association and through
conversations with Management and the Board. These classes of property include:

Reserve Components

Long-Lived Property Elements

Operating Budget Funded Repairs and Replacements
Property Maintained by Owners

Property Maintained by City of Madison

We advise the Board to conduct an annual review of these classes of property to confirm
its policy concerning the manner of funding, i.e., from reserves or the operating budget.
Reserve Components are defined by CAl as property elements with:

e Fairway responsibility
e Limited useful life expectancies

e Predictable remaining useful life expectancies
¢ Replacement cost above a minimum threshold

The following tables depict the items excluded from the Reserve Expenditure plan:

Page 2.2 - Report



Reserve Advisors, LLC

Excluded Components

for
Fairway
Townhome Association
Madison, USA

Operating Budget Components

Repairs normally funded through the Operating Budget and Expenditures less than $3,000 (These relatively minor expenditures have a limited effect on
the recommended Reserve Contributions.)

The operating budget provides money for the repair and replacement of certain Reserve Components. The Association may develop independent criteria
for use of operating and reserve funds.

* Benches

+ Catch Basins, Landscape

* Irrigation System, Controller
+ Landscape

+ Paint Finishes, Touch Up

* Shutters, Vinyl

Long-Lived Components

These elements may not have predictable Remaining Useful Lives or their replacement may occur

beyond the scope of this study. The operating budget should fund infrequent repairs. Funding

untim_ely or unexpgctgd replacement; from reserves wiII_necessitate in_creases to _Reservg . Useful Life Estimated Cost
Contributions. Periodic updates of this Reserve Study will help determine the merits of adjusting the

Reserve Funding Plan.

* Electrical Systems, Common to 70+ N/A

+ Foundations Indeterminate N/A

* Pipes, Subsurface Utilities to 85+ N/A

+ Structural Frames Indeterminate N/A

* Walls, Fiber Cement Siding, Replacement! to 50 $651,000

" Includes Soffit and Fascia

Owners Responsibility Components

Certain items have been designated as the responsibility of the Owners to repair or replace at their cost, including items billed back.

* Decks

+ Electrical Systems (Including Circuit Protection Panels)

+ Garage Doors

* Heating, Ventilating and Air Conditioning (HVAC) Units

* Interiors

* Patios

* Pipes (Within Units)

« Stoops (However, at the direction of the Board, we include reserve funds for partial replacements in coordination with sidewalks.)
* Windows and Doors

Printed on 3/10/2025 Exclusions Lists - Section 2 - 1 of 2




Reserve Advisors, LLC

Excluded Components

for
Fairway
Townhome Association
Madison, USA

City of Madison Responsibility Components

Certain items have been designated

as the responsibility of City of Madison to repair or replace.

* Fences, Split Rail, North Perimeter
+ Walking Path

Printed on 3/10/2025

Exclusions Lists - Section 2 - 2 of 2




RESERVE
ADVISORS

3.RESERVE EXPENDITURES and FUNDING PLAN

The tables following this introduction present:

Reserve Expenditures
Line item numbers
Total quantities
Quantities replaced per phase (in a single year)
Reserve component inventory
Estimated first year of event (i.e., replacement, application, etc.)
Life analysis showing
— useful life
— remaining useful life
e 2025 local cost of replacement
— Per unit
— Per phase
— Replacement of total quantity
e Percentage of future expenditures anticipated during the next 30 years
e Schedule of estimated future costs for each reserve component including
inflation

Reserve Funding Plan

Reserves at the beginning of each year

Total recommended reserve contributions
Estimated interest earned from invested reserves
Anticipated expenditures by year

Anticipated reserves at year end

Predicted reserves based on current funding level

Five-Year Outlook
e Line item numbers
e Reserve component inventory of only the expenditures anticipated to
occur within the first five years
e Schedule of estimated future costs for each reserve component
anticipated to occur within the first five years

The purpose of a Reserve Study is to provide an opinion of reasonable annual
Reserve Contributions. Prediction of exact timing and costs of minor Reserve
Expenditures typically will not significantly affect the 30-year cash flow
analysis. Adjustments to the times and/or costs of expenditures may not always result in
an adjustment in the recommended Reserve Contributions.

Financial statements prepared by your association, by you or others might rely in
part on information contained in this section. For your convenience, we have provided
an electronic data file containing the tables of Reserve Expenditures and Reserve
Funding Plan.

Page 3.1 - Reserve Expenditures and Funding Plan



Reserve Advisors, LLC

Years 2025 to 2040
RESERVE EXPEND'TURES Explanatory Notes:
1) 3.3% is the estimated Inflation Rate for estimating Future Replacement Costs.
Fairway 2) FY2025 is Fiscal Year beginning January 1, 2025 and ending December 31, 2025.
Townhome Association 3) 2056+ indicates a component which is considered long-lived
Madison, USA
Estimated Life Analysis, Costs, $ Percentage
Total PerPhase 1st Year of Years Unit Per Phase Total of Future RUL=0 1 2 3 4 5 6 8 14 15
Quantity Quantity Reserve Component Inventory Event  Useful Remaining  (2025) (2025) (2025)  Expenditures FY2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2033 2039 2040
Exterior Building Elements
34 34 Each Chimney Caps, Metal 2033 to 25 8 500.00 17,000 17,000 0.6% 22,042
6,250 2,083 Linear Feet  Gutters and Downspouts, Aluminum, Phased 2028 15t020 3to5 14.50 30,208 90,625 8.0% 33,299 34,398 35,533
68 68 Each Light Fixtures 2032 to 25 7 90.00 6,120 6,120 0.2%
1,100 367 Squares Roofs, Asphalt Shingles, Phased 2028 15t020 3to5 510.00 187,002 561,000 49.5% 206,133 212,935 219,962
34 34 Units Walls, Fiber Cement Siding and Trim, Paint Finishes 2026 81010 1 1,300.00 44,200 44,200 5.2% 45,659
31,000 10,333 Square Feet Walls, Siding, Fiber Cement, Replacement, Phased (Incl. Soffit and Fascia) 2056 to50 31to 30+ 21.00 217,000 651,000 0.0%
34 34 Units Walls, Trim and Railings, Paint Finishes, Interim 2032 4t06 7 650.00 22,100 22,100 3.2%
. . Age, condition, history of repairs and
30,200 30,200 Square Feet Walls, Masonry, Inspections and Repairs 2031 10t0 15 6 1.25 37,750 37,750 3.1% maintenance, and local conditions 45,869
form the foundation for timing of
each capital project.
Property Site Elements
6,650 6,650 Square Yards Asphalt Pavement, Crack Repair, Patch and Seal Coat 2031 3to5 6 1.80 11,970 11,970 4.1% 14,544 18,858
6,305 3,153 Square Yards Asphalt Pavement, Mill and Overlay, Remaining, Phased 2027 15020 2to3 17.50 55,169 110,338 3.2% 58,870 60,813
6,650 3,325 Square Yards Asphalt Pavement, Total Replacement, Phased 2047 151020 221023 37.50 124,688 249,375 13.8%
13 7 Each Catch Basins, Inspections and Capital Repairs, Phased 2027 15020 2to3 1,100.00 7,150 14,300 1.2% 7,630 7,881
6,200 372 Linear Feet  Concrete Curbs, Partial o 2027 to65  2to 30+ 45.00 16,740 279,000 1.4% 17,863
O
5,670 331 Square Feet Concrete Sidewalks and Stoops, Partial &S ‘5\‘\0\6'\0 8 2029 to65  4to 30+ 22.50 7,442 127,575 21% 8,474 11,724
AL e
1500 1,500 Square Feet lIrrigation System, Entrance Q\e\%‘\ o9 W « o 2048 to 40 23 2.15 3,225 3,225 0.2%
W ot S©
12 12 Each Light Poles and Fixtures (‘X\e 5%.:\ %(e‘\ D s 2036 to 25 1 3,000.00 36,000 36,000 1.4%
eV ‘b,c
3 3 Each Mailbox Stations et AC 2 2033 to 25 8 2,000.00 6,000 6,000 0.2% 7,780
N
1 1 Each Pond, Aerator eV 2027 10to 15 2 10,000.00 10,000 10,000 0.7% 10,671
620 124 Linear Feet  Pond, Erosion Control, Partial 2027 to10  2to 30+ 50.00 6,200 31,000 0.8% 6,616
2,300 690 Square Yards Pond, Sediment Removal, Partial 2038 to30 1310 30+ 28.00 19,320 64,400 0.8%
1 1 Allowance Signage, Entrance Monument, Renovation 2031 151020 6 5,000.00 5,000 5,000 0.5% 6,075
Anticipated Expenditures, By Year ($3,765,213 over 30 years) 45659 101,650 308,125 255,806 255494 66,489 29,822 30,582 0
Printed on 3/10/2025 Expenditures - Section 3 - 1 of 2



Reserve Advisors, LLC

RESERVE EXPENDITURES

Years 2041 to 2055

Fairway
Townhome Association
Madison, USA
Estimated Life Analysis, Costs, $ Percentage
Line Total PerPhase 1st Year of Years Unit Per Phase Total of Future 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30
ltem  Quantity Quantity Units Reserve Component Inventory Event  Useful Remaining  (2025) (2025) (2025)  Expenditures 2041 2042 2043 2044 2045 2046 2047 2048 2049 2050 2051 2052 2053 2054 2055
Exterior Building Elements
1.140 34 34 Each Chimney Caps, Metal 2033 to 25 8 500.00 17,000 17,000 0.6%
1.240 6,250 2,083 Linear Feet  Gutters and Downspouts, Aluminum, Phased 2028 15t020 3to5 14.50 30,208 90,625 8.0% 63,743 65,847 68,020
1.260 68 68 Each Light Fixtures 2032 to 25 7 90.00 6,120 6,120 0.2%
1.280 1,100 367 Squares Roofs, Asphalt Shingles, Phased 2028 15t020 3to5 510.00 187,002 561,000 49.5% 394,596 407,618 421,069
1.759 34 34 Units Walls, Fiber Cement Siding and Trim, Paint Finishes 2026 81010 1 1,300.00 44,200 44,200 5.2% 87,404
1.760 31,000 10,333 Square Feet Walls, Siding, Fiber Cement, Replacement, Phased (Incl. Soffit and Fascia) 2056 to50 31to 30+ 21.00 217,000 651,000 0.0% . .
You receive the expenditure and
1.761 34 34 Units Walls, Trim and Railings, Paint Finishes, Interim 2032 4106 7 650.00 22,100 22,100 3.2% 38,379 funding plan tables in Excel. 53,101
1820 30200 30,200 Square Feet Walls, Masonry, Inspections and Repairs 2031 10to15 6 125 37,750 37,750 3.1% Management and the Board can easily
adjust project costs, timelines, and
annual funding and see the results in
Property Site Elements real-time.
4.020 6,650 6,650 Square Yards Asphalt Pavement, Crack Repair, Patch and Seal Coat 2031 3to5 6 1.80 11,970 11,970 4.1% 21,473 24,451 27,842 31,703
4.040 6,305 3,153 Square Yards Asphalt Pavement, Mill and Overlay, Remaining, Phased 2027 15t020 2to3 17.50 55,169 110,338 3.2%
4.045 6,650 3,325 Square Yards Asphalt Pavement, Total Replacement, Phased 2047 151020 221023 37.50 124,688 249,375 13.8% 254,701 263,106
4.100 13 7 Each Catch Basins, Inspections and Capital Repairs, Phased 2027 15020 2to3 1,100.00 7,150 14,300 1.2% 14,605 15,087
4110 6,200 372 Linear Feet  Concrete Curbs, Partial N 2027 to65  2to 30+ 45.00 16,740 279,000 1.4% 34,195
o
4140 5,670 331 Square Feet Concrete Sidewalks and Stoops, Partial 0$\% %X\\e@ 8 2029 to65  4to 30+ 22.50 7,442 127,575 21% 13,791 16,221 19,081
QU ’
4.420 1,500 1,500 Square Feet Irrigation System, Entrance \e“ > rAQQ\\G « o 2048 to 40 23 2.15 3,225 3,225 0.2% 6,805
\9 <
Q S
4.560 12 12 Each Light Poles and Fixtures (‘\0@ S?f(\%@“ w@\‘e 2036 to 25 1 3,000.00 36,000 36,000 1.4%
eV ‘&c‘
4.600 3 3 Each Mailbox Stations et AC 2 2033 to 25 8 2,000.00 6,000 6,000 0.2%
W\

4.700 1 1 Each Pond, Aerator eV 2027 10to15 2 10,000.00 10,000 10,000 0.7% 17,366
4710 620 124 Linear Feet  Pond, Erosion Control, Partial 2027 to10  2to 30+ 50.00 6,200 31,000 0.8% 12,665
4.730 2,300 690 Square Yards Pond, Sediment Removal, Partial 2038 to30 1310 30+ 28.00 19,320 64,400 0.8%
4.800 1 1 Allowance  Signage, Entrance Monument, Renovation 2031 1510 20 6 5,000.00 5,000 5,000 0.5% 11,258

Anticipated Expenditures, By Year ($3,765,213 over 30 years) 0 55,746 21,473 13,791 72,264 87,404 340,617 743,338 489,686 500,347 27,842 53,101 0 19,081 31,703

Printed on 3/10/2025 Expenditures - Section 3 - 2 of 2



Reserve Advisors, LLC Page 1 of 1

RESERVE FUN DI NG PLAN Our reports evaluate current

reserve funds and return on

investments in order to create

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS the most stable recommended
annual reserve contributions.

Fairway
Townhome Association Individual Reserve Budgets & Cash Flows for the Next 30 Years
Madison, USA FY2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040
Reserves at Beginning of Year (Note 1) 590,000 655,085 682,037 659,356 433,183 260,315 89,480 108,224 161,698 225,130 313,334 400,278 393,324 496,320 584,856 678,097
Total Recommended Reserve Contributions (Note 2) 48,500 54,800 61,100 67,400 73,700 80,000 82,600 85,300 88,100 91,000 94,000 97,100 100,300 103,600 107,000 110,500
Estimated Interest Earned, During Year (Note 3) 16,585 17,811 17,868 14,553 9,238 4,659 2,633 3,595 5,153 7,172 9,505 10,571 11,850 14,401 16,823 19,800
Anticipated Expenditures, By Year 0 (45,659) (101,650) (308,125) (255,806) (255,494)  (66,489)  (35421)  (29,822) (9,967)  (16,561) (114,625) (9,154)  (29,465)  (30,582) 0
Anticipated Reserves at Year End $655,085 $682,037 $659,356 $433,183  $260,315 $89480 $108,224 $161.698 $225.130 $313.334  $400278 $393,324 $496,320 $584.856 $678,097  $808,397
(NOTE 5)
(continued) Individual Reserve Budgets & Cash Flows for the Next 30 Years, Continued
2041 2042 2043 2044 2045 2046 2047 2048 2049 2050 2051 2052 2053 2054 2055
Reserves at Beginning of Year 808,397 945864 1,034,395 1,164,005 1,308,954 1,402,811 1488216 1,323,755 751,358 425,346 84,693 218,793 336,184 516,036 687,081
Total Recommended Reserve Contributions 114,100 117,900 121,800 125,800 130,000 134,300 138,700 143,300 148,000 152,900 157,900 163,100 168,500 174,100 179,800
Estimated Interest Earned, During Year 23,367 26,377 29,283 32,940 36,121 38,509 37,456 27,641 15,674 6,794 4,042 7,392 11,352 16,026 20,551
Anticipated Expenditures, By Year 0 (55,746)  (21,473)  (13,791)  (72,264)  (87,404) (340,617) (743,338) (489,686) (500,347)  (27,842)  (53,101) 0 (19,081)  (31,703)
Anticipated Reserves at Year End $945.864 $1,034,395 $1,164,005 $1,308,954 $1.402811 $1.488216 $1,323,755 §$751,358  $425,346 $84,693 $218,793 $336,184  $516,036 $687,081  $855,729
(NOTE 5) (NOTE 4)
Interested in modeling alternate funding
recommendations? The Excel
spreadsheets included in your report let
Explanatory Notes: you change annual reserve
1) Year 2025 starting reserves are as of January 1, 2025; FY2025 starts January 1, 2025 and ends December 31, 2025. contributions, interest rates, and
2) Reserve Contributions for 2025 are budgeted; 2026 is the first year of recommended contributions. inflation when creating alternate
3) 2.7% is the estimated annual rate of return on invested reserves. funding scenarios.

4) Accumulated year 2055 ending reserves consider the need to fund for replacement of the fiber cement siding shortly after 2055, and the age, size, overall condition and complexity of the property.
5) Threshold Funding Years (reserve balance at critical point).

Printed on 3/10/2025 Funding Plan - Section 3



Reserve Advisors, LLC *Refer to the Reserve Expenditures pages
for the full list of reserve elements

FIVE-YEAR OUTLOOK
Fairway
Townhome Association
Madison, USA
Line RUL=0 1 2 3 4 5
Item Reserve Component Inventory FY2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Exterior Building Elements

1.240 Gutters and Downspouts, Aluminum, Phased 33299 34,398 35,533
1.280 Roofs, Asphalt Shingles, Phased 206,133 212,935 219,962
1.759 Walls, Fiber Cement Siding and Trim, Paint Finishes 45,659

Age, condition, history of repairs and
maintenance, and local conditions

Property Site Elements form the foundation for timing of each
capital project.

4.040 Asphalt Pavement, Mill and Overlay, Remaining, Phased

4100 Catch Basins, Inspections and Capital Repairs, Phased 7,630 7,881
4110 Concrete Curbs, Partial 17,863
4140 Concrete Sidewalks and Stoops, Partial 8,474
4.700 Pond, Aerator 10,671
4.710 Pond, Erosion Control, Partial 6,616
Anticipated Expenditures, By Year ($966,734 over 5 years) 0 45659 101,650 308,125 255,806 255,494

Printed on 3/10/2025 Five-Year Outlook - 1 of 1



RESERVE
ADVISORS

4. RESERVE COMPONENT DETAIL

The Reserve Component Detail of this Full Reserve Study includes
enhanced solutions and procedures for select significant components. This section
describes the Reserve Components, documents specific problems and condition
assessments, and may include detailed solutions and procedures for necessary capital
repairs and replacements for the benefit of current and future board members. We advise
the Board use this information to help define the scope and procedures for repair or
replacement when soliciting bids or proposals from contractors. However, the Report in
whole or part is not and should not be used as a design specification or design
engineering service.

Exterior Building Elements

Gutters and Downspouts, Aluminum

Line Item: 1.240

Quantity: Approximately 6,250 linear feet of aluminum five-inch seamless gutters and
two-inch by three-inch downspouts

History: Original

Condition: Good overall with isolated dents and fastener rust evident

Fastener rust evident Minor dented aluminum gutter section

Get more from your reserve study. Detailed
condition assessments provide valuable
insights for management and your board,

helping you evaluate project bids, understand
property conditions with photo-based

documentation, reduce total cost of ownership
through timely maintenance, and more.

Narrative throughout report reduced for brevity

Page 4.1 — Reserve Component Detail



RESERVE
ADVISORS
Useful Life: 15-to 20-years

Component Detail Notes: The size of the gutter is determined by the roof's watershed
area, a roof pitch factor and the rainfall intensity number of the Association's region. We
recommend sloping gutters 1/16 inch per linear foot and providing fasteners a maximum
of every three feet.

Downspouts can drain 100 square feet of roof area per one square inch of downspout
cross sectional area. We recommend the use of downspout extensions and splash blocks
at the downspout discharge to direct storm water away from the foundations.
Downspouts that discharge directly onto roofs cause premature deterioration of the roofs
due to the high concentration of storm water. We recommend either routing these
downspouts directly to the gutters of the lower

roof or distributing the ¢ Preventative maintenance

recommendations help you
effectively maintain your assets,
maximize their useful life, and
reduce the total cost of ownership.

The useful life of gutter:
Coordinated replaceme
possibility of damage tc

e asphalt shingle roofs.
price and minimize the
separate replacements.

Preventative Maintenance Notes: \We note the following select recommended
preventative maintenance activities to maximize the remaining useful life:

e Semi-annually:

o Clean out debris and leaves that collect in the gutters
Repair and refasten any loose gutter fasteners
Repair and seal any leaking seams or end caps
Verify downspouts discharge away from foundations

o O O

Priority/Criticality: Defer only upon opinion of independent professional or engineer

Expenditure Detail Notes: Expenditure timing and costs are depicted in the Reserve
Expenditures table in Section 3.

Roofs, Asphalt Shingles

Line Item: 1.280
Quantity: Approximately 1,100 squares’
History: Original

Condition: Fair overall with several locations of weathered, lifted, curled and loose
shingles, granular loss at shingles, and sheathing deflection evident from our visual
inspection from the ground. Management and the Board inform us of a history of leaks
near the chimney and roof intersections but recent repairs including flashing remediation
were completed.

' We quantify the roof area in squares where one square is equal to 100 square feet of surface area.

Narrative throughout report reduced for brevity

Page 4.2 — Reserve Component Detail



RESERVE
ADVISORS

Detailed photographs document

early signs of problems so you can
address them before they escalate.

Asphalt shingle roof Flashing detail at chimney

Loose shingles at Unit 100

L

Curled shingles at Unit 300 Weathered shingles at Unit 400

Narrative throughout report reduced for brevity

Page 4.3 — Reserve Component Detail



RESERVE

ADVISORS

Weathered shingles at Unit 500 Granular loss evident at shingles at Unit 600

Sheathing deflection evident at Unit 700
Useful Life: 15-to 20-years

Component Detail Notes: The existing roof assembly comprises the following:

Laminate shingles

Boston style ridge caps

Soffit and ridge vents

Metal drip edge

Open valleys with metal W flashing

Insulation and ventilation are two major components of a sloped roof system. Together,
proper insulation and ventilation help to control attic moisture and maintain an energy
efficient building. Both insulation and ventilation prevent moisture buildup which can
cause wood rot, mold and mildew growth, warp sheathing, deteriorate shingles, and
eventually damage building interiors. Sufficient insulation helps to minimize the quantity
of moisture that enters the attic spaces and adequate ventilation helps to remove any
moisture that enters the attic spaces. These two roof system components also help to
reduce the amount of energy that is required to heat and cool a building. Proper attic
insulation minimizes heat gain and heat loss between the residential living spaces and

Narrative throughout report reduced for brevity

Page 4.4 — Reserve Component Detail



RESERVE
ADVISORS

attic spaces. This reduces energy consumption year-round. Proper attic ventilation
removes excessive heat from attic spaces that can radiate into residential living spaces
and cause air conditioners to work harder. Properly installed attic insulation and
ventilation work together to maximize the useful life of sloped roof systems.

In addition to moisture control and energy conservation, proper attic insulation and
ventilation are essential components to prevent the formation of ice dams. Ice dams
occur when warm air accumulates at the peak of an attic while the roof eaves remain
cold. Warm air from the attic melts the snow at the ridge of the roof and the water runs
down the slope of the roof. At the cold roof eaves, the water refreezes and forms a buildup
of snow and ice. This buildup often traps water that can prematurely deteriorate asphalt
shingles and ultimately seep under the shingles and cause water damage to the roof deck
and building interiors. Proper insulation minimizes the amount of heat that enters attic
spaces in the winter and adequate ventilation helps to remove any heat that enters the
attic spaces. Together, these components prevent ice dams with a cold roof deck that
melts snow and ice evenly.

The Association should periodically ensure that the vents are clear of debris and are not
blocked from above by attic insulation. If the soffit vents are blocked from above, the
Association should install polystyrene vent spaces or baffles between the roof joists at
these locations to ensure proper ventilation. The Fairway should fund this ongoing
maintenance through the operating budget.

Certain characteristics of condition govern the times of replacement. Replacement of an
asphalt shingle roof becomes necessary when there are multiple or recurring leaks and
when the shingles begin to cup, curl and lift. These conditions are indications that the
asphalt shingle roof is near the end of its useful life. Even if the shingles are largely
watertight, the infiltration of water in one area can lead to permanent damage to the
underlying roof sheathing. This type of deterioration requires replacement of saturated
sections of sheathing and greatly increases the cost of roof replacement. Roof leaks may
occur from interrelated roof system components, i.e., flashings. Therefore, the warranty
period, if any, on the asphalt shingles, may exceed the useful life of the roof system.

Warranties are an indication of product quality and are not a product guarantee. Asphalt
shingle product warranties vary from 20- to 50-years and beyond. However, the scope is
usually limited to only the material cost of the shingles as caused by manufacturing
defects. Warranties may cover defects such as thermal splitting, granule loss, cupping,
and curling. Labor cost is rarely included in the remedy so if roof materials fail, the labor
to tear off and install new shingles is extra. Other limitations of warranties are exclusions
for "incidental and consequential" damages resulting from age, hurricanes, hail storms,
ice dams, severe winds, tornadoes, earthquakes, etc. There are some warranties which
offer no dollar limit for replacement at an additional cost (effectively an insurance policy)
but again these warranties also have limits and may not cover all damages other than a
product defect. We recommend a review of the manufacturers’ warranties as part of the
evaluation of competing proposals to replace a roof system. This evaluation should
identify the current costs of remedy if the roof were to fail in the near term future. A
comparison of the costs of remedy to the total replacement cost will assist in judging the
merits of the warranties.

Narrative throughout report reduced for brevity

Page 4.5 — Reserve Component Detail



RESERVE
ADVISORS

The following cross-sectional schematic illustrates a typical asphalt shingle roof system
although it may not reflect the actual configuration at The Fairway:

ROOF SCHEMATIC

Asphalt Shingles
Fe|t Pcper \
lce and Water Shield

3' Minimum
Roof Sheathing

Rafter

Insulation Baffle

Drip Edge

Gutter
Fascia

Vented Soffit

Exterior Applications /

Building Paper

Insulation

Interior Applications

Wall Sheathing

© Reserve Advisors, Inc.

Contractors use one of two methods for replacement for sloped roofs, either an
overlayment or a tear-off. Overlayment is the application of new shingles over an existing
roof. However, there are many disadvantages to overlayment including hidden defects
of the underlying roof system, absorption of more heat resulting in accelerated
deterioration of the new and old shingles, and an uneven visual appearance. Therefore,
we recommend only the tear-off method of replacement. The tear-off method of
replacement includes removal of the existing shingles, flashings if required and
underlayments.

The Association should plan to coordinate the replacement of gutters and downspouts
with the adjacent roofs. This will result in the most economical unit price and minimize
the possibility of damage to other roof components as compared to separate
replacements.

Preventative Maintenance Notes: \We recommend the Association maintain a service
and inspection contract with a qualified professional and record all documentation of
repairs conducted. We note the following select recommended preventative maintenance
activities to maximize the remaining useful life:

e Annually:
o Record any areas of water infiltration, flashing deterioration,
damage or loose shingles

Narrative throughout report reduced for brevity

Page 4.6 — Reserve Component Detail



RESERVE
ADVISORS

o Inspect for ice dams and implement repairs as needed if issues
are reoccurring
o Trim tree branches that are near or in contact with roof
e As-needed:
o Ensure proper ventilation and verify vents are clear of debris and
not blocked from attic insulation

Priority/Criticality: Defer only upon opinion of independent professional or engineer

Expenditure Detail Notes: Expenditure timing and costs are depicted in the Reserve
Expenditures table in Section 3. We base our cost on replacement with standard
laminate Class A 240-260-pounds per square shingles.

Walls, Fiber Cement Siding and Trim

Line Items: 1.759 through 1.761

Quantity: Approximately 31,000 square feet of fiber cement siding and composite wood
trim, and 160 linear feet of wood railings and associated wood columns at the front stoops.
This quantity excludes the aluminum soffit and fascia.

History: The finish at the fiber cement siding is original, and the trim and railings were
painted in 2017.

Condition:  Fair overall with locations of peeling finish, discoloration, sealant
deterioration, wood rot and cracks evident

Fiber cement siding Sealant deterioration and peeling finish at
fiber cement, Unit 100

Narrative throughout report reduced for brevity

Page 4.7 — Reserve Component Detail



RESERVE

ADVISORS

Discolored finish at Unit 200 Peeling paint finish at Unit 300

Isolated siding damage at Unit 600 Isolated fiber cement crack at Unit 700

Useful Life: Four- to six-years for the trim and railings, and 8- to 10-years for the fiber
cement siding

Component Detail Notes: Correct and complete preparation of the surface before
application of the paint finish maximizes the useful life of the paint finish and surface. The

Narrative throughout report reduced for brevity

Page 4.8 — Reserve Component Detail



RESERVE
ADVISORS

contractor should remove all loose, peeled or blistered paint before application of the new
paint finish. The contractor should then power wash the surface to remove all dirt or
chalking of the prior paint finish.

Priority/Criticality: Defer only upon opinion of independent professional or engineer

Expenditure Detail Notes: Expenditure timing and costs are depicted in the Reserve
Expenditures table in Section 3. We assume the following activities per event at the
siding, trim and railings every 10 years, and at the interim events for the trim and railings:

¢ Paint finish applications

¢ Replacement of 600 square feet, or up to two percent (2%), of the siding
and trim (The exact amount of material in need of replacement will depend
on the actual future conditions and desired appearance. We recommend
replacement wherever holes, cracks and deterioration impair the ability of
the material to prevent water infiltration.)

¢ Replacement of sealants as needed

Walls, Masonry

Line Item: 1.820

Quantity: Approximately 30,200 square feet of stone masonry veneer at the walls and
chimneys

History: The Association replaced a partial elevation at one unit in recent years. The
remaining masonry is original with minimal repairs evident.

Condition: Good overall with limited locations of cracks, mortar deterioration and water
infiltration evident.

Flashing detail above window Stone masonry at chimney

Narrative throughout report reduced for brevity

Page 4.9 — Reserve Component Detail



RESERVE
ADVISORS

—

[

Efflorescence and evidence of water Mortar deterioration at Unit 200
infiltration at Unit 100

Useful Life: The Association should anticipate inspection and repairs to the masonry
veneer every 10- to 15-years.

Priority/Criticality: Defer only upon opinion of independent professional or engineer

Expenditure Detail Notes: Expenditure timing and costs are depicted in the Reserve
Expenditures table in Section 3. We assume a complete inspection of all the masonry
veneer, repointing of up to four percent (4%) and replacement of a limited amount of stone
per event.

Property Site Elements

Asphalt Pavement, Repaving

Line Items: 4.040 and 4.045
Quantity: Approximately 6,650 square yards of streets and driveways

History: Original with the exception of 345 square yards at Units 500-504 and the
adjacent street which was milled and overlaid in 2020

Condition: Fair overall with alligator cracks, centerline deterioration, raveling, settlement
and previous patch repairs evident

Narrative throughout report reduced for brevity

Page 4.10 — Reserve Component Detail



RESERVE

ADVISORS

Recent asphalt pavement repairs near Centerline cracks and deterioration
community entrance

Pavement raveling and onset of potholes Alligator cracks adjacent to recent patch
repair

Asphalt pavement at driveways Cracks at Unit 100
Useful Life: 15-to 20-years

Component Detail Notes: The initial installation of asphalt uses at least two lifts, or two
separate applications of asphalt, over the base course. The first lift is the binder course.

Narrative throughout report reduced for brevity

Page 4.11 — Reserve Component Detail



RESERVE
ADVISORS

The second lift is the wearing course. The wearing course comprises a finer aggregate
for a smoother, more watertight finish.

The following diagram depicts the typical components although it may not reflect the
actual configuration at The Fairway:

ASPHALT DIAGRAM

Sealcoat or Wearing Surface

Asphalt Overlay Not fo Exceed
1.5 inch Thickness per Lift or Layer

Original Pavement Inspected and
milled until sound pavement is found,
uvsually comprised of two layers

Compacted Crushed Stone
or Aggregate Base

Subbase of Undisturbed
Native Soils Compacted to
95% dry density

© Rererve Advisers, Inc.

The manner of repaving is either a mill and overlay or total replacement. A mill and
overlay is a method of repaving where cracked, worn and failed pavement is mechanically
removed or milled until sound pavement is found. A new layer of asphalt is overlaid atop
the remaining base course of pavement. Total replacement includes the removal of all
existing asphalt down to the base course of aggregate and native soil followed by the
application of two or more new lifts of asphalt. We recommend mill and overlayment on
asphalt pavement that exhibits normal deterioration and wear. We recommend total
replacement of asphalt pavement that exhibits severe deterioration, inadequate drainage,
pavement that has been overlaid multiple times in the past or where the configuration
makes overlayment not possible. Based on the apparent visual condition and
configuration of the asphalt pavement, we recommend the mill and overlay method for
initial repaving followed by the total replacement method for subsequent repaving at The
Fairway.

Preventative Maintenance Notes: \We note the following select recommended
preventative maintenance activities to maximize the remaining useful life:

e Annually:
o Inspect for settlement, large cracks and trip hazards, and ensure
proper drainage
o Repair areas which could cause vehicular damage such as
potholes

Narrative throughout report reduced for brevity

Page 4.12 — Reserve Component Detail



RESERVE
ADVISORS
e As needed:
o Perform crack repairs and patching as needed

Priority/Criticality: Defer only upon opinion of independent professional or engineer

Expenditure Detail Notes: Expenditure timing and costs are depicted in the Reserve
Expenditures table in Section 3. Our cost for milling and overlayment includes area
patching of up to fifteen percent (15%).

Concrete Sidewalks and Stoops

Line Item: 4.140
Quantity: Approximately 5,670 square feet

Condition: Good to fair overall with cracks, spalled concrete, and history of settlement
and previous mud jacking evident

Spalled concrete sidewalk at Unit 100 Spalled concrete sidewalk at Unit 200

Useful Life: Up to 65 years although interim deterioration of areas is common

Preventative Maintenance Notes: \We note the following select recommended
preventative maintenance activities to maximize the remaining useful life:

e Annually:
o Inspect and repair major cracks, spalls and trip hazards
o Mark with orange safety paint prior to replacement or repair
o Repair or perform concrete leveling in areas in immediate need
of repair or possible safety hazard

Priority/Criticality: Per Board discretion

Expenditure Detail Notes: Expenditure timing and costs are depicted in the Reserve
Expenditures table in Section 3. We estimate that up to 1,980 square feet of concrete

Narrative throughout report reduced for brevity

Page 4.13 — Reserve Component Detail



RESERVE
ADVISORS
sidewalks, or thirty-five percent (34.9%) of the total, will require replacement during the

next 30 years.

Pond, Aerator

Line Item: 4.700
Quantity: One aerator
History: Original to 2008 with the exception of the LED lighting which dates to 2020

Condition: Reported in good condition

Pond with aerator

Useful Life: 10-to 15-years

Component Detail Notes: The use of small pumps, motors and aerators circulates pond
water and increases the amount of entrained oxygen in the water, increasing water quality
and reducing algae growths.

Priority/Criticality: Defer only upon opinion of independent professional or engineer
Expenditure Detail Notes: Expenditure timing and costs are depicted in the Reserve

Expenditures table in Section 3. Based on its condition, we defer replacement until 2024.

Pond, Erosion Control

Line Item: 4.710
Quantity: 620 linear feet of stone rip rap

History: The stone rip rap was augmented in 2013 and locations of settled rip rap were
repaired and/or replaced in 2021.

Narrative throughout report reduced for brevity

Page 4.14 — Reserve Component Detail



RESERVE
ADVISORS

Condition: We note only minor evidence of settled rip rap and erosion.

Erosion Erosion

Useful Life: Shorelines are subject to fluctuations in water levels, increased plant growth
and migrating storm and ground water resulting in the need for erosion control measures
up to every 10 years.

Component Detail Notes: The steep shoreline embankments are likely to exacerbate
soil movement and erosion. The use and maintenance of landscape, natural vegetation
and/or stone rip rap along the pond shoreline will help maintain an attractive appearance
and prevent soil erosion.

Shoreline plantings are referred to as buffer zones. Buffer zones provide the following
advantages:

Control insects naturally

Create an aesthetically pleasing shoreline
Enhance water infiltration and storage
Filter nutrients and pollutants

Increase fish and wildlife habitat

Reduce lawn maintenance

Stabilize shoreline and reduce erosion
Trap sediments

Priority/Criticality: Defer only upon opinion of independent professional or engineer

Expenditure Detail Notes: Expenditure timing and costs are depicted in the Reserve
Expenditures table in Section 3. We recommend the Association plan to augment the
rip rap around the pond along 125 linear feet, or approximately twenty percent (20%), of
the shoreline.

Narrative throughout report reduced for brevity

Page 4.15 — Reserve Component Detail



RESERVE
ADVISORS

Signage, Entrance Monument

Line Item: 4.800

Quantity: One property identification entrance monument and one adjacent street
identification sign. The signage includes the following elements:

Light fixtures
Fences, wood ralil
Masonry, stone
Metal signs
Landscaping

History: Original with the exception of the landscape light fixtures which were replaced
with LED fixtures in 2019

Condition: Good to fair overall

Entrance monument Mortar cracks

Evidence of water infiltration and possible
onset of stone delamination

Narrative throughout report reduced for brevity

Page 4.16 — Reserve Component Detail



RESERVE
ADVISORS

Useful Life: 15-to 20-years

Component Detail Notes: Community signage contributes to the overall aesthetic
appearance of the property to owners and potential buyers. Renovation or replacement
of community signs is often predicated upon the desire to "update" the perceived identity
of the community rather than for utilitarian concerns. Therefore, the specific times for
replacement or renovation are discretionary.

Preventative Maintenance Notes: We note the following select recommended
preventative maintenance activities to maximize the remaining useful life:

e Annually:
o Inspect and repair damage, vandalism and loose components
o Verify lighting is working properly
o Touch-up paint finish applications if applicable

Priority/Criticality: Per Board discretion

Expenditure Detail Notes: Expenditure timing and costs are depicted in the Reserve
Expenditures table in Section 3. Our cost for renovation includes repointing and repairs
to the masonry, landscaping renovations and replacement of the remaining components
listed above. Based on a greater need for reserve funds for replacement of roofs and
pavement, we defer renovation until 2030.

Reserve Study Update

An ongoing review by the Board and an Update of this Reserve Study are
necessary to ensure an equitable funding plan since a Reserve Study is a snapshot in
time. Many variables change after the study is conducted that may result in significant
overfunding or underfunding the reserve account. Variables that may affect the
Reserve Funding Plan include, but are not limited to:

o Deferred or accelerated capital projects based on Board discretion
Changes in the interest rates on reserve investments
Changes in the local construction inflation rate
Additions and deletions to the Reserve Component Inventory
The presence or absence of maintenance programs
Unusually mild or extreme weather conditions

e Technological advancements
Periodic updates incorporate these variable changes since the last Reserve Study or
Update. We recommend the Board budget for an Update to this Reserve Study in two-
to three-years. Budgeting for an Update demonstrates the Board's objective to continue
fulfilling its fiduciary responsibility to maintain the commonly owned property and to fund
reserves appropriately.

Narrative throughout report reduced for brevity

Page 4.17 — Reserve Component Detail



RESERVE
ADVISORS

5.METHODOLOGY

Reserves for replacement are the amounts of money required for future
expenditures to repair or replace Reserve Components that wear out before the entire
facility or project wears out. Reserving funds for future repair or replacement of the
Reserve Components is also one of the most reliable ways of protecting the value of the
property’s infrastructure and marketability.

Fairway can fund capital repairs and replacements in any combination of the
following:

1. Increases in the operating budget during years when the shortages occur

2. Loans using borrowed capital for major replacement projects

3. Level monthly reserve assessments annually adjusted upward for inflation
to increase reserves to fund the expected major future expenditures

4. Special assessments

We do not advocate special assessments or loans unless near term circumstances
dictate otherwise. Although loans provide a gradual method of funding a replacement,
the costs are higher than if the Association were to accumulate reserves ahead of the
actual replacement. Interest earnings on reserves also accumulate in this process of
saving or reserving for future replacements, thereby defraying the amount of gradual
reserve collections. We advocate the third method of Level Monthly Reserve
Assessments with relatively minor annual adjustments. The method ensures that Owners
pay their "fair share" of the weathering and aging of the commonly owned property each
year. Level reserve assessments preserve the property and enhance the resale value of
the homes.

This Reserve Study is in compliance with and exceeds the National standards® set
forth by the Association of Professional Reserve Analysts (APRA) fulfilling the
requirements of a “Level | Full Reserve Study.” These standards require a Reserve
Component to have a “predictable remaining Useful Life.” Estimating Remaining Useful
Lives and Reserve Expenditures beyond 30 years is often indeterminate. Long-Lived
Property Elements are necessarily excluded from this analysis. We considered the
following factors in our analysis:

e The Cash Flow Method to compute, project and illustrate the 30-year
Reserve Funding Plan

Local? costs of material, equipment and labor

Current and future costs of replacement for the Reserve Components
Costs of demolition as part of the cost of replacement

Local economic conditions and a historical perspective to arrive at our
estimate of long-term future inflation for construction costs in Madison,
USA at an annual inflation rate3. Isolated or regional markets of greater

T1dentified in the APRA “Standards - Terms and Definitions” and the CAl "Terms and Definitions".
2 See Credentials for additional information on our use of published sources of cost data.
3 Derived from Marshall & Swift, historical costs and the Bureau of Labor Statistics.

Narrative throughout report reduced for brevity
Page 5.1 - Methodology



RESERVE

L

ADVISORS

construction (development) activity may experience slightly greater rates
of inflation for both construction materials and labor.

The past and current maintenance practices of Fairway and their effects
on remaining useful lives

Financial information provided by the Association pertaining to the cash
status of the reserve fund and budgeted reserve contribution

The anticipated effects of appreciation of the reserves over time in accord
with a return or yield on investment of your cash equivalent assets. (We
did not consider the costs, if any, of Federal and State Taxes on income
derived from interest and/or dividend income).

The Funding Plan excludes necessary operating budget expenditures. It
is our understanding that future operating budgets will provide for the
ongoing normal maintenance of Reserve Components.

Updates to this Reserve Study will continue to monitor historical facts and trends

concerning the external market conditions.

Narrative throughout report reduced for brevity

Page 5.2 - Methodology



RESERVE
ADVISORS

6.CREDENTIALS

HISTORY AND DEPTH OF SERVICE

Founded in 1991, Reserve Advisors is the leading provider of reserve studies, insurance
appraisals, developer turnover transition studies, expert witness services, and other engineering
consulting services. Clients include community associations, resort properties, hotels, clubs, non-
profit organizations, apartment building owners, religious and educational institutions, and
office/commercial building owners in 48 states, Canada and throughout the world.

The architectural engineering consulting firm was formed to take a leadership role in
helping fiduciaries, boards, and property managers manage their property like a business with a
long-range master plan known as a Reserve Study.

Reserve Advisors employs the largest staff of Reserve Specialists with bachelor’s
degrees in engineering dedicated to Reserve Study services. Our founders are also founders of
Community Associations Institute's (CAl) Reserve Committee that developed national standards
for reserve study providers. One of our founders is a Past President of the Association of
Professional Reserve Analysts (APRA). Our vast experience with a variety of building types and
ages, on-site examination and historical analyses are keys to determining accurate remaining
useful life estimates of building components.

No Conflict of Interest - As consulting specialists, our independent opinion eliminates
any real or perceived conflict of interest because we do not conduct or manage capital projects.

TOTAL STAFF INVOLVEMENT

Several staff members participate in each assignment. The responsible advisor involves
the staff through a Team Review, exclusive to Reserve Advisors, and by utilizing the experience
of other staff members, each of whom has served hundreds of clients. We conduct Team
Reviews, an internal quality assurance review of each assignment, including: the inspection;
building component costing; lifing; and technical report phases of the assignment. Due to our
extensive experience with building components, we do not have a need to utilize subcontractors.

OUR GOAL
To help our clients fulfill their fiduciary responsibilities to maintain property in good
condition.

VAST EXPERIENCE WITH A VARIETY OF BUILDINGS

Reserve Advisors has conducted reserve studies for a multitude of different communities
and building types. We've analyzed thousands of buildings, from as small as a 3,500-square foot
day care center to a 2,600,000-square foot 98-story highrise. We also routinely inspect buildings
with various types of mechanical systems such as simple electric heat, to complex systems with
air handlers, chillers, boilers, elevators, and life safety and security systems.

We're familiar with all types of building exteriors as well. Our well-versed staff regularly
identifies optimal repair and replacement solutions for such building exterior surfaces such as
adobe, brick, stone, concrete, stucco, EIFS, wood products, stained glass and aluminum siding,
and window wall systems.

OLD TO NEW

Reserve Advisors’ experience includes ornate and vintage buildings as well as modern
structures. Our specialists are no strangers to older buildings. We're accustomed to addressing
the unique challenges posed by buildings that date to the 1800's. We recognize and consider the
methods of construction employed into our analysis. We recommend appropriate replacement
programs that apply cost effective technologies while maintaining a building's character and
appeal.

Page 6.1 - Credentials



RESERVE
ADVISORS

RESOURCES

Reserve Advisors utilizes numerous resources of national and local data to conduct its Professional
Services. A concise list of several of these resources follows:

Association of Construction Inspectors, (ACI) the largest professional organization for those involved in
construction inspection and construction project management. ACl is also the leading association providing
standards, guidelines, regulations, education, training, and professional recognition in a field that has
quickly become important procedure for both residential and commercial construction, found on the web at
www.iami.org.

American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning Engineers, Inc., (ASHRAE) the
American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning Engineers, Inc., devoted to the arts and
sciences of heating, ventilation, air conditioning and refrigeration; recognized as the foremost, authoritative,
timely and responsive source of technical and educational information, standards and guidelines, found on
the web at www.ashrae.org. Reserve Advisors actively participates in its local chapter and holds individual
memberships.

Community Associations Institute, (CAl) America's leading advocate for responsible communities noted
as the only national organization dedicated to fostering vibrant, responsive, competent community
associations. Their mission is to assist community associations in promoting harmony, community, and
responsible leadership.

Marshall & Swift / Boeckh, (MS/B) the worldwide provider of building cost data, co-sourcing solutions, and
estimating technology for the property and casualty insurance industry found on the web at
www.marshallswift.com.

R.S. Means CostWorks, North America's leading supplier of construction cost information. As a member
of the Construction Market Data Group, Means provides accurate and up-to-date cost information that helps
owners, developers, architects, engineers, contractors and others to carefully and precisely project and
control the cost of both new building construction and renovation projects found on the web at
www.rsmeans.com.

Reserve Advisors’ library of numerous periodicals relating to reserve studies, condition analyses, chapter
community associations, and historical costs from thousands of capital repair and replacement projects,
and product literature from manufacturers of building products and building systems.

Page 6.2 - Credentials


http://www.iami.org/
http://www.ashrae.org/
http://www.rsmeans.com/

RESERVE
ADVISORS

7.DEFINITIONS

Definitions are derived from the standards set forth by the Community Associations Institute (CAl)
representing America's 305,000 condominium and homeowners associations and cooperatives, and the
Association of Professional Reserve Analysts, setting the standards of care for reserve study practitioners.

Cash Flow Method - A method of calculating Reserve Contributions where contributions to the reserve
fund are designed to offset the variable annual expenditures from the reserve fund. Different Reserve
Funding Plans are tested against the anticipated schedule of reserve expenses until the desired funding
goal is achieved.

Component Method - A method of developing a Reserve Funding Plan with the total contribution is based
on the sum of the contributions for individual components.

Current Cost of Replacement - That amount required today derived from the quantity of a Reserve
Component and its unit cost to replace or repair a Reserve Component using the most current technology
and construction materials, duplicating the productive utility of the existing property at current /ocal market
prices for materials, labor and manufactured equipment, contractors' overhead, profit and fees, but
without provisions for building permits, overtime, bonuses for labor or premiums for material and
equipment. We include removal and disposal costs where applicable.

Fully Funded Balance - The Reserve balance that is in direct proportion to the fraction of life "used up" of
the current Repair or Replacement cost similar to Total Accrued Depreciation.

Funding Goal (Threshold) - The stated purpose of this Reserve Study is to determine the adequate, not
excessive, minimal threshold reserve balances.

Future Cost of Replacement - Reserve Expenditure derived from the inflated current cost of replacement
or current cost of replacement as defined above, with consideration given to the effects of inflation on
local market rates for materials, labor and equipment.

Long-Lived Property Component - Property component of Fairway responsibility not likely to require
capital repair or replacement during the next 30 years with an unpredictable remaining Useful Life beyond
the next 30 years.

Percent Funded - The ratio, at a particular point of time (typically the beginning of the Fiscal Year), of the
actual (or projected) Reserve Balance to the Fully Funded Balance, expressed as a percentage.

Remaining Useful Life - The estimated remaining functional or useful time in years of a
Reserve Component based on its age, condition and maintenance.

Reserve Component - Property elements with: 1) Fairway responsibility; 2) limited Useful Life
expectancies; 3) predictable Remaining Useful Life expectancies; and 4) a replacement cost above a
minimum threshold.

Reserve Component Inventory - Line ltems in Reserve Expenditures that identify a
Reserve Component.

Reserve Contribution - An amount of money set aside or Reserve Assessment contributed to a
Reserve Fund for future Reserve Expenditures to repair or replace Reserve Components.

Reserve Expenditure - Future Cost of Replacement of a Reserve Component.

Reserve Fund Status - The accumulated amount of reserves in dollars at a given point in time, i.e., at year
end.

Reserve Funding Plan - The portion of the Reserve Study identifying the Cash Flow Analysis and
containing the recommended Reserve Contributions and projected annual expenditures, interest earned
and reserve balances.

Reserve Study - A budget planning tool that identifies the current status of the reserve fund and a stable
and equitable Funding Plan to offset the anticipated future major common area expenditures.

Useful Life - The anticipated total time in years that a Reserve Component is expected to serve its intended
function in its present application or installation.

Page 7.1 - Definitions



RESERVE
ADVISORS

8.PROFESSIONAL SERVICE CONDITIONS

Our Services - Reserve Advisors, LLC (“RA”) performs its services as an independent contractor in
accordance with our professional practice standards and its compensation is not contingent upon our conclusions. The
purpose of our reserve study is to provide a budget planning tool that identifies the current status of the reserve fund,
and an opinion recommending an annual funding plan, to create reserves for anticipated future replacement
expenditures of the subject property. The purpose of our energy benchmarking services is to track, collect and
summarize the subject property’s energy consumption over time for your use in comparison with other buildings of
similar size and establishing a performance baseline for your planning of long-term energy efficiency goals.

Our inspection and analysis of the subject property is limited to visual observations, is noninvasive and is not
meant to nor does it include investigation into statutory, regulatory or code compliance. RA inspects sloped roofs from
the ground and inspects flat roofs where safe access (stairs or ladder permanently attached to the structure) is available.
Our energy benchmarking services with respect to the subject property is limited to collecting energy and utility data
and summarizing such data in the form of an Energy Star Portfolio Manager Report or any other similar report, and
hereby expressly excludes any recommendations with respect to the results of such energy benchmarking services or
the accuracy of the energy information obtained from utility companies and other third-party sources with respect to the
subject property. The reserve report and any energy benchmarking report (i.e., any Energy Star Portfolio Manager
Report) (including any subsequent revisions thereto pursuant to the terms hereof, collectively, the “Report”) are based
upon a “snapshot in time” at the moment of inspection. RA may note visible physical defects in the Report. The
inspection is made by employees generally familiar with real estate and building construction. Except to the extent
readily apparent to RA, RA cannot and shall not opine on the structural integrity of or other physical defects in the
property under any circumstances. Without limitation to the foregoing, RA cannot and shall not opine on, nor is RA
responsible for, the property’s conformity to specific governmental code requirements for fire, building, earthquake,
occupancy or otherwise.

RA is not responsible for conditions that have changed between the time of inspection and the issuance of
the Report. RA does not provide invasive testing on any mechanical systems that provide energy to the property, nor
can RA opine on any system components that are not easily accessible during the inspection. RA does not investigate,
nor assume any responsibility for any existence or impact of any hazardous materials, such as asbestos, urea-
formaldehyde foam insulation, other chemicals, toxic wastes, environmental mold or other potentially hazardous
materials or structural defects that are latent or hidden defects which may or may not be present on or within the
property. RA does not make any soil analysis or geological study as part of its services, nor does RA investigate vapor,
water, oil, gas, coal, or other subsurface mineral and use rights or such hidden conditions, and RA assumes no
responsibility for any such conditions. The Report contains opinions of estimated replacement costs or deferred
maintenance expenses and remaining useful lives, which are neither a guarantee of the actual costs or expenses of
replacement or deferred maintenance nor a guarantee of remaining useful lives of any property element.

RA assumes, without independent verification, the accuracy of all data provided to it. Except to the extent
resulting from RA’s willful misconduct in connection with the performance of its obligations under this agreement, you
agree to indemnify, defend, and hold RA and its affiliates, officers, managers, employees, agents, successors and
assigns (each, an “RA Party”) harmless from and against (and promptly reimburse each RA Party for) any and all
losses, claims, actions, demands, judgments, orders, damages, expenses or liabilities, including, without limitation,
reasonable attorneys' fees, asserted against or to which any RA Party may become subject in connection with this
engagement, including, without limitation, as a result of any false, misleading or incomplete information which RA relied
upon that was supplied by you or others under your direction, or which may result from any improper use or reliance
on the Report by you or third parties under your control or direction or to whom you provided the Report.
NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER PROVISION HEREIN TO THE CONTRARY, THE AGGREGATE LIABILITY (IF
ANY) OF RA WITH RESPECT TO THIS AGREEMENT AND RA’S OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER IS LIMITED TO THE
AMOUNT OF THE FEES ACTUALLY RECEIVED BY RA FROM YOU FOR THE SERVICES AND REPORT
PERFORMED BY RA UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER ARISING IN CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING
NEGLIGENCE), STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHERWISE. YOUR REMEDIES SET FORTH HEREIN ARE EXCLUSIVE
AND ARE YOUR SOLE REMEDIES FOR ANY FAILURE OF RA TO COMPLY WITH ITS OBLIGATIONS
HEREUNDER OR OTHERWISE. RA SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL,
CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES OF ANY KIND, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO,
ANY LOST PROFITS AND LOST SAVINGS, LOSS OF USE OR INTERRUPTION OF BUSINESS, HOWEVER
CAUSED, WHETHER ARISING IN CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), BREACH OF WARRANTY,
STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHERWISE, EVEN IF RA HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH
DAMAGES. IN NO EVENT WILL RA BE LIABLE FOR THE COST OF PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS
OR SERVICES. RA DISCLAIMS ALL REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES WHATSOEVER, EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED OR OF ANY NATURE, WITH REGARD TO THE SERVICES AND THE REPORT, INCLUDING, WITHOUT
LIMITATION, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

Report - RA will complete the services in accordance with the Proposal. The Report represents a valid opinion
of RA’s findings and recommendations with respect to the reserve study and is deemed complete. RA will consider any
additional information made available to RA within 6 months of issuing the Report and issue a revised Report based
on such additional information if a timely request for a revised Report is made by you. RA retains the right to withhold
a revised Report if payment for services was not tendered in a timely manner. All information received by RA and all
files, work papers or documents developed by RA during the course of the engagement shall remain the property of

Page 8.1 — Professional Service Conditions



RESERVE
ADVISORS

RA and may be used for whatever purpose it sees fit. RA reserves the right to, and you acknowledge and agree that
RA may, use any data provided by you in connection with the services, or gathered as a result of providing such
services, including in connection with creating and issuing any Report, in a de-identified and aggregated form for RA’s
business purposes.

Your Obligations - You agree to provide us access to the subject property for an inspection. You agree to
provide RA all available, historical and budgetary information, the governing documents, and other information that we
request and deem necessary to complete the Report. Additionally, you agree to provide historical replacement
schedules, utility bills and historical energy usage files that RA requests and deems necessary to complete the energy
benchmarking services, and you agree to provide any utility release(s) reasonably requested by RA permitting RA to
obtain any such data and/or information from any utility representative or other third party. You agree to pay actual
attorneys’ fees and any other costs incurred to collect on any unpaid balance for RA’s services.

Use of Our Report and Your Name - Use of the Report is limited to only the purpose stated herein. You
acknowledge that RA is the exclusive owner of all intellectual property rights in and relating to the Report. You hereby
acknowledge that any use or reliance by you on the Report for any unauthorized purpose is at your own risk and that
you will be liable for the consequences of any unauthorized use or distribution of the Report. Use or possession of the
Report by any unauthorized third party is prohibited. The Report in whole or in part is not and cannot be used as a
design specification for design engineering purposes or as an appraisal. You may show the Report in its entirety to the
following third parties: members of your organization (including your directors, officers, tenants and prospective
purchasers), your accountants, attorneys, financial institutions and property managers who need to review the
information contained herein, and any other third party who has a right to inspect the Report under applicable law
including, but not limited, to any government entity or agency, or any utility companies. Without the written consent of
RA, you shall not disclose the Report to any other third party. By engaging our services, you agree that the Report
contains intellectual property developed (and owned solely) by RA and agree that you will not reproduce or distribute
the Report to any party that conducts reserve studies without the written consent of RA.

RA will include (and you hereby agree that RA may include) your name in our client lists. RA reserves the right
to use (and you hereby agree that RA may use) property information to obtain estimates of replacement costs, useful
life of property elements or otherwise as RA, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate.

Payment Terms, Due Dates and Interest Charges - If reserve study and energy benchmarking services are
performed by RA, then the retainer payment is due upon execution of this agreement and prior to the inspection by RA,
and any balance is due net 30 days from the Report shipment date. If only energy benchmarking services are performed
by RA, then the retainer payment is due upon execution of this agreement and any balance is due net 30 days from
the Report shipment date. In any case, any balance remaining 30 days after delivery of the Report shall accrue an
interest charge of 1.5% per month. Unless this agreement is earlier terminated by RA in the event you breach or
otherwise fail to comply with your obligations under this agreement, RA’s obligations under this agreement shall
commence on the date you execute and deliver this agreement and terminate on the date that is 6 months from the
date of delivery of the Report by RA. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, each provision that by its context
and nature should survive the expiration or early termination of this agreement shall so survive, including, without
limitation, any provisions with respect to payment, intellectual property rights, limitations of liability and governing law.
We reserve the right to limit or decline refunds in our sole discretion. Refunds vary based on the applicable facts and
circumstances.

Miscellaneous — Neither party shall be liable for any failures or delays in performance due to fire, flood, strike
or other labor difficulty, act of God, act of any governmental authority, riot, embargo, fuel or energy shortage, pandemic,
wrecks or delays in transportation, or due to any other cause beyond such party’s reasonable control; provided,
however, that you shall not be relieved from your obligations to make any payment(s) to RA as and when due
hereunder. In the event of a delay in performance due to any such cause, the time for completion or date of delivery
will be extended by a period of time reasonably necessary to overcome the effect of such delay. You may not assign
or otherwise transfer this agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of RA. RA may freely assign
or otherwise transfer this agreement, in whole or in part, without your prior consent. This agreement shall be governed
by the laws of the State of Wisconsin without regard to any principles of conflicts of law that would apply the laws of
another jurisdiction. Any dispute with respect to this agreement shall be exclusively venued in Milwaukee County Circuit
Court or in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Wisconsin. Each party hereto agrees and hereby
waives the right to a trial by jury in any action, proceeding or claim brought by or on behalf of the parties hereto with
respect to any matter related to this agreement.

Page 8.2 — Professional Service Conditions



FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS






1001 Yamato Road = Suite 301
. Boca Raton, Florida 33431
Grau & Associates (561) 994-9299 - (800) 299-4728
Fax (561) 994-5823
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS www.graucpa.com

August 11, 2025

Board of Supervisors

Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District
475 West Town Place, Suite 114

St. Augustine, FL 32092

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District,
St. Johns County, Florida (“the District”) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2025. We will audit the financial statements of the
governmental activities and each major fund, including the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
basic financial statements of Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District as of and for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2025. In addition, we will examine the District's compliance with the requirements of Section 218.415 Florida Statutes. This letter
serves to renew our agreement and establish the terms and fee for the 2025 audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI),
such as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement the District’s basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the District’'s RSI in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We
will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

The following RSl is required by generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will
not be audited:

1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis
2) Budgetary comparison schedule

The following other information accompanying the financial statements will not be subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our
audit of the financial statements, and our auditor’s report will not provide an opinion or any assurance on that information:

1) Compliance with FL Statute 218.39 (3) (c)
Audit Objectives

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all material
respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to report on the fairness of the supplementary
information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. Our audit will be
conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards for financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of
the accounting records of the District and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. We will
issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the District’s financial statements. We cannot provide assurance that an
unmodified opinion will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion or add emphasis-
of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinion on the financial statements is other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons
with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed an opinion, we
may decline to express an opinion or issue a report, or may withdraw from this engagement.

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial statements and compliance
with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on
the financial statements as required by Government Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and on compliance and other
matters will include a paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal
control and compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance. The paragraph will also state that the report is not suitable for
any other purpose. If during our audit we become aware that the District is subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed
in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance that an audit in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements.



Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District Page 2

Examination Objective

The objective of our examination is the expression of an opinion as to whether the District is in compliance with Florida Statute 218.415
in accordance with Rule 10.556(10) of the Auditor General of the State of Florida. Our examination will be conducted in accordance
with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and will include tests of your records
and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion. We will issue a written report upon completion
of our examination of the District's compliance. The report will include a statement that the report is intended solely for the information
and use of management, those charged with governance, and the Florida Auditor General, and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion will be expressed.
Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs.
If our opinion on the District's compliance is other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason,
we are unable to complete the examination or are unable to form or have not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion
or issue a report, or may withdraw from this engagement.

Other Services

We will assist in preparing the financial statements and related notes of the District in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles based on information provided by you. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government
Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. The other services
are limited to the financial statement services previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to
perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities.

Management Responsibilities

Management is responsible for compliance with Florida Statute 218.415 and will provide us with the information required for the
examination. The accuracy and completeness of such information is also management’s responsibility. You agree to assume all
management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related notes and any other nonaudit services we provide. You
will be required to acknowledge in the management representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements
and related notes and that you have reviewed and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and
have accepted responsibility for them. In addition, you will be required to make certain representations regarding compliance with
Florida Statute 218.415 in the management representation letter. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating
an individual, preferably from senior management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy
and results of those services; and accept responsibility for them.

Management is responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining effective internal controls, including evaluating and
monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; following laws and regulations; and
ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and properly reported. Management is also responsible for
implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are
also responsible for the selection and application of accounting principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements and all accompanying information in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for compliance
with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements.

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for the accuracy and
completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of which you are aware
that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, (2) additional information that we may request for
the purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain
audit evidence.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for confirming to us in the written
representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the current engagement and
pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a
whole.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for informing us
about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2) employees who have significant roles in
internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include
informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications
from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that
the government complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely and appropriate
steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that we report.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and recommendations.
Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous financial audits, attestation engagements,
performance audits or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility
includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits,
attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies. You are also responsible for providing management’s views on our
current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and
format for providing that information.

With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements published electronically on
your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute information and, therefore, we are not required to read
the information contained in these sites or to consider the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original
document.



Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District Page 3

Audit Procedures—General

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; therefore,
our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the areas to be tested. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable rather than absolute assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from
(1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that
are attributable to the government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the
determination of abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of
detecting abuse.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and because we will not
perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements may exist and not be detected by us,
even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or
governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our responsibility as auditors is
limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, and may include
tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain other assets and liabilities by
correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We will request written representations
from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our audit, we
will require certain written representations from you about your responsibilities for the financial statements; compliance with laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards.

Audit Procedures—Internal Control

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control, sufficient to assess
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures.
Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting
errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts
and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be
less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our
report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However,
during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are
required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards and Government Auditing Standards.

Audit Procedures—Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, we will perform
tests of the District’'s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the
objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on
compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash or other confirmations we request and will locate any documents selected
by us for testing.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Grau & Associates and constitutes confidential information. However,
subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and
in a timely manner to a cognizant or oversight agency or its designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S.
Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight
responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the
supervision of Grau & Associates personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to
the aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others,
including other governmental agencies. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties acknowledge that various documents reviewed or
produced during the conduct of the audit may be public records under Florida law. The District agrees to notify Grau & Associates of
any public record request it receives that involves audit documentation.

Furthermore, Grau & Associates agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Florida law in handling such records, including but
not limited to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Auditor acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the District
is the District Manager (“Public Records Custodian”). Among other requirements and to the extent applicable by law, Grau &
Associates shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the service; 2) upon request by the Public
Records Custodian, provide the District with the requested public records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a
reasonable time period at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure that public records
which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by
law for the duration of the contract term and following the contract term if Auditor does not transfer the records to the Public Records
Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the District, at no cost, all public records in Grau &
Associate’s possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain and meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records pursuant to
Florida laws. When such public records are transferred by Grau & Associates, Grau & Associates shall destroy any duplicate public



Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District Page 4

records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All records stored electronically must
be provided to the District in a format that is compatible with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats.

IF GRAU & ASSOCIATES HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO
ITS DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE PUBLIC RECORDS
CUSTODIAN AT: GMS-NF LLC, 475 WEST TOWN PLACE, SUITE 114, ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32092, TELEPHONE: 904-940-5850.

Our fee for these services will not exceed $4,200 for the September 30, 2025 audit, unless there is a change in activity by the District
which results in additional audit work or if additional Bonds are issued.

We will complete the audit within prescribed statutory deadlines, which requires the District to submit its annual audit to the Auditor
General no later than nine (9) months after the end of the audited fiscal year, with the understanding that your employees will provide
information needed to perform the audit on a timely basis.

All accounting records (including, but not limited to, trial balances, general ledger detail, vendor files, bank and trust statements,
minutes, and confirmations) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2025 must be provided to us no later than January 15, 2026, in
order for us to complete the engagement by April 15, 2026.

Subject to timely receipt of the necessary information, we will submit a preliminary draft audit report by April 1, 2026 for the District's
review, and a final draft audit report by April 15, 2026 for the District's review and approval.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release date. If we are
aware that a federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit
finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. Invoices will be
submitted in sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance with the terms of this agreement. In accordance with our firm policies, work
may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and may not be resumed until your account is paid in full. If we
elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of
termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse
us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination. The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel
and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary,
we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate.

This agreement may be renewed each year thereafter subject to the mutual agreement by both parties to all terms and fees. The fee
for each annual renewal will be agreed upon separately.

The District has the option to terminate this agreement with or without cause by providing thirty (30) days written notice of termination
to Grau & Associates. Upon any termination of this agreement, Grau & Associates shall be entitled to payment of all work and/or
services rendered up until the effective termination of this agreement, subject to whatever claims or off-sets the District may have
against Grau & Associates.

We will provide you with a copy of our most recent external peer review report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent peer
review reports and letters of comment received during the period of the contract. Our 2022 peer review report accompanies this letter.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District and believe this letter
accurately summarizes the terms of our engagement and, with any addendum, if applicable, is the complete and exclusive statement
of the agreement between Grau & Associates and the District with respect to the terms of the engagement between the parties. If you
have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the
enclosed copy and return it to us.

Very truly yours,
Grau & Associates

= =
P e

Antonio J. Grau

RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District.

By:

Title:

Date:




Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District Page 5

K 'CPA @ pcen

Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants

FIC PA Peer Rev ew Progfam AICPA Peer Review Program
Ad d in o Administered in Florida
bv f CPAs by the Florida Institute of CPAs

March 17, 2023

Antonio Grau

Grau & Associates

951 Yamato Rd Ste 280
Boca Raton, FL 33431-1809

Dear Antonio Grau:
It is my pleasure to notify you that on March 16, 2023, the Florida Peer Review Committee accepted the
report on the most recent System Review of your firm. The due date for your next review is December 31,
2025. This is the date by which all review documents should be completed and submitted to the
administering entity.

As you know, the report had a peer review rating of pass. The Commitiee asked me to convey its
congratulations to the firm.

Thank you for your cooperation.

Sincerely,

FICPA Peer Review Commities

Peer Review Team
FICPA Peer Review Committee

850.224.2727, x5957
cc: Daniel Hevia, Racquel Mcintosh

Firm Number: 900004390114 Review Number. 594791






ISLES OF BARTRAM PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (“DISTRICT”)

POLICIES FOR USE OF LAKES AND
OTHER STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES'

1. Wading and swimming in District lakes and other District stormwater management facilities are
prohibited.

2. Watercraft of any kind in District lakes or other District stormwater management facilities is
prohibited.

3. The District lakes and other District stormwater management facilities primarily function as
detention ponds to facilitate the District’s system for treatment and attenuation of stormwater run-
off and overflow. As a result, contaminants may be present in the water. Fishing in the District
lakes and other District stormwater management facilities is prohibited.

4. Users of District lakes and other District stormwater management facilities shall not engage in
any conduct or omission that violates any ordinance, resolution, law, permit requirement, or
regulation of any governmental entity relating to the District lakes and other District stormwater
management facilities.

5. Pets are not allowed in the District lakes and other District stormwater management facilities.
Wildlife (including but not limited to birds and reptiles) may neither be removed from nor
released into the District lakes or other District stormwater management facilities.

6. No docks or other structures, whether permanent or temporary, shall be constructed and placed in
or around the District lakes or other District stormwater management facilities unless properly
permitted and approved by the District and other applicable governmental agencies.

7. No pipes, pumps or other devices used for irrigation or the withdrawal of water shall be placed in
or around the District lakes, except by the District.

8. No foreign materials may be disposed of in the District lakes or other District stormwater
management facilities, including, but not limited to: tree branches, paint, cement, oils, soap suds,
building materials, chemicals, fertilizers, or any other material that is not naturally occurring or
which may be detrimental to the lake environment.

9. Easements through residential backyards along the community's storm water lake system are for
maintenance purposes only and residents are not granted fishing or any other recreational purpose.
Access to other residents' backyards via these maintenance easements is prohibited. The pond banks
are not common areas for the homeowner's association. Unless individual property owners of single
family dwelling homes grant permission for others to access their backyards, entering their private
property can be considered trespassing. This does not necessarily apply to multi-family units, as
surrounding green areas are not private property. Please be considerate of the privacy rights of other
residents.

10. Beware of some of the wildlife like water moccasins, milk snakes, alligators and even a Cayman
crocodile, let alone snapping turtles and other wildlife.

! These Policies may be amended and/or updated as the District deems necessary (adopted November 14, 2025).



11. Any hazardous condition concerning the District lakes or other District stormwater management
facilities must immediately be reported to the District Manager and the proper authorities.

12. Property owners and residents are responsible for their tenants’, guests’, and invitees’ adherence
to these policies.

The Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District is not responsible for injury or
damage to persons or property, including accidental death, resulting from the use of District lakes
and/or other District stormwater management facilities.



SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS






From: Scott Forshey-Friedman scottf@celestinahoa.com
Subject: Fwd: Estimate 4484 from Innovative Fountain Services, Inc
Date: October 23, 2025 at 1:41 PM
To: Jim Oliver joliver@gmsnf.com, Sarah Sweeting ssweeting@gmsnf.com
Cc: Taylor Tennisson ttennison@vestapropertyservices.com

Please include this in next neeting agenda.
Details on why:
Here is the explanation for the needed repair:

The lock ring on the chlorinator has broken twice due to excessive pressure from the sand filter. This
pressure is caused by the filter media being dirty and in need of replacement, which is forcing against the
chlorinator lid and causing it to fail. The first incident resulted in the lid blowing off, draining the
fountain completely. During the second occurrence, the issue was identified and addressed before any
damage occurred. Replacing the filter media is necessary to restore proper operation and prevent further
damage.

Scott Forshey-Friedman
Celestina Master POA-President

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Innovative Fountain Services, Inc" <quickbooks@notification.intuit.com>
Date: October 23, 2025 at 12:34:49 PM CDT

To: ttennison(@yvestapropertyservices.com

Cec: scottfl@celestinahoa.com

Subject: Estimate 4484 from Innovative Fountain Services, Inc

Reply-To: admin@innovativefountainservices.com

Your estimate is ready!
Total $2,714.00



mailto:Forshey-Friedmanscottf@celestinahoa.com
mailto:Forshey-Friedmanscottf@celestinahoa.com
mailto:Oliverjoliver@gmsnf.com
mailto:Oliverjoliver@gmsnf.com
mailto:Sweetingssweeting@gmsnf.com
mailto:Sweetingssweeting@gmsnf.com
mailto:Tennissonttennison@vestapropertyservices.com
mailto:Tennissonttennison@vestapropertyservices.com

Dear Taylor Tennison,

Please find your estimate details here. Feel free to contact us if you have any
questions. We look forward to working with you.

Have a great day!
Innovative Fountain Services, Inc

Review and approve

Innovative Fountain Services, Inc

11637 Columbia Park Dr E
Ste 4
Jacksonville, FL 32258-4493

admin@innovativefountainservices.com
+1(904) 551-1017

If you receive an email that seems fraudulent, please check with the business owner
before paying, or you can forward the email to security@intuit.com so we can look into it.
Read more at security.intuit.com.

@ quiickbooks.

Powered by QuickBooks
© 2025 Intuit, Inc. All rights reserved.
Privacy | Security | Terms of Service



https://links.notification.intuit.com/ls/click?upn=u001.SkyGoo-2FemZT6Xc-2Fn1lGbnolA50y-2BF9TWqkK0lI1Lm8fNvXP5-2FxDdNExe3CY544wPZVOkx-2Bsb4ktfZUcbQ6XLB0s5-2FDegjY8r0f5sKxuIQaX1Cn7kd-2BU0iteq4oLyv-2BdxkioyXZUaR5imV8k2tTAyYZgwKXwGiXJLJv0tczV5a7N8J4I3-2BcXqezYHvTzMvhztg5mXYkuBpBf03l5Zy7Oc4BA7T-2FrJEfydOF9w393zEyW00Rc2tV9b0yMB7LL02p9QeTmzmNcyGq-2F6SzV2ajsOnw-3D-3DQp0Z_oMbLB5KVNpilw0o1cE7pRux3fxmqKWUG3BI3uuJy-2BWfoErVxfb7PrNrg8452o1P8TiluUv-2Fgdx-2FvnEzXkciOKoQa5EXOUP7mOJCwZ8myvv-2Ff9mL2KeaXOTDtBxIea8ltLiK3YZOU99rsSqVHgyCQHuFbSqPc8HpwM-2FROx3OBd3s4PHHqGZ16PCDXuRqTm4JfQzSB45yGRkLCKvyDo9Jd6yP-2BUXpMCcEmZODa8WglWimjqtTYWGXujsBBeHJxBGd8papqSlugPHDJQwOuScH8CD4S58wvp1b3df7R0XJ9Q7IVKfSRHAXVJl05Y8cGXPgyMIVvYZhK8P5aRohDtaCOW7y8PR1nQIC6pmP8ThLkpNZSmafgLBatSNBIBQtA2hexx75wpsLHUGU-2B9v7fTXzlf1E-2FvRbK-2F2QHP39ohk3RB6-2FQ8-2FDJV7b3BqRRLsDdu7YJxQFe4rw7Ny-2F69lSPMGmEuFhmdBXt7xbGf-2FyPCcajh5JLBaWtB10bZDOwDpNGIPfMYfjQcZPhfJDx3phtp-2F7yJAaRSiQ4p6aBS06klG16Se5vPOeGmvLE2H429QcrprDemOFTCdkDhYl-2BZMWJb9QA908v7GfOpxQ1k4mGfdpEd5NZGRzO1rltQHJnxh72DwHkbD31Pydjiql-2BGHVzx1Jw1RszG85-2B9uheasTzo-2BYUTxirPuA24BEcb7GaUyopmtf8cK2f0pqdOv-2BMJAYDnju-2Fe2yQVNpyumTeJFXE9kdMDwuRkitNG2KeF2XWz-2BjBItzqXldoJ63BJQ9v-2BcE9IC5H3DHw7gxMILusWuesrgXsIRnohPmPLFXcL0tesNNI8AmPqHYiBEIhJvFB-2F3kTt2e5NMDdRh0eOlf8-2B09rhQN-2BNnCakOk6kdJ0a1lBrW-2FLeVMhpx0LwUUmzU1zxnDFKPjfl1aPyp-2BvK9euSpSsmZ7OJ286JOhczVDfWTu1z1Avtfajk3Ft1q44e1c7hG9J1x9CqjBCYDPCFZ-2FBwK-2BO6un-2BpcZ1zYz683xcwYEuSJWvdKViiZKK-2ByRS5YH7aafIxuIccfJOreO4n8eHctrDhr-2BG0DFB2orPEu4Pf4TdZl8J6am2sUcJzFY3zQ3N-2BLNNgl2iuQRrvYfupuSGutsySKh0b69R2X-2FufdYJDl02jWe3Qohobqet8GAMSLX6-2FxDh7H-2B68c3gCU7IHNYrdrhcKV9PYGcqIvVDlV-2F1Ked-2BNjQDIAkt2jFBoNxQqBXEEiIJruGzNcXI7jJj-2Fnu-2FC8G574fXVEBsNawPD9Hivg7eU6pR1fXx7QRBvqVjSTMVu21wzs0Kw9ex2Ad5UynOWcpnHfeGHQ1NePO9sGuKdr9zQ87YWVCHglsdZ4-2Br7vWXg-2BTRH5yzdg-3D-3D
mailto:admin@innovativefountainservices.com
tel:9045511017
mailto:security@intuit.com
https://links.notification.intuit.com/ls/click?upn=u001.SkyGoo-2FemZT6Xc-2Fn1lGbnnGpQb95T-2FyxCp7-2F1WzYIvrMmz26Rqk48gQfpHF-2BAKSzFzu7_oMbLB5KVNpilw0o1cE7pRux3fxmqKWUG3BI3uuJy-2BWfoErVxfb7PrNrg8452o1P8TiluUv-2Fgdx-2FvnEzXkciOKoQa5EXOUP7mOJCwZ8myvv-2Ff9mL2KeaXOTDtBxIea8ltLiK3YZOU99rsSqVHgyCQHuFbSqPc8HpwM-2FROx3OBd3s4PHHqGZ16PCDXuRqTm4JfQzSB45yGRkLCKvyDo9Jd6yP-2BUXpMCcEmZODa8WglWimjqtTYWGXujsBBeHJxBGd8papqSlugPHDJQwOuScH8CD4S58wvp1b3df7R0XJ9Q7IVKfSRHAXVJl05Y8cGXPgyMIVvYZhK8P5aRohDtaCOW7y8PR1nQIC6pmP8ThLkpNZSmafgLBatSNBIBQtA2hexx75wpsLHUGU-2B9v7fTXzlf1E-2FvRbK-2F2QHP39ohk3RB6-2FQ8-2FDJV7b3BqRRLsDdu7YJxQFe4rw7Ny-2F69lSPMGmEuFhmdBXt7xbGf-2FyPCcajh5JLBaWtB10bZDOwDpNGIPfMYfjQcZPhfJDx3phtp-2F7yJAaRSiQ4p6aBS06klG16Se5vPOeGmvLE2H429QcrprDemOFTCdkDhYl-2BZMWJb9QA908v7GfOpxQ1k4mGfdpEd5NZGRzO1rltQHJnxh72DwHkbD31Pydjiql-2BGHVzx1Jw1RszG85-2B9uheasTzo-2BYUTxirPuA24BEcb7GaUyopmtf8cK2f0pqdOv-2BMJAYDnju-2Fe2yQVNpyumTeJFXE9kdMDwuRkitNG2KeF2XWz-2BjBItzqXldoJ63BJQ9v-2BcE9IC5H3DHw7gxMILusWuesrgXsIRnohPmPLFXcL0tesNNI8AmPqHYiBEIhJvFB-2F3kTt2e5NMDdRh0eOlf8-2B09rhQN-2BNnCakOk6kdJ0a1lBrW-2FLeVMhpx0LwUUmzU1zxnDFKPjfl1aPyp-2BvK9euSpSsmZ7OJ286JOhczVDfWTu1z1Avtfajk3Ft1q44e1c7hG9J1x9CqjBCYDPCFZ-2FBwK-2BO6un-2BpcZ1zYz683xcwYEuSJWvdKViiZKK-2ByRS5YH7aafIxuIccfJOreO4n8eHctrDhr-2BG0DFB2orPEu4Pf4TdZl8J6am2sUcJzFY3zQ3N-2BLNNgl2iuQRrvYfupuSGutsySKh0b69R2X-2FufdYJDl02jWe3Qohobqet8GAMSLX6-2FxDh7H-2B68fwk1khwu1MZ18G1tiYiuJ8lZAZOvqQ-2BmGLH9GyDch-2BwwRdchy-2FBqZIgW3dUXQGtY5DGG7zE7rxI3Str9K5MRBRchmlQI-2B1zxUQjSBllu6ilmrt0foKUg6q5rPLzb3zYvAAmNoff3RrflHUmiqdyk48Zab8p0muY-2F6oFMqAPHkZys7jbPvt5Ih7jHK5ao8e9-2BA-3D-3D
https://links.notification.intuit.com/ls/click?upn=u001.SkyGoo-2FemZT6Xc-2Fn1lGbnl-2F5GHn0Hd0J1eq4rGLBYkw-2FLkWrif1kZgkUhi-2BIlSB24KBo_oMbLB5KVNpilw0o1cE7pRux3fxmqKWUG3BI3uuJy-2BWfoErVxfb7PrNrg8452o1P8TiluUv-2Fgdx-2FvnEzXkciOKoQa5EXOUP7mOJCwZ8myvv-2Ff9mL2KeaXOTDtBxIea8ltLiK3YZOU99rsSqVHgyCQHuFbSqPc8HpwM-2FROx3OBd3s4PHHqGZ16PCDXuRqTm4JfQzSB45yGRkLCKvyDo9Jd6yP-2BUXpMCcEmZODa8WglWimjqtTYWGXujsBBeHJxBGd8papqSlugPHDJQwOuScH8CD4S58wvp1b3df7R0XJ9Q7IVKfSRHAXVJl05Y8cGXPgyMIVvYZhK8P5aRohDtaCOW7y8PR1nQIC6pmP8ThLkpNZSmafgLBatSNBIBQtA2hexx75wpsLHUGU-2B9v7fTXzlf1E-2FvRbK-2F2QHP39ohk3RB6-2FQ8-2FDJV7b3BqRRLsDdu7YJxQFe4rw7Ny-2F69lSPMGmEuFhmdBXt7xbGf-2FyPCcajh5JLBaWtB10bZDOwDpNGIPfMYfjQcZPhfJDx3phtp-2F7yJAaRSiQ4p6aBS06klG16Se5vPOeGmvLE2H429QcrprDemOFTCdkDhYl-2BZMWJb9QA908v7GfOpxQ1k4mGfdpEd5NZGRzO1rltQHJnxh72DwHkbD31Pydjiql-2BGHVzx1Jw1RszG85-2B9uheasTzo-2BYUTxirPuA24BEcb7GaUyopmtf8cK2f0pqdOv-2BMJAYDnju-2Fe2yQVNpyumTeJFXE9kdMDwuRkitNG2KeF2XWz-2BjBItzqXldoJ63BJQ9v-2BcE9IC5H3DHw7gxMILusWuesrgXsIRnohPmPLFXcL0tesNNI8AmPqHYiBEIhJvFB-2F3kTt2e5NMDdRh0eOlf8-2B09rhQN-2BNnCakOk6kdJ0a1lBrW-2FLeVMhpx0LwUUmzU1zxnDFKPjfl1aPyp-2BvK9euSpSsmZ7OJ286JOhczVDfWTu1z1Avtfajk3Ft1q44e1c7hG9J1x9CqjBCYDPCFZ-2FBwK-2BO6un-2BpcZ1zYz683xcwYEuSJWvdKViiZKK-2ByRS5YH7aafIxuIccfJOreO4n8eHctrDhr-2BG0DFB2orPEu4Pf4TdZl8J6am2sUcJzFY3zQ3N-2BLNNgl2iuQRrvYfupuSGutsySKh0b69R2X-2FufdYJDl02jWe3Qohobqet8GAMSLX6-2FxDh7H-2B68W9gv6scerHAbgEdp0pSncVRYkEdxebZEA1LWomZERGgAbhRRy0s-2Bfc7lzo32WNn-2F07amcsXKeLft3dmxo10MPaxWYWW-2BEe8v0tQgIqx8L8pi1OiVwp4bUqhdifkXCYeJbhdSXfLbWVXpce9snqBiN9DUWobU76E7mrN0tmszGivD3gXdG7h92pCJNS8ruHVNw-3D-3D
https://links.notification.intuit.com/ls/click?upn=u001.SkyGoo-2FemZT6Xc-2Fn1lGbnnGpQb95T-2FyxCp7-2F1WzYIvrMmz26Rqk48gQfpHF-2BAKSzLQLk_oMbLB5KVNpilw0o1cE7pRux3fxmqKWUG3BI3uuJy-2BWfoErVxfb7PrNrg8452o1P8TiluUv-2Fgdx-2FvnEzXkciOKoQa5EXOUP7mOJCwZ8myvv-2Ff9mL2KeaXOTDtBxIea8ltLiK3YZOU99rsSqVHgyCQHuFbSqPc8HpwM-2FROx3OBd3s4PHHqGZ16PCDXuRqTm4JfQzSB45yGRkLCKvyDo9Jd6yP-2BUXpMCcEmZODa8WglWimjqtTYWGXujsBBeHJxBGd8papqSlugPHDJQwOuScH8CD4S58wvp1b3df7R0XJ9Q7IVKfSRHAXVJl05Y8cGXPgyMIVvYZhK8P5aRohDtaCOW7y8PR1nQIC6pmP8ThLkpNZSmafgLBatSNBIBQtA2hexx75wpsLHUGU-2B9v7fTXzlf1E-2FvRbK-2F2QHP39ohk3RB6-2FQ8-2FDJV7b3BqRRLsDdu7YJxQFe4rw7Ny-2F69lSPMGmEuFhmdBXt7xbGf-2FyPCcajh5JLBaWtB10bZDOwDpNGIPfMYfjQcZPhfJDx3phtp-2F7yJAaRSiQ4p6aBS06klG16Se5vPOeGmvLE2H429QcrprDemOFTCdkDhYl-2BZMWJb9QA908v7GfOpxQ1k4mGfdpEd5NZGRzO1rltQHJnxh72DwHkbD31Pydjiql-2BGHVzx1Jw1RszG85-2B9uheasTzo-2BYUTxirPuA24BEcb7GaUyopmtf8cK2f0pqdOv-2BMJAYDnju-2Fe2yQVNpyumTeJFXE9kdMDwuRkitNG2KeF2XWz-2BjBItzqXldoJ63BJQ9v-2BcE9IC5H3DHw7gxMILusWuesrgXsIRnohPmPLFXcL0tesNNI8AmPqHYiBEIhJvFB-2F3kTt2e5NMDdRh0eOlf8-2B09rhQN-2BNnCakOk6kdJ0a1lBrW-2FLeVMhpx0LwUUmzU1zxnDFKPjfl1aPyp-2BvK9euSpSsmZ7OJ286JOhczVDfWTu1z1Avtfajk3Ft1q44e1c7hG9J1x9CqjBCYDPCFZ-2FBwK-2BO6un-2BpcZ1zYz683xcwYEuSJWvdKViiZKK-2ByRS5YH7aafIxuIccfJOreO4n8eHctrDhr-2BG0DFB2orPEu4Pf4TdZl8J6am2sUcJzFY3zQ3N-2BLNNgl2iuQRrvYfupuSGutsySKh0b69R2X-2FufdYJDl02jWe3Qohobqet8GAMSLX6-2FxDh7H-2B68Wj1qulI-2FUxLT4-2BTZvoWMbk8u14QcAWXim9N-2FGLCdeu3cuh2Y0T4Uvu8FYivcUvuHVCA-2BB-2BlrpxKdHfU4XHnEjBIuoE-2Bl5c6jQf56n2PHHRL9-2BpycTnaiGglbiKm-2BE9rfNp5Rjbb-2F2pPWOJ6-2FNZyP-2FCGX6IGsYdkmQptUJPB6xsHT0csFpjSSl8-2Bn4MjVP3hlw-3D-3D
https://links.notification.intuit.com/ls/click?upn=u001.SkyGoo-2FemZT6Xc-2Fn1lGbnkENg7RDV7rAS33dJzC7v1nWmCme2rJ6ODgzA-2BAjFgtt7BHEEDegaw6K4X22lfgC-2Fw-3D-3Dnhod_oMbLB5KVNpilw0o1cE7pRux3fxmqKWUG3BI3uuJy-2BWfoErVxfb7PrNrg8452o1P8TiluUv-2Fgdx-2FvnEzXkciOKoQa5EXOUP7mOJCwZ8myvv-2Ff9mL2KeaXOTDtBxIea8ltLiK3YZOU99rsSqVHgyCQHuFbSqPc8HpwM-2FROx3OBd3s4PHHqGZ16PCDXuRqTm4JfQzSB45yGRkLCKvyDo9Jd6yP-2BUXpMCcEmZODa8WglWimjqtTYWGXujsBBeHJxBGd8papqSlugPHDJQwOuScH8CD4S58wvp1b3df7R0XJ9Q7IVKfSRHAXVJl05Y8cGXPgyMIVvYZhK8P5aRohDtaCOW7y8PR1nQIC6pmP8ThLkpNZSmafgLBatSNBIBQtA2hexx75wpsLHUGU-2B9v7fTXzlf1E-2FvRbK-2F2QHP39ohk3RB6-2FQ8-2FDJV7b3BqRRLsDdu7YJxQFe4rw7Ny-2F69lSPMGmEuFhmdBXt7xbGf-2FyPCcajh5JLBaWtB10bZDOwDpNGIPfMYfjQcZPhfJDx3phtp-2F7yJAaRSiQ4p6aBS06klG16Se5vPOeGmvLE2H429QcrprDemOFTCdkDhYl-2BZMWJb9QA908v7GfOpxQ1k4mGfdpEd5NZGRzO1rltQHJnxh72DwHkbD31Pydjiql-2BGHVzx1Jw1RszG85-2B9uheasTzo-2BYUTxirPuA24BEcb7GaUyopmtf8cK2f0pqdOv-2BMJAYDnju-2Fe2yQVNpyumTeJFXE9kdMDwuRkitNG2KeF2XWz-2BjBItzqXldoJ63BJQ9v-2BcE9IC5H3DHw7gxMILusWuesrgXsIRnohPmPLFXcL0tesNNI8AmPqHYiBEIhJvFB-2F3kTt2e5NMDdRh0eOlf8-2B09rhQN-2BNnCakOk6kdJ0a1lBrW-2FLeVMhpx0LwUUmzU1zxnDFKPjfl1aPyp-2BvK9euSpSsmZ7OJ286JOhczVDfWTu1z1Avtfajk3Ft1q44e1c7hG9J1x9CqjBCYDPCFZ-2FBwK-2BO6un-2BpcZ1zYz683xcwYEuSJWvdKViiZKK-2ByRS5YH7aafIxuIccfJOreO4n8eHctrDhr-2BG0DFB2orPEu4Pf4TdZl8J6am2sUcJzFY3zQ3N-2BLNNgl2iuQRrvYfupuSGutsySKh0b69R2X-2FufdYJDl02jWe3Qohobqet8GAMSLX6-2FxDh7H-2B68f7PfapfpOxJD8RwTwesuHD3r6Tl4I0RBJtDrjBCcaZRKYEkwmE5ptgt8YvTYW5TWTOky415V8ZyhebGgBValA3tdD6j2kgX3AHfsVu3j4J53tESB5jwb2tyIEKviHggekdoWlrtZdXo-2BBzSr3XsKUiBISV26gXVuvE-2Ft1nxRSexFJQ-2FtyiK2dvKR-2FkpbiFv1Q-3D-3D




#

1.

ESTIMATE

Innovative Fountain Services, Inc
11637 Columbia Park Dr E

Ste 4

Jacksonville, FL 32258-4493

Celestina:Celestina Waterfall
Bill to

Celestina

Isles of Bartram Park CDD

475 West Town Place Ste 114
Saint Augustine, FL 32092

Estimate details

Estimate no.: 4484
Estimate date: 10/23/2025

Product or service

Fountain Service

Accepted date

admin@innovativefountainservices.c

om

+1(904) 551-1017

P.O. Number: Waterfall Fountain

Description Qty

Innovative Fountain Services proposes to provide 1
all necessary materials, labor, and equipment to

perform the following services:

To open the existing sand filter and remove all old

filter media. Replace all (8) laterals and any

necessary O-rings. Install new filter media and test

the system to verify proper operation of the

waterfall fountain.

Total

Accepted by

Amount

$2,714.00

$2,714.00


mailto:admin@innovativefountainservices.com
tel:9045511017




ESTIMATE

Innovative Fountain Services, Inc admin@innovativefountainservices.c
11637 Columbia Park Dr E om
Ste 4 +1(904) 551-1017

Jacksonville, FL 32258-4493

Bill to

Taylor Tennison

Celestina

c/o Celestina Master Ammenity
200 Business Park Circle suite 101
St. Augustine, FL 32095

Estimate details
Estimate no.: 4432
Estimate date: 09/17/2025

#  Product or service Description Qty Amount

1. Fountain Service Innovative Fountain Services proposes to provide 1 $722.00
all necessary materials, labor, and equipment to
perform the following services:
Install custom strainer assembly to the existing
float to help prevent weeds, algae and debris
clogging the pump strainer.

Total $72200

Accepted date Accepted by


mailto:admin@innovativefountainservices.com
tel:9045511017




INNCAVATIVE

Prepared on: October 21, 2025

Prepared by: Innovative Fountain and Lake Services

11637 Columbia Park Drive East

Suite 4

Jacksonville, FL 32258

Phone: (904) 551-1017

Website: www.innovativefountainservices.com

Prepared for: Celestina

Quarterly Floating Fountain Maintenance
Taylor Tennison
Vesta Property Services

Thank you for the opportunity to offer you a proposal for Floating Fountain Management. This correspondence outlines the
complete scope of work requested, including objectives, responsibilities, and associated costs.

OBJECTIVE:

Innovative Fountain Services proposes to furnish all labor, materials, tools, and travel costs to complete the scope

of work for six floating fountains as described below on a_guarterly basis. The following is a general list of specific inclusions
and exclusions.

INCLUSIONS:
1. Clean pump intake screen
— Ensures proper water flow and prevents clogging or collapse of the screen.
2. Scrape, clean, and inspect lights for blown bulbs
— Prevents overheating and extends light fixture life.
3. Clean all surfaces of float
— Helps prevent premature deterioration and maintains float integrity.
4. Clean display head
— Prevents algae buildup that can affect water pattern and aesthetics.
5. Clean display head jets
— Keeps water display uniform and consistent.
6. Adjust mooring lines as needed
— Prevents slack that could cause cable tangling or improper fountain positioning.
7. Adjust anchor points as required
— Ensures the fountain remains properly secured and aligned.
8. Test light circuits
— Verifies proper operation of GFCl protection and electrical safety.
9. Test pump circuits
— Confirms all components within the pump motor circuit are functioning correctly.
10. Reset timers as necessary

— Keeps fountain and lighting on the correct operating schedule.

11637 Columbia Park Drive East Suite 4 ¢ Phone: (904) 551-1017
www.innovativefountainservices.com



11. Tighten all electrical connections in control panel
— Helps prevent electrical shorts and potential control or equipment damage.
12. Take megohm readings on pump motor and cable
— Measures insulation resistance, helping to monitor the condition of motor windings and cable.

Exclusions:
1. Light fixtures or lamps
— Replacement of light fixtures or lamps is not included in this agreement and will be billed separately as needed.
2. Labor or parts not specifically listed under the inclusions
— Any additional work or materials beyond the defined scope will be quoted and billed separately.

In addition to the services outlined above, you will receive a quarterly report detailing voltage, amperage, and megohm
readings for each floating fountain. These readings provide insight into the condition of the pump motors and the integrity
of the power cables. This proactive monitoring allows us to identify early signs of motor deterioration, enabling us to
develop a preventive action plan to minimize potential downtime.

All maintenance procedures included in this agreement meet or exceed the recommended service standards of leading
fountain manufacturers, ensuring that the equipment remains properly maintained throughout the warranty period.

COST AND TERMS

This service agreement will remain in effect for one (1) year and will automatically renew at the end of each term unless
terminated by either party. Either party may cancel the agreement at any time by providing 30 days’ prior written notice.

The services outlined above will be provided at a rate of $540 per quarter, with billing occurring quarterly. Payment terms
are Net 30 from the date of each invoice. This proposal is valid for 30 days from the date of issuance.

We appreciate the opportunity to serve your aquatic needs. Please sign and email back to:
customerservice@innovativefountainservices.com

Thank you for allowing our TEAM the opportunity of EARNING YOUR BUSINESS!

Customer or Authorize Signature Date

Print Name and Title of Signer

11637 Columbia Park Drive East Suite 4 ¢ Phone: (904) 551-1017
www.innovativefountainservices.com


mailto:customerservice@innovativefountainservices.com




Proposal #: 601192

“’ YELLOWSTONE Date: 9/2/2025

From: Travis Arnold

L ANDJSTU CAUZPE
N

Landscape Enhancement Proposal for

Celestina North LOCATION OF PROPERTY
Cody Ayers
Vesta Property Services 36 Mandara Way

St Johns, FL 32256

ayersc@icloud.com

Bore Project along Sitara Ln

DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

Bore underneath Roadway Sitara Ln 1 $6,500.00 $6,500.00

Bore across Sitara from electrical unit to lake bank.

Terms and Conditions: Signature below authorizes Yellowstone to perform work as described in this proposal and verifies that the prices
and specifications are hereby accepted. This quote is firm for 30 days and change in plans or scope may result in a change of price. All
overdue balances will be charged a 1.5% a month, 18% annual percentage rate.

Limited Warranty: Plant material is under a limited warranty for one year. Transplanted material and/or plant material that dies due to
conditions out of Yellowstone’s control (i.e., Act of God, vandalism, inadequate irrigation due to water restrictions, etc.) shall not be included
in the warranty.

AUTHORIZATION TO PERFORM WORK: Subtotal $6,500.00

By Sales Tax $0.00

Proposal Total $6,500.00

Print Name/Title

THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE

Date

Celestina North

Landscape Enhancement Proposal BRANCH TEL: 904-268-2626




SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS



From: Taylor Tennison ttennison@vestapropertyservices.com &
Subject: RE: Isles of Bartram Park CDD meeting
Date: September 2, 2025 at 10:56 AM
To: Scott Forshey-Friedman supervisorforsheyfriedman@gmail.com, Sarah Sweeting ssweeting@gmsnf.com

Good morning,

Boring $6,500.00
Electrical $5,200.00
Fountain $11,000

Regards,

Taylor Tennison, LCAM
Celestina POA Property Manager
P. 904-429-7159

C. 904-747-0181 X186

Q Vesta Property Services

- 200 Business Park Circle, Suite 101

N0 oun Coumunmes - St. Augustine, FL 32095
1995:2025 www.VestaPropertyServices.com

Your Community. ‘4’ =)
Our Commitment. TOP \\ nl::ligz‘:‘ﬁ’s\\
PLACES '/, CHOICE \
—_= AWARDS |

b /

~\ I/

-

Careers | Request Proposal

linlf [0l

FIDENTIALITY NOTICE: Thi. S,f m il_and any att chment to, it, contains pnv:l ’%ed and

ﬁ entla n ormat on I t n on for t use o e individual(s) or erm y a ed on

t e e-mail IS e mal s not 17 e rec:plent og ee of

treslponﬂ e erm to the intende, r(';chplent OIJ ereb,v notl ied that
strictly prohl lte you fve receivy is e-mail in error, please

lmme 1ately return It to the sen er and delete it from your system.

From: Scott Forshey-Friedman <supervisorforsheyfriedman@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, September 2, 2025 10:17 AM

To: Sarah Sweeting <ssweeting@gmsnf.com>

Cc: Taylor Tennison <ttennison@vestapropertyservices.com>

Subject: Re: Isles of Bartram Park CDD meeting

Taylor-
See if we get can electricity, boring and fountain for pond 7 please.

Scott Forshey-Friedman
Supervisor-Isles Of Bartram Park CDD


mailto:Tennisonttennison@vestapropertyservices.com
mailto:Tennisonttennison@vestapropertyservices.com
mailto:Forshey-Friedmansupervisorforsheyfriedman@gmail.com
mailto:Forshey-Friedmansupervisorforsheyfriedman@gmail.com
mailto:Sweetingssweeting@gmsnf.com
mailto:Sweetingssweeting@gmsnf.com
https://vestaps.com/VestaPropertyServices
https://bit.ly/VESTACAREERS
https://vestaps.com/RFP

On Sep 2, 2025, at 9:55 AM, Sarah Sweeting <ssweeting@gmsnf.com>
wrote:

Hi Scott/Taylor,
Are you able to obtain proposals for the below by the November meeting?

Please let me know if there’s anything | can do.

Sarah Sweeting

Governmental Management Services, LLC
475 West Town Place, Suite 114

St. Augustine, Florida 32092

(904) 940-5850 x 402
ssweeting(@gmsnf.com

Begin forwarded message:

From: Joe Zemel <joezemel@gmail.com>

Subject: Re: Isles of Bartram Park CDD meeting
Date: September 2, 2025 at 9:51:04 AM EDT

To: Sarah Sweeting <ssweeting@gmsnf.com>

Cc: Joe Zemel <joezemelcdd@gmail.com>, Jim Oliver
<joliver@gmsnf.com>

Reply-To: joe@zemel.org

Sarah,

If we don't have it, can we have the pricing for the fountain
installation and purchase for pond 7 for this meeting?

Thanks,
Joe

On Tue, Sep 2, 2025, 9:45 AM Sarah Sweeting
<ssweeting@gmsnf.com> wrote:

Hi Joe,

T’vi0 vomnvod Sontt frnm thic smail rhain ta oncivo o vromain in


mailto:ssweeting@gmsnf.com
mailto:ssweeting@gmsnf.com
mailto:joezemel@gmail.com
mailto:ssweeting@gmsnf.com
mailto:joezemelcdd@gmail.com
mailto:joliver@gmsnf.com
mailto:joe@zemel.org
mailto:ssweeting@gmsnf.com

L VO ICInUYeU IDCULL JIUITL LI CIILUWLE CIVURLTL LY SO WI© VW 1 CIiert ure

compliance with the Sunshine Law.

The next meeting is scheduled for November 14th. I’ve requested proposals
from three vendors for a Capital Reserve Report, which will be presented
for consideration at that meeting.

I'll also add an agenda item for discussion of pond fountains.

Thank you,

Sarah Sweeting

Governmental Management Services, LLC
475 West Town Place, Suite 114

St. Augustine, Florida 32092

(904) 940-5850 x 402
ssweeting(@gmsnf.com

On Sep 2, 2025, at 8:38 AM, Joe Zemel
<joezemelcdd @gmail.com> wrote:

Sarah and Jim,

| have the next meeting on my calendar for both
November 14 and 21. Which is the correct date
of the next meeting, so | can adjust my calendar?

In addition to budget ratification, what other topics
are going to be covered?

At the last meeting the topic of a reserve study
came up. Will the cost for this be covered? Also,
at a prior meeting we discussed that we would
hold off putting a fountain in pond 7 until 2026.
Can the vote for this happen at the November
meeting, holding off any work (cost) until January
20267

Thanks,
Joe


https://www.google.com/maps/search/475+West+Town+Place,+Suite+114+St.+Augustine,+Florida+32092?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/475+West+Town+Place,+Suite+114+St.+Augustine,+Florida+32092?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/475+West+Town+Place,+Suite+114+St.+Augustine,+Florida+32092?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:ssweeting@gmsnf.com
mailto:joezemelcdd@gmail.com




EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS



FIRST CHOICE AQUATICS
14289 DENTON ROAD
JACKSONVILLE, FL. 32226
904-226-703 | www firstchoiceaquaticsjax@gmail.com 08/28/2025

Alum Application for Algae Control

(One-time treatment)

This agreement dated effective to start , 2025 is made between First Choice Aquatics, Inc. and
Name:

Address:

City: State: Zip:

Phone: Fax: Email:

Hereinafter called “Customer”.

1. First Choice Aquatics agrees to provide Aluminum Sulfate treatment in accordance with the terms and

conditions of this agreement and within all governmental regulations at the following location(s):

POND 7 LOCATED AT CELESTINA

Pond 7: $3500.00

50% off discount: Total treatment cost $1750.00

2. The effective date of this agreement is

3. All Included: Aluminum Sulfate application for the most effective algae treatment.

4. The Customer agrees to pay First Choice Aquatics the following sum(s) for specified Aluminum Sulfate
services. The pond can be treated for a total of $1750.00.

5. In addition, First Choice Aquatics will provide free call back service within 24 hours.

6. Payment schedule is as follows:

-Payment for the Aluminum Sulfate treatment is due upon the execution of this agreement.



FIRST CHOICE AQUATICS
14289 DENTON ROAD
JACKSONVILLE, FL. 32226
904-226-703 | www firstchoiceaquaticsjax@gmail.com 08/28/2025

Terms and Conditions:

1.  Aluminum Sulfate treatment will commence within ten business days of the execution of this
agreement.

2. Neither party shall be responsible in damages, penalties, or otherwise for any failure or delay in the
performance of any of its obligations hereunder caused by strikes, riots, war, accidents, acts of God,
governmental order and regulations, curtailment or failure to obtain enough material or other cause
beyond its reasonable control in which it is unable to overcome. Should First choice aquatics be
prohibited, restricted, or otherwise prevented from rendering specified services by any of the
conditions, First Choice Aquatics shall notify the customer of said condition and of the excess direct
costs arising therefrom.

3. Time-use restrictions — When federal and state regulations require water-time restrictions following the
application of aquatic herbicides, First Choice Aquatics will notify the customer in writing of such
restrictions at the time of treatment. It shall be the responsibility of the customer to comply with the
restrictions throughout the required period of time-use restrictions. Customer understands and agrees
that notwithstanding any other provisions of this agreement, First Choice Aquatics does not assume
any liability for failure by any party to be notified of, or comply with, the above time-use restrictions.

4. Authorized Agent — Customer warrants that he/she is authorized to execute this aquatic management
agreement on behalf of the riparian owner and to hold First Choice Aquatics harmless for
consequences of such services not arising out of the sole negligence of First Choice Aquatics.

5. Payments — The one time fee amount is firm for the entire term of the original agreement. The
customer agrees to reimburse First Choice Aquatics for any bank charges resulting from a returned
check for insufficient funds.

6. Payment of services are due within 15 days of invoice due date. Customer agrees to pay interest on all
late payments. This interest amount is set at 18% APR or 1 % per month. Services will be restricted on
any account sixty (60) days past due until payment is received in full.

7. Non-Payment, Default — In the case of non-payment by the customer, First Choice Aquatics reserves
the right following written notice to the customer to terminate this agreement, and reasonable
attorneys’ fee and costs of collection shall be paid by the customer, whether the suit is filed or not. In
addition, interest at the rate of one and one half percent (1.5%) per month may be assessed for the
period of delinquency.

8. Assignment of the agreement — This agreement is not assignable by the customer except upon written
consent by First Choice Aquatics.

9. Termination of Contract: A 30-day written notice by either party is required to terminate this contract.



FIRST CHOICE AQUATICS
14289 DENTON ROAD
JACKSONVILLE, FL. 32226
904-226-703 | www firstchoiceaquaticsjax@gmail.com 08/28/2025

The terms and conditions in this entire agreement form an integral part of this agreement and the
CLIENT hereby acknowledges that he has read, is familiar with, and will comply with the
contents thereof.

First Choice Aquatics, Inc. CLIENT

Signed: M Signed:

Daniel J. Thomas, President Print Name:




NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS



RESOLUTION 2026-01

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors, hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, of
the Isles Bartram Park Community Development District, hereinafter referred to
as “District”, adopted a General Fund and Capital Reserve Fund Budget for fiscal
year 2025, and

WHEREAS, the Board desires to reallocate funds budgeted to re-appropriate
Revenues and Expenses approved during the Fiscal Year.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF

THE ISLES OF BARTRAM PARK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
TO THE FOLLOWING:

1. The General Fund and Capital Reserve Fund Budget are hereby amended
in accordance with Exhibit “A” attached.

2. This resolution shall become effective this 14h day of November, 2025 and

be reflected in the monthly and fiscal Year End 9/30/25 Financial
Statements and Audit Report of the District

Isles Bartram Park

Community Development District

Chairman

Attest:

by:

Secretary



ISLES OF BARTRAM PARK CDD
RESOLUTION 2026-01

EXHIBIT A



Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District
General Fund

Budget Amendment
For The Period Ending September 30,2025

Adopted Increase ended Actual

Budget (Decrease) Budget Thru 09/30/25
Revenues:
Special Assessments - Tax Roll $ 317,987 $ 5,186 $ 323,172 $ 323,172
Interest 3,414 4,075 7,489 7,489
Total Revenues $ 321,401 $ 9,260 $ 330,661 $ 330,661
Expenditures:
G 1 & Admini .
Supervisor Fees $ 4,000 $ 400 4,400 $ 4,400
PR-FICA 306 - 31 337 337
Engineering 12,000 - 12,000 -
Attorney 10,000 (5,000) 5,000 1,724
Annual Audit 4,100 - 4,100 4,100
Assessment Administration 5,618 - 5,618 5618
Arbitrage Rebate 1,200 - 1,200 1,200
Dissemination Agent 7,866 - 7,866 7,866
Trustee Fees 8,800 - 8,800 8,800
Management Fees 54,694 - 54,694 54,694
Information Technology 1,800 - 1,800 1,800
Website Maintenance 1,200 - 1,200 1,200
Telephone 150 (100) 50 49
Postage & Delivery 500 - 500 414
Insurance General Liability/Public Officials 12,854 (517) 12,337 12,337
Printing & Binding 500 (300) 200 178
Legal Advertising 1,265 (600) 665 568
Other Current Charges 1,000 (300) 700 627
Office Supplies 200 (196) 4 4
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions 175 - 175 175
Total General & A inistrative $ 128,228 $ (6,582) $ 121,646 $ 106,090
0 ions & Mai
Field Expenditures
Landscape Maintenace (Yellowstone) $ 64,972 $ - $ 64,972 $ 50,379
Lake Maintenance (First Choice Aquatics) 33,700 (3,500) 30,200 30,200
Waterfall/Entry Pond Maintenance 11,500 (4,000) 7,500 6,696
Lake Fountains Maintenance (First Coast Aquatics) 14,000 (10,510) 3,490 3,490
Management 6,000 - 6,000 6,000
Utilities 10,000 (3,500) 6,500 5,744
General Maintenance 3,000 3,173 6,173 6,173
Subtotal Field Expenditures $ 143,172 $ (18,337) $ 124,835 $ 108,682
Total Operations & Maintenance $ 143,172 $ (18,337) $ 124,835 $ 108,682
Total Expenditures $ 271,400 $ (24,919) $ 246,481 $ 214,773
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures 50,000 115,888
Other Fi ing S (Uses):
Capital Reserve Fund (50,000) - (50,000) (50,000)
Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses) $ (50,000) $ - $ (50,000) $ (50,000)
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 0 $ 34,180 $ 34,180 $ 65,888
Fund Balance - Beginni $ = $ 146,898 $ 146,898

Fund Balance - Ending $ 0 $ 34,180 $ 181,078 $ 212,786




Isles of Bartram Park

Community Development District

Capital Reserve Fund
Budget Amendment

For The Period Ending September 30,2025

Adopted Increase Amended Actual
Budget (Decrease) Budget Thru 09/30/25
Revenues
Capital Reserve Transfer In $ 50,000 - $ 50,000 $ 50,000
Interest - 3,174 3,174 3,174
Total Revenues $ 50,000 3,174 $ 53,174 $ 53,174
Expenditures:
Capital Outlay $ - 32,550 $ 32,550 $ 32,550
Repairs and Maintenance - 13,952 13,952 13,952
Other Service Charges - 215 215 215
Total Expenditures $ - 46,717 $ 46,717 $ 46,717
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures 50,000 (43,543)
Other Fi ings /(Uses)
Transfer In/(Out) $ - - $ - $ -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ - - $ o $ °
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 50,000 (43,543) $ 6,457 $ 6,457
Fund Balance - Beginning $ 50,923 - $ 50,923 $ 92,361
Fund Balance - Ending $ 100,923 (43,543) $ 57,380 $ 98,818




ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS









W ig)

M

Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District
Performance Measures/Standards &
Annual Reporting Form

October 1, 2024 - September 30, 2025

1. Community Communication and Engagement

Goal 1.1: Public Meetings Compliance
Objective: Hold at least three regular Board of Supervisor meetings per year to
conduct CDD related business and discuss community needs.
Measurement: Number of public board meetings held annually as evidenced by
meeting minutes and legal advertisements.
Standard: A minimum of five board meetings were held during the Fiscal Year.
Achieved: Yes [1No [

Goal 1.2: Notice of Meetings Compliance
Objective: Provide public notice of meetings in accordance with Florida Statutes,
using at least two communication methods.
Measurement: Timeliness and method of meeting notices as evidenced by posting
to CDD website, publishing in local newspaper and via electronic communication.
Standard: 100% of meetings were advertised per Florida statute on at least two
mediums (i.e., newspaper, CDD website, electronic communications).
Achieved: Yes [1No [

2. Infrastructure and Facilities Maintenance

Goal 2.1: Field Management and/or District Management Site Inspections
Objective: Field manager and/or district manager will conduct quarterly
inspections per District Management services agreement to ensure safety and
proper functioning of the District’s infrastructure.
Measurement: Field manager and/or district manager visits were successfully
completed, as evidenced by field manager and/or district manager’s reports, notes
or other record keeping method.
Standard: 100% of site visits were successfully completed as described within field
management services agreement
Achieved: Yes [1No [




3. Financial Transparency and Accountability

Goal 3.1: Annual Budget Preparation
Objective: Prepare and approve the annual proposed budget by June 15 and final
budget was adopted by September 30 each year.
Measurement: Proposed budget was approved by the Board before June 15 and
final budget was adopted by September 30 as evidenced by meeting minutes and
budget documents listed on CDD website and/or within district records.
Standard: 100% of budget approval & adoption were completed by the statutory
deadlines and posted to the CDD website.
Achieved: Yes [1No [

Goal 3.2: Financial Reports
Objective: Publish to the CDD website the most recent versions of the following
documents: Annual audit, current fiscal year budget with any amendments, and
most recent financials within the latest agenda package.
Measurement: Annual audit, previous years’ budgets, and financials are accessible
to the public as evidenced by corresponding documents on the CDD’s website.
Standard: CDD website contains 100% of the following information: Most recent
annual audit, most recent adopted/amended fiscal year budget, and most recent
agenda package with updated financials.
Achieved: Yes [1No [

Goal 3.3: Annual Financial Audit
Objective: Conduct an annual independent financial audit per statutory
requirements and publish the results to the CDD website for public inspection, and
transmit to the State of Florida.
Measurement: Timeliness of audit completion and publication as evidenced by
meeting minutes showing board approval and annual audit is available on the
CDD’s website and transmitted to the State of Florida.
Standard: Audit was completed by an independent auditing firm per statutory
requirements and results were posted to the CDD website and transmitted to the
State of Florida.
Achieved: Yes [1No [



Chair/Vice Chair: Date:
Print Name:
Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District

District Manager: Date:
Print Name:
Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District




FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS






Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District

Unaudited Financial Reporting
September 30, 2025

M e




Table of Contents

Balance Sheet

General Fund

Month to Month

Debt Service Fund Series 2015

Debt Service Fund Series 2017

Capital Reserve Fund

Long Term Debt Report

Assessment Receipt Schedule

Check Register Summary




Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District
Combined Balance Sheet
September 30, 2025

General Debt Service Capital Reserve Totals
Fund Fund Fund Governmental Funds
Assets:
Cash:

Operating Account - Truist $ 105,739 $ - $ 39,719 $ 145,458
Assessments Receivable 12,016 - - 12,016
Due from Other - - - -
Due from General Fund - Series 2015 - 8,468 - 8,468
Due from General Fund - Series 2017 - 7,187 - 7,187
Due from Developer 900 - . 900
Investments:

State Board of Administration (SBA) 97,881 - 59,099 156,980
Series 2015
Reserve - 218,876 - 218,876
Interest - 97 - 97
Revenue - 412,541 - 412,541
Sinking Fund - 271 - 271
Gen Redemption - 1,759 - 1,759
Prepayment - 18 - 18
Series 2017 -
Reserve - 170,000 - 170,000
Interest - 78 - 78
Principal - - - -
Revenue - 371,901 - 371,901
Prepayment - 18 - 18
Sinking Fund 151 151
Prepaid Expenses 12,738 - - 12,738
Deposits - - - -
Total Assets $ 229,274 $ 1,191,364 $ 98,818 $ 1,519,456
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 832 $ - $ - $ 832
FICA Payable - - -
Due to Debt Service - Series 2015 8,468 - - 8,468
Due to Debt Service - Series 2017 7,187 - - 7,187
Total Liabilites $ 16,488 $ o $ = $ 16,488
Fund Balance:
Nonspendable:

Prepaid Items $ - $ - $ - $ -
Restricted for:

Debt Service - 1,191,364 - 1,191,364

Capital Project - - - -
Assigned for:

Capital Reserve Fund - - 98,818 98,818

Capital Reserves - - - -
Unassigned 212,786 - - 212,786
Total Fund Balances $ 212,786 $ 1,191,364 $ 98,818 $ 1,502,968

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 229,274 1,191,364 1,519,456




Isles of Bartram Park

Community Development District

General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

For The Period Ending September 30,2025

Adopted Prorated Budget Actual
Revenues:
Special Assessments - Tax Roll $ 317,987 $ 317,987 $ 323,172 $ 5,186
Interest 3,414 3,414 7,489 4,075
Total Revenues $ 321,401 $ 321,401 $ 330,661 $ 9,260
Expenditures:
G 1 & Admini .
Supervisor Fees $ 4,000 $ 4,000 $ 4,400 $ (400)
PR-FICA 306 - 306 337 31
Engineering 12,000 12,000 - 12,000
Attorney 10,000 10,000 1,724 8,277
Annual Audit 4,100 4,100 4,100 -
Assessment Administration 5,618 5,618 5,618 -
Arbitrage Rebate 1,200 1,200 1,200 -
Dissemination Agent 7,866 7,866 7,866 -
Trustee Fees 8,800 8,800 8,800 -
Management Fees 54,694 54,694 54,694 -
Information Technology 1,800 1,800 1,800 -
Website Maintenance 1,200 1,200 1,200 -
Telephone 150 150 49 101
Postage & Delivery 500 500 414 86
Insurance General Liability/Public Officials 12,854 12,854 12,337 517
Printing & Binding 500 500 178 322
Legal Advertising 1,265 1,265 568 697
Other Current Charges 1,000 1,000 627 373
Office Supplies 200 200 4 196
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions 175 175 175 -
Total General & A inistrative $ 128,228 $ 128,228 $ 106,090 $ 22,138
0 ions & Mai
Field Expenditures
Landscape Maintenace (Yellowstone) $ 64,972 $ 64,972 $ 50,379 $ 14,593
Lake Maintenance (First Choice Aquatics) 33,700 33,700 30,200 3,500
Waterfall/Entry Pond Maintenance 11,500 11,500 6,696 4,804
Lake Fountains Maintenance (First Coast Aquatics) 14,000 14,000 3,490 10,510
Management 6,000 6,000 6,000 -
Utilities 10,000 10,000 5,744 4,256
General Maintenance 3,000 3,000 6,173 (3,173)
Subtotal Field Expenditures $ 143,172 $ 143,172 $ 108,682 $ 34,490
Total Operations & Maintenance $ 143,172 $ 143,172 $ 108,682 $ 34,490
Total Expenditures $ 271,400 $ 271,400 $ 214,773 $ 56,628
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures $ 50,000 $ 115,888
Other Fi ing S (Uses):
Capital Reserve Fund (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) -
Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses) $ (50,000) $ (50,000) $ (50,000) $ -
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 0 $ 65,888
Fund Balance - B $ ° $ 146,898
Fund Balance - Ending $ 0 $ 212,786




Isles of Bartram Park

Community Development District

Month to Month

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb May Aug Sept Total
Revenues:
Special Assessments - Tax Roll $ 21,137 §$ 36,704 § 233,619 § 21,865 §$ - $ 3,581 § - $ - $ 2,832 § - 3,435 § 323,172
Interest 216 203 203 229 1,048 1,157 1,119 823 791 599 592 511 7,489
Total Revenues 216§ 21339 $ 36,907 $ 233,848 § 22913 §$ 1,157 § 4,700 $ 823 §$ 791§ 3431 $ 592 3945 § 330,661
Expenditures:
G 1& Admini _—
Supervisor Fees $ 800 $ - $ $ 800 $ - $ $ 800 $ 1,000 $ $ 1,000 - $ 4,400
PR-FICA - 61 - - 61 - - 61 77 - 77 - 337
Engineering - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Attorney 24 141 47 116 304 308 116 410 141 119 - 1,724
Annual Audit - - - - - 1,000 3,100 - - - - - 4,100
Assessment Administration 5618 - - - - - - - - - - - 5618
Arbitrage Rebate - 600 - - - - - 600 1,200
Dissemination Agent 656 656 656 656 656 656 656 656 656 656 656 656 7,866
Trustee Fees - 4,400 - - - - - - - - 4,400 - 8,800
Management Fees 4,558 4,558 4,558 4,558 4,558 4,558 4,558 4,558 4,558 4,558 4,558 4,558 54,694
Information Technology 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 1,800
Website Maintenance 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 1,200
Telephone 22 - 5 - 6 - 10 6 - 49
Postage & Delivery 7 130 - 33 30 31 31 4 35 8 92 13 414
Insurance General Liability/Public Officials 12,337 - - - - - - - - - - - 12,337
Printing & Binding 0 34 0 8 29 - 1 33 9 34 30 178
Legal Advertising 69 - - 70 - - 137 - 216 75 - 568
Other Current Charges 39 47 39 39 42 42 142 42 57 42 57 42 627
Office Supplies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 4
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions 175 - - - - - - - - - - - 175
Total General & Administrative 23,755 $ 11,043 $ 6,184 $ 5656 $ 6,779 $ 6873 $ 8,858 §$ 6,918 $ 6,806 $ 5867 $ 11,204 6,149 §$ 106,090
0 ions & Mai
Field Expenditures
Land Mai (Yell ) 3,154 § 3,154 $ 5293 § 3,244 § 11,890 § 3959 § 3,244 § 3,244 § 3,244 § 3,355 § 3,355 3,244 § 50,379
Lake Maintenance (First Choice Aquatics) 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 5,450 - 4,850 3,100 30,200
Waterfall/Entry Pond Maintenance 1,193 738 1,315 450 916 - 352 350 377 362 315 328 6,696
Lake Fountains Maintenance (First Coast Aquatics) - - 750 - - 400 840 - 750 - - 750 3,490
Management 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 6,000
Utilities 405 393 552 617 503 491 656 749 752 142 485 - 5,744
General Maintenance - 2,206 - - - - 800 431 882 1,854 - - 6,173
Subtotal Field Expenditures 7353 § 9,091 § 10510 §$ 6911 § 15909 $§ 7450 $ 8492 § 7374 $ 11,954 § 6212 § 9,505 7,922 $ 108,682
Total Operations & 7353 § 9,091 § 10,510 $ 6911 § 15909 § 7,450 § 8492 § 7374 § 11,954 §$ 6212 § 9,505 7922 $ 108,682
Total Expenditures 31,107 § 20,134 $ 16,693 $ 12,567 $ 22,688 $ 14,323 § 17,349 $ 14,292 $ 18,760 $ 12,079 $ 20,709 14,071 §$ 214,773

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources/Uses:

(30,891)

20,213

(13,166)

(12,649)

(13,469)

(17,969)

(8,649)

(20,118)

(10,126)

$ 115,888

Transfer In/(Out) - - - - - - - (50,000) - - - - (50,000)
Total Other Fi Sources/Uses - - § - $ - - § - $ - (50,000) $ - $ - o - $ (50,000)
Net Change in Fund Balance (30,891) $ 1206 $ 20,213 § 221,282 $ 225 § (13,166) $ (12,649) $ (63469) $ (17,969) $ (8649) $ (20,118) (10,126) $ 65,888




Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District
Debt Service Fund Series 2015

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
For The Period Ending September 30,2025

Adopted Prorated Budget Actual
Revenues:
Special Assessments - Tax Roll $ 429,732 $ 429,732 $ 436,748 $ 7,016
Interest Income 12,000 12,000 25,720 13,720
Total Revenues $ 441,732 $ 441,732 $ 462,468 $ 20,736
Expenditures:
Interest-11/1 $ 139,934 $ 139,934 $ 139,806 $ 128
Principal -11/1 135,000 135,000 135,000 -
Interest-5/1 136,981 136,981 136,853 128
Special Call -5/1 - - 5,000 (5,000)
Total Expenditures $ 411,916 $ 411,916 $ 416,659 $ (4,744)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures $ 29,817 $ 45,809
Other Fi ings /(Uses):
Transfer In/(Out) $ - $ - $ - $ -
Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses) $ - $ - $ = $ =
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 29,817 $ 45,809
Fund Balance - Beginning $ 367,939 $ 596,220
Fund Balance - Ending $ 397,756 $ 642,029




Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District
Debt Service Fund Series 2017

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
For The Period Ending September 30,2025

Adopted Prorated Budget Actual
Revenues:
Special Assessments - Tax Roll $ 364,708 $ 364,708 $ 370,683 $ 5,975
Interest Income 10,000 10,000 21,816 11,816
Total Revenues $ 374,708 $ 374,708 $ 392,498 $ 17,791
Expenditures:
Interest-11/1 $ 112,434 $ 112,434 $ 112,309 $ 125
Principal-11/1 115,000 115,000 115,000 -
Interest-5/1 110,134 110,134 110,009 125
Special Call -5/1 - - 5,000 (5,000)
Total Expenditures $ 337,569 $ 337,569 $ 342,319 $ (4,750)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures $ 37,139 $ 50,180
Other Fi ings /(Uses):
Transfer In/(Out) $ - $ - $ - $ -
Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses) $ - $ - $ = $ =
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 37,139 $ 50,180
Fund Balance - Beginning $ 323,485 $ 499,155
Fund Balance - Ending $ 360,624 $ 549,335




Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District
Capital Reserve Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
For The Period Ending September 30,2025

Adopted Prorated Budget Actual
Revenues
Capital Reserve Transfer In $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 50,000 -
Interest - - 3,174 3,174
Total Revenues $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 53,174 3,174
Expenditures:
Capital Outlay $ - $ - $ 32,550 (32,550)
Repairs and Maintenance - - 13,952 (13,952)
Other Service Charges - - 215 (215)
Total Expenditures $ - $ - $ 46,717 (46,717)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures 50,000
Other Fi ings /(Uses)
Transfer In/(Out) $ - $ R $ R R
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ - $ o $ o °
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 50,000 $ 6,457
Fund Balance - Beginning $ 50,923 $ 92,361
Fund Balance - Ending $ 100,923 $ 98,818




Isles of Bartram Park

Long Term Debt Report

Series 2015 Special Assessment Bonds

Interest Rate: 4.375%-5.125%
Maturity Date: 11/1/1945
Reserve Fund Definition 50% of Maximum Annual Debt Service
Reserve Fund Requirement $214,291
Reserve Fund Balance 218,876
Bonds outstanding-11/30/2015 $6,725,000
Less: November 1,2015 $0
Less: November1,2016 ($110,000)
Less: November 11,2017 ($130,000)
Less: May 1,2018 (Prepayment) ($100,000)
Less: November1,2018 ($100,000)
Less: May 1,2019 (Prepayment) ($20,000)
Less: November 1,2019 ($105,000)
Less: November 1,2019 (Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less: November 1,2020 ($110,000)
Less: May 1,2021 (Prepayment) ($15,000)
Less: November 1,2021 ($115,000)
Less: November 1,2021 (Prepayment) ($20,000)
Less: May 1,2022 (Prepayment) ($85,000)
Less: November 1,2022 ($120,000)
Less: November 1,2022 (Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less: May 1,2023 (Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less: November 1,2023 ($130,000)
Less: November 1,2023 (Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less: November 1,2024 ($135,000)
Less: May 1,2025 (Prepayment) ($5,000)
Current Bonds Outstanding $5,405,000

Series 2017 Special Assessment Bonds

Interest Rate: 3.50%-5.00%
Maturity Date: 11/1/1947
Reserve Fund Definition 50% of Maximum Annual Debt Service
Reserve Fund Requirement $169,678
Reserve Fund Balance 170,000
Bonds outstanding-11/30/2017 $5,345,000
Less: November 1,2018 ($50,000)
Less: May 1,2019 (Prepayment) ($25,000)
Less: August1,2019 (Prepayment) ($15,000)
Less: November 1,2019 ($95,000)
Less: November 1,2019 (Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less: November 1,2020 ($100,000)
Less: November 1,2021 ($100,000)
Less: May 1,2022 (Prepayment) ($15,000)
Less: November1,2022 ($105,000)
Less: November 1,2022 (Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less: May 1,2023 (Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less: November 1,2023 ($110,000)
Less: November 1,2023 (Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less: November 1,2024 ($115,000)
Less: May 1,2025 (Prepayment) ($5,000)
Current Bonds Outstanding $4,590,000

|Tota1 Bonds Outstanding

$9,995,000 |







Isles of Bartram Park

Community Development District

Fiscal Year 2025 Assessment Receipts

SERIES 2015 SERIES 2017
DEBT DEBT
SERVICE SERVICE
ASSESSED TO ASMT ASMT TOTAL ASMTS
TAXROLL NET 635 429,732.19 364,728.02 317,980.57 1,112,440.78
TOTAL DISTRICT NET 635 429,732.19 364,728.02 317,980.57 1,112,440.78
SERIES 2015 SERIES 2017
DEBT DEBT
SERVICE SERVICE 0&M TOTAL
RECEIVE FROM BALANCE DUE RECEIVED RECEIVED RECEIVED RECEIVED
TAXROLL RECEIVED / DUE (18,162.44) 436,748.29 370,682.82 323,172.12 1,130,603.24
TOTAL RECEIPTS / DUE (18,162.44) 436,748.29 370,682.82 323,172.12 1,130,603.24
TAX ROLL RECEIPTS
SERIES 2015 SERIES 2017
DEBT DEBT
ST JOHNS COUNTY SERVICE SERVICE TOTAL
DISTRIBUTION ASMT ASMT RECEIVED
1 11/5/2024 1,654.35 1,404.11 1,224.14 4,282.60
2 11/15/2024 14,461.29 12,273.78 10,700.63 37,435.70
3 11/19/2024 12,449.30 10,566.13 9,211.86 32,227.29
4 12/6/2024 32,925.91 27,945.32 24,363.54 85,234.77
5 12/19/2024 16,677.27 14,154.55 12,340.36 43,172.18
6 1/9/2025 314,796.10 267,177.93 232,933.54 814,907.57
INTDIST 1 1/13/2025 926.67 786.49 685.69 2,398.85
7 2/20/2025 29,549.02 25,079.23 21,864.81 76,493.06
8 4/8/2025 4,382.19 3,719.31 3,242.60 11,344.10
INT DIST 2 4/14/2025 457.78 388.54 338.74 1,185.06
10 7/10/2025 3,826.87 3,247.99 2,831.70 9,906.56
INT DIST 3 10/9/2025 33.58 28.50 24.84 86.92
EXCESS FEES 10/28/2025 4,607.97 3,910.94 3,409.67 11,928.58
TOTAL TAX ROLL RECEIPTS 436,748.29 370,682.82 323,172.12 1,130,603.24
IPERCENTCOLLECTED TAX ROLL 102% 102% 102% 102%







Isles of Bartram Park
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Fiscal Year 2025

Check Register
Fund Date check #'s Amount Total
General Fund
7/1/25-7/31/25 1246-1255 $14,897.09
8/1/25-8/31/25 1256-1267 21,432.65
9/1/25-9/30/25 1268-1278 28,371.96
$64,701.70
Capital Reserve
7/1/25-7/31/25 3-4 $17,974.00
8/1/25-8/31/25 5-6 7,451.74
9/1/25-9/30/25 7-8 21,076.00
$46,501.74
TOTAL $111,203.44

* Fedex Invoices available upon request



AP300R

EAR- TO- DATE

Y
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2025 - 09/30/2025 *** |
BANK A | SLES OF BARTRAM

CHECK VEND#
DATE

7/01/25 00036

' 7/01/25 00038

7/01/25 00032

" 7/08/ 25 00036

" 7/08/ 25 00036

" 7/08/ 25 00001

' 7/08/25 00023

..... INVOCE. .... ...EXPENSED TO...
DATE INVOCE YRMO DPT ACCT#
6/ 25/ 25 3203 202506 320-57200-

REPLMTI (5) LI GHT BULBS

6/ 29/ 25 062925 2 202506 320 57200
RPL LANDSCAPE LI GHTI NG

6/ 30/ 25 3584475 202503 310 51300
GENERAL CQOUNS
6/ 30/ 25 3584475 202504 310 51300
APR GENERAL COUNSEL

"4/ 23/ 25 3087 202504 320- 57200-
REPLMT (6) LI GHT BULBS

7/ 01/ 25 3253 202506 320 57200
JUL LAKE NMAI NTENANCE

7/ 01/ 25 3253 202506 320-57200-
ADD L MONTHLY TREATMENTS

7/ 01/ 25 139 202507 310 51300
JUL MANAGEMENT FEES

7/ 01/ 25 139 202507 310 51300-
JUL WEBSI TE ADM N

7/ 01/ 25 139 202507 310-51300-
JUL | NFORMATI ON TECH

7/ 01/ 25 139 202507 310-51300-
JUL DI SSEM NATI ON SVCS

7/ 01/ 25 139 202507 310-51300-
OFFI CE SUPPLI ES

7/ 01/ 25 139 202507 310-51300-
POSTAGE

7/ 01/ 25 139 202507 310-51300-
COPI ES

7/01/ 25 139 202507 310-51300-
TELEPHONE

6/ 30/ 25 2029077 202506 320 57200
JUN WATERFALL FOUNT/ CH

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAI D/ COWUTER CHECK REG STER

SLES OF BARTRAM - GENERAL
SUB swBCLAss TR NAVE
46300
FI RST CHOI CE AQUATI CS
46600
CARLTON J MJRPHY
31500 -
31500
KUTAK ROCK LLP
46300 S
FIRST CHOI CE AQUATI CS
46100
46100
FI RST CHOI CE AQUATI CS
34000
52000
35100
31200
51000
42000
42500
41000
GOVERNVENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVI CES
46400
| NNOVATI VE FOUNTAI N SERVI CES | NC

| BTR | SLES OF BRTRM TLEE

STATUS

RUN

11/ 05/ 25 PAGE 1

AMOUNT ... CHECK. . ...

350.

2, 100.
1, 000.

4, 557,
100.
150.
655.

.33

.59

.30

.62

881.

308.
115.

420.

350. 00 001246

881.75 001247

423.50 001248
420. 00 001249
3, 100. 00 001250
83
00

00
50

5,490. 17 001251

376. 74 001252



AP300R

*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2025 -

CHECK VEND#
DATE

7/ 08/ 25 00018

7122/ 25 00022
7122/ 25 00022

"8/ 05/ 25 00036

' 8/05/25 00038

' 8/05/25 00023

" 8/05/25 00018

"8/11/25 00001

EAR- TO- DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAI DY COMPUTER

Yl
09/ 30/ 2025 ***

| SLES OF BARTRAM - GENERAL

BANK A | SLES OF BARTRAM

"YRMD DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS

..... INVO CE. . ... . EXPENSED TO. . .
DATE | NVO CE
7/ 01/ 25 427360 202507 320-53800- 45501

7101/ 25

7/ 22/ 25

8/01/25

8/ 01/ 25

JUL MANAGEMENT SERVI CES

946705

VESTA PR(PERTY SERVI CES
202507 320 57200 46200

JUL LANDSCAPE MAI NTENANCE

957968
RRI GATI ON REPAI R

3288
3288
ADD

YEL LO/\STO\IE LANDSCAPE

202507 320 57200 46200

YEL LQ/\BTO\IE LANDSCAPE

202508 320 57200 46100
AUG LAKE MAI NTENANCE

202508 320-57200-46100
L MONTHLY TREATMENTS

Fl RST CHC] CE AQJATI CS

7/ 29/ 25 072925 3 202507 320 57200 46600

I NSTAL | RRI GATI ON METER

CARLTO\I J I\/URPHY

7/ 31/ 25 2029294 202507 320 57200 46400
JUL WATERFALL FOUNT MAI NT
7/ 31/ 25 2969294 202507 320- 57200 46400

I NNO\/ATI VE FQJNTAI N SERVI CES I NC

8/01/25

8/01/25

8/ 01/ 25
8/ 01/ 25
8/ 01/ 25
8/ 01/ 25
8/ 01/ 25
8/ 01/ 25

CHEM CALS ADDE

427797
141

AUG
141
AUG WEBSI TE ADM N
141

MANAGEMENT FEES

141

141
OFFI CE SUPPLI ES
141
POSTAGE
141
COPI ES

202508 320 53800 45501
AUG MANAGEMENT SERVI CES

VENDOR NAME

h

VESTA PRODERTY SERVI CES

202508 310 51300 34000
202508 310-51300- 52000
202508 310-51300-35100
AUG | NFORVATI ON TECH

202508 310-51300- 31200
AUG DI SSEM NATI ON SVCS

202508 310-51300-51000
202508 310-51300- 42000

202508 310-51300- 42500

| BTR | SLES OF BRTRM TLEE

I NC.

CHECK REG STER

STATUS

RUN

11/ 05/ 25

AMOUNT

500.

3, 243.

2,100.
1, 000.

1,853,

4, 557.
100.
150.
655.

92.
33.

111.

202.
159.

500.

00

500. 00

3,243.93

3, 100. 00

1,853.77

500. 00

001253
001254

001255

001256

001257

001258

001259



AP300R

*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2025 -

CHECK VEND#

DATE

8/ 01/ 25 141

EAR- TO- DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAI DY COVPUTER CHECK REG STER

Yl
09/ 30/ 2025 ***

I N\VO CE

| SLES OF BARTRAM - GENERAL
BANK A | SLES OF BARTRAM

.. ...EXPENSED TO...

VENDOR NAME

YRMO DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS

202508 310-51300-41000
TELEPHONE

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVI CES

8/19/25 00041  7/31/25 7249862 202507 310- 51300- 48000

8/19/25 00022 8/ 01/ 25 968682
AUG

' 8/26/25 00016 8/ 19/25 00252-25 202508 310- 51300- 33000

' 8/26/25 00025  6/20/ 25 06202025 202505 320- 57200- 46500

REM B JEA | RRI G 6/ 20/ 25

' 8/26/25 00025 7/21/25 07212025 202506 320- 57200- 46500

REM B JEA | RRI G 7/ 21/ 25

' 8/26/25 00032 8/ 25/ 25 3612312
MAY GENERAL  COUNS

NOTI CE OF BUDGET MIG 8/ 8

SE2017 TRUSTEE FEES

202505

310
E

isisboisisbo_

202508 320- 57200- 46200
LANDSCAPE Al NTENANCE

GANNETT MEDI A CORP DBA GANNET
YELLOASTONE LANDSCAPE
THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

CELESTI NA MASTER HOA

CELESTI NA MASTER HOA

8/ 25/ 25 3612312. 202506 310-51300- 31500
JUN GENERAL COUNSEL

"8/ 26/ 25 00022 'sizé/é5'9?7é2é

9/09/25 00036  8/29/25 3325
" 9/09/25 00036 9/01/25 3341

9/09/25 00036 9/01/25 3372
SEP

QRTLY FOUNTAI N MAI NT

9/ 01/ 25 337

2

202509

LAKE MAI NTE

320- 57200- 46100
NANCE

202508 320- 57200- 46200
RRI GATI ON REPAI RS- AUG25
202508 320- 57200- 46100
ONE TI NE TREATNENT- POND 7

202509 320- 57200- 46300

KUTAK ROCK LLP
YELLOASTONE LANDSCAPE

FI RST CHO CE AQUATI CS

FI RST CHO CE AQUATI CS

202509 320-57200- 46100
ADD L MONTHLY TREATMENTS

FI RST CHO CE AQUATI CS

| BTR | SLES OF BRTRM TLEE

STATUS

RUN

11/ 05/ 25

3, 243. 93
4, 400. 00
748. 68

751. 61

550. 50

111. 00

1, 750. 00

400. 00

3, 100. 00

90_12?0
905[2?1
905[2532
(_)05[2553
905[2554

001265

001266
001267
001268

001269

001270



AP300R YEAR- TO- DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAI D/ COVPUTER CHECK REG STER

*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2025 - 09/30/2025 *** | SLES OF BARTRAM - GENERAL
BANK A | SLES OF BARTRAM
CHECK VEND# ..... INVO CE. . ... ... EXPENSED TO.. . VENDOR NAME STATUS
DATE DATE INVOCE YRMO DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS
9/ 09/ 25 00001 9/ 01/ 25 142 202509 310-51300- 34000 *

SEP MANAGEMENT FEES

9/ 01/ 25 142 202509 310 51300- 52000 *
SEP WEBSI TE ADM N

9/ 01/ 25 142 202509 310-51300- 35100 *
SEP | NFORVATI ON TECH

9/ 01/ 25 142 202509 310-51300-31200 *
SEP DI SSEM NATI ON SVCS

9/ 01/ 25 142 202509 310-51300-51000 *
OFFI CE SUPPLI ES

9/ 01/ 25 142 202509 310-51300-42000 *
POSTAGE

9/ 01/ 25 142 202509 310-51300-42500 *
COPI ES

C-lO\/ERNI\/ENTAL I\/ANAGEI\/ENT SER\/I CES
9/ 09/ 25 00013 9/ 04/ 25 28099 202509 310 51300 35300 *

ARB SE2017 FYE 7/31/25
GF\’AU & ASSCIZI ATES

9/09/25 00023  9/02/ 25 2029558 202508 320- 57200 46400 *
AUG WATERFALL FOUNT
9/ 02/ 25 2035558 DOPEGE S30. 57P00 46400 *
AUG CHEM CALS ADDED
| NNOVATI VE FOUNTAI N SERVI CES | NC
9/ 09/ 25 00018 9/ 01/ 25 428236 202509 320- 53800- 45501 *
SEP MANAGENENT SERVI CES
VESTA PROPERTY SERVI CES, |NC
9/ 16/ 25 00041 8/ 31/25 7301725 202508 310-51300- 48000 *
NOTI CE OF FY26 NEETI NGS
GANNETT MEDI A CORP DBA GANNET
9/ 16/ 25 00022 9/ 01/25 990977 202509 320-57200- 46200 *

SEP LANDSCAPE NMAI NTENANCE
YELLOJ\STO\IE LANDSCAPE

9/ 23/ 25 00025 9/ 10/ 25 09102025 202507 320 57200 46500 *
REM B JEA | RRI G 8/ 19/ 25
CELESTI NA MASTER HOO\
9/ 23/ 25 00006  9/18/25 29495 202509 300 15500 10000 *
FY26 | NSURANCE RENEWAL
EA S | NSURANCE ADVI SCRS LLC

TOTAL FOR BANK A
| BTR | SLES OF BRTRM TLEE

RUN 11/ 05/ 25

5,507. 34

600. 00

315,35
590._ OE)

75,44
3,203,3
141,90

12, 738.00

001271

001272

905].2_73
E)OEI.2_74
E)OEI.2_75
E)Oil.2_76
9051.2_77

001278



AP300R YEAR- TO- DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAI D/ COVPUTER CHECK REG STER

*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2025 - 09/30/2025 *** | SLES OF BARTRAM - GENERAL
BANK A | SLES OF BARTRAM
CHECK VEND# ..... INVO CE. . ... ... EXPENSED TO.. . VENDOR NAME STATUS
DATE DATE INVOCE YRMO DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS

TOTAL FOR REG STER

| BTR | SLES OF BRTRM TLEE

RUN 11/ 05/ 25

64, 701. 70



INVOICE

First Choice Aquatics firstchoiceaquaticsjax@gmail.com
14289 Denton Rd +2267031
Jacksonville, Fi. 32226

Bill to Ship to
tsies of Bartram Park tsles of Bartram Park

Invoice details

Invoice no.: 3203

Terms: Net 30

Invoice date: 06/25/2025
Due date; 07/25/2025

Date Product or service Description Qty Rate

Fountain Repair 5 $70.00

Total

1 70.00 Pond 1 Fountain: Replaced 1 light bulb
2 140.00 Pond 2 Fountain: Replaced 2 light buibs
1 70.00 Pond 3 Fountain: Replaced 1 light bulb
1 70.00 Pond 4 Fountain: Replaced 1 light bul

RECEIVED
By Tara Lee at 9:15 am, Jun 26, 2025

Amount

$350.00

$350.00



High Tide Elecfric

9758 Redbird Creek Dr S
Jacksonville, FL 32221 US
+19043432153

carlton. hightideelectric@gmail.com

INVOICE

Bi.L TO

tstes of Bartram Park CDD

200 Business Park Circle, Suite 101
St. Augustine, FL 32095

DATE SERVICE

06/10/2025 Labor

06/24/2025 Labor
Material

DESCRIPTION

Troubleshot entrance lighting circuit.
Disconnected lights behind entrance
monument wall causing lighting circuit
to trip.

Replaced iwo landscape light fixtures
located behind entrance monument
wall. Replaced one landscape light
fixture located under first palm tree in
entrance island.

BALANCE DUE

RECEIVED

By Tara Lee at 9:15 am, Jun 30, 2025

Fage 1oft

INVOICE
DATE
TERMS
DUE DATE

QTy

1

HiE

HIGH TIDE
ELECTRIC
062925-2
06/29/2025
Net 30
07/29/2025
RATE AMOUNT
150.00 150.00
350.00 350,00
381.75 38175
$881.75



KUTAK ROCK LLP Check Remit To:

Kutak Rock LLP
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA PO Box 30057
Telephone 4064-222-4600 Omaha, NE 68103-1157

Facsimile 404-222-4654

Federal ID 47-0597598

Jane 30, 2025

Jim Oliver
Isles of Bartram Park CDD
Governinental Management Services — St. Augustine

Suite 114

475 West Town Place

St. Augustine, FI. 32092 Invoice No. 3584475

10623-1

Re:  Isles of Bartram Park CDD - General

For Professional Legal Services Rendered

03/08/25 G. Lovett 0.30 79.50 Monitor legislative process relating
to matters impacting special districts

03/13/25 W. Haber 0.50 117.50 Review audit and confer with
Peregrino regarding same

03/18/25 W. Haber 0.20 47.00 Review and respond fo auditor
mquiry

03/31/25 P. Avrett 0.40 64.00 Coordinate response to auditor letter

04/12/25 L. Whelan 0.30 115.50 Monitor legislative process relating
to matters impacting special districts

TOTAL HOURS 1.70

TOTAL FOR SERVICES RENDERED $423.50

TOTAL CURRENT AMOUNT DUE $423.50

RECEIVED
By Tara Lee at 12:03 pm, Jun 30, 2025

PRIVELEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL
ATTORNEY-CLIENT COMMUNICATION AND/OR WORK PRODUCT



INVOICE

First Choice Aquatics firstchoiceaquaticsjax@gmail.com

14289 Denton R +2267031
Jacksonville, FL. 32226

Bill to
Isles of Bartram Park

Invoice details

Invoice no.: 3087

Terms: Net 30

Invoice date: 04/23/2025
Due date: 05/23/2025

#  Date Product or service

1. Fountain Repair

Ship to
Isles of Bartram Park

Description Qty Rate
Ponds 1, 2, 3, 4. Replaced a total of 6 6 $70.00
light bulbs

Total

RECEIVED

By Tara Lee at 1:02 pm, Jul 07, 2025

Amount

$420.00

$420.00



First Cholce Aquatics

14289 Denton Rd

Jacksonville, FL. 32226 USA
+2267031
firstchoiceaquaticsjax@gmail.com

T

f—

TR 1Y £ 1
; H%g QV &,E i

BILL TO

Isles of Bartram Park

C/O GMS,LLC

475 West Town Place, Suite
114

St. Augustine, Florida 32092

INVOICE # 3253

DATE 07/01/2025

DUE DATE 07/31/2025
TERMS Net 30

SERVICE DESCRIPTION

Lake Isies of Bartram Park
Maintenance

Maintenance Additional Treatments monthly

Services renderad are for the month listed above.

RECEIVED

By Tara Lee at 11:44 am, Jul 01, 2025

TAX
TOTAL
BALANCE DUE

ary

SUBTOTAL

RATE
2,100.00

1,000.00

AMOUNT
2,100.00

1,000.00

3,100.00
0.00
3,100.00

$3,100.00



Governmental Management Services, LLC z
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 invo |Ce
St. Augustine, FL 32092
Invoice #: 139
invoice Date: 7/1/25
Due Date: 7/1/25
Bill To: Casei
Isles of Bartram Park CDD P.0. Number:
475 West Town Place
Sulte 114
At. Augustine, FL 32092
Description Hours/Qty Rate Amount
Management Fees - July 2025 4,557.83 4,557.83
Website Administration - July 2025 100.00 100.00
Information Technology - July 2025 150.00 150.00
Dissemination Agent Services - July 2025 655.50 655.50
Office Supplies 0.33 0.33
Postage 7.59 7.59
Copies 9.30 9.30
Telephone 9.62 9.62
Total $5,490.17
Payments/Credits $0.00
RE CE IVED Balance Due $5,490.17

By Tara Lee at 9:10 am, Jul 03, 2025




Innovative Fountain Sarvices, Inc

11637 Columbia Park Dr E
Ste 4
Jacksonvilie, FL 32258-4483
USA
admin@innovativefountainservices.com
- o S
INVOICE
BILL TO INVOICE # 2029077
Isles of Bartram Park CDD DATE 06/30/2025
475 West Town Place Ste 114 DUE DATE 07/30/2025
Saint Augustine, FL 32092 TERMS Net 30
DATE ACTIMITY DGESCRIPTION (WEN'd RATE AMOUNT
Maintenance Setvice Monthly Stationary Maintenance 1 202.50 202.50
Waterfall Fountain- June
Chemicals Chemicals Added 1 174.24 174.24
BALANCE DUE $376 74

By Tara Lee at 8:46 am, Jul 01, 2025




XJQS&W}U Invoice

Invoice # 427360
Date 07/01/2025
Vesta Property Services, Inc.
245 Riverside Avenue
Suite 300 Terms Due on receipt
Jacksonville FI_ 32202

Due Date 07/01/2025
Memo WGY - MANAGEMENT
Bill To
Isles of Bartram Park CDD
475 West Town Place
Suite 250

Jacksonville FL 32002

| MANAGEMENT SERVICES

i

Total 500.00

RECEIVED
By Tara Lee at 11:42 am, Jul 01, 2025




*@ . @ YELO

Bill To:

Celestina-Isles of Bartram CDD

c/o GMS-NF, LLC _ Remit To:

475 West Town PI, Suite 114

Saint Augustine, FL 32092 Yellowstone Landscape

PO Box 101017
Property Name: Celestina-Isles of Bartram CDD Atlanta, GA 30392-1017
Address: 47?’ West Town P| Invoice Due Date: July 31, 2025
Suite 114

St. Augustine, FL 32092

Invoice Amount:  $3,243.93

bty i - -
Monthly Landscape Maintenance July 2025

Invoice Total $3,243.93

Should you have any questions or inquiries please call {386) 437-6211.

Yellowstone Landscape | Post Office Box 849 | Bunnell FL 32110 | Tel 386.437.6211 | Fax 386.437.1286



YELLOWSTONE

Bill To:

Celestina-Isies of Bartram CDD

cfo GMS-NF, LLC Remit To:

475 West Town P, Suite 114 T

Saint Augustine, FL 32092 Teoustone pandscape
Property Name: Celestina-Isles of Bartram CDD Atlanta, GA 30392-1017
Address: 475 West Town Pl Invoice Due Date: August 21, 2025

Suite 114
St. Augustine, FL 32092

Invoice Amount: $111.00

e
% S e
July irrigation repalrs-2055
irrigation Repairs $111.00
Invoice Total $111.00

Should you have any questions or inquiries please call (386) 437-6211.

Yeliowstone Landscape | Post Office Box 849 | Bunnell FL. 32110 | Tel 386.437.6211 | Fax 386.437.1288



First Choice Aquatics

14289 Denton Rd L
Jacksonville, FL 32226 USA £
+2267031 8
firstchoiceaguaticsjax@gmail.com

BILL. TO INVOICE # 3288

Isles of Bartram Park DATE 08/01/2025
C/O GMS,LLC DUE DATE 08/31/2025
475 West Town Place, Suite TERMS Net 30

114

St. Augustine, Florida 32092

SERVICE DESCRIPTION ary RATE AMOUNT
Lake Isles of Bartram Park 1 2,100.00 2,100.00
Maintenance

Maintenance Additional Treatments monthly 1 1,000.00 1,000.00
Services rendered are for the month listed above. SUBTOTAL 3,100.00
TAX 0.00
TOTAL 3,100.00

BALANCE DUE
RECEIVED $3,100.00

By Tara Lee at 12:38 pm, Aug 01, 2025




High Tide Electric

9758 Redbird Creek Dr §
Jacksonville, FL 32221 US
+19043432152

carlton. hightideelectric@gmail. com

INVOICE

BIHLTO

Isles of Bartram Park CDD

200 Business Park Circle, Suite 101
St Augustine, FL 32095

DATE SERVICE

07/17/2025 {.abor
Material
Petrmit

DESCRIPTION

Installed a new 100Airrigation

meter/main electrical panel for new
fountain in Celesta Pkwy pond. New
meter main passed inspection, and

new service can be requested for
471Celesta Pkwy IR01.

BALANCE DUE

RECEIVED

By Tara Lee at 1:46 pm, Jul 29, 2025

Page T of 1

HIGH TIDE
ELECTRIC
PVOICE 072925-3
OATE 07/29/2025
TERMS Net 30
DUE DATE 08/28/2025
Qry RATE AMOUNT
1 120000 1,200.00
1 578.17 578.17
1 75.60 75.60
$1,853.77




Innovative Fountain Services, Inc
11637 Columbia Park Dr E

Ste 4

Jacksonville, FL 32258-4463

USA
admin@innovativefountainservices.com

BILLTO

Isles of Bartram Park CDD
475 West Town Place Ste 114
Saint Augustine, FL 32092

INVOICE # 2029294
DATE 07/31/2025
DUE DATE 08/30/2025
TERMS Net 30

DATE DESCRIFTION

Monthly Stationary
Maintenance Waterfall
Fountain- July

Chemicals Added

RECEIVED
By Tara Lee at 12:11 pm, Jul 31, 2025

ary

BALANCE DUE

PATE AMOURNT
202.50 202.50
159.29 159.29

$361.79




XJ@SE@;"% Invoice

nvoice # 427797
Date 08/01/2025
Vesta Property Services, inc.
245 Riverside Avenue
Suite 300 Terms Due on receipt
Jacksonville FL 32202
Due Date 08/01/2025

Memo WGV - MANAGEMENT

Bilt To

isles of Bartram Park CDD
475 West Town Place
Suite 250

Jacksonville FL 32092

| MANAGEMENT SERVICES 1500.00

Total 500.00

RECEIVED

By Tara Lee at 10:00 am, Aug 01, 2025




Governmental Management Services, LLC .

475 West Town Place, Suite 114 invgﬁce

St. Augustine, FL. 32092

Invoice #: 141
Invoice Date: 8/1/25
Due Date: 8/1/25

Bill To: Case:

Isles of Bartram Park CDD P.O. Number:

475 West Town Place

Suite 114

At. Augustine, FL 32082

Description Hours/Qty Rate Amount
Management Fees - August 2025 4,557.83 4,557.83
Website Administration - August 2025 100.00 100.00
Information Technology - August 2025 150.00 150.00
Dissemination Agent Services - August 2025 655.50 655.50
Office Supplies 0.27 0.27
Postage 92.00 92.00
Copies 33.75 33.75
Telephone 5.82 5.82
Total $5,585.17
Payments/Credits $0.00

RECEIVED Balance Due $5,595.17

By Tara Lee at 12:51 pm, Aug 07, 2025




LocaliQ

Florida
GANNETT

Istes of Bartram Park CDD ¢fo GMS LILC

0007249862 Jui 1- Jut 31, 2025 $218.20

$216.20

1.egal Entity: Gannett Media Corp.
isles Of Bartram Park Cdd C/O Gms Lic Terms and Conditlons: Past due accounts are subject to Interesi at the rate of
Shelby Stephens 18% per annum or the maximum fegal rate (whichever is less). Advertiser claims
for & credit related to Tates incorrectly Involced or pald must be submitted In writing
475 W. T(?Wﬂ Pl Ste. 114 o Publisher within 30 days of the invoice date or the cialm will be waived. Any
St Augustine, FL. 32092-3649 credit towards future advertising must be used within 30 days of lssuance of the
credit will be forfelted,
I!I'l'ﬂﬂ‘l'lllII"I!l||"|‘l“ll‘qI*“hli'l"!l'hl'"'l'“'l All funds payable in US doliars.
BILLING INQUIRIES/ADDRESS CHANGES 1-877-736-7612 or smb@gce.gannett.com FEDERAL 1D 47-2380883
Save A Treel Gannett is going paperiess. Enjoy the convenience of accessing your billing information anytime and pay online. To
avoid missing an invoice, sign up today by reaching out to abgspecial@ganneti.com.

Start-End Date Order Number Product Description PO Number Package Cost
7M11125-7118125 11350086 SAG St Augustine Record Budget Notice $216.20

RECEIVED
By Tara Lee at 3:12 pm, Aug 11, 2025

As an incentive for customers, we provide a discount off the total invoice cost Total Cash Amount Due $216.20
equal to the 3.99% service fee if you pay with Cash/Check/ACH. Pay by Service Fee 3.96% $8.83
Cash/Check/ACH and Save! *CashfCheck/ACH Discount -$8.63
*Payment Amount by Gash/Checl/ACH $216.20
Payment Amount by Credit Card $224.83

Istes of Barram Park CDD cfo GMS LLC 789138 0007249862

URR! AY
1

$216.20 $0.00 $0.00 $c.00 $0.00 $0.00 $216.20

1-877-736-7612 $224.83

Gannett Florida LocaliQ
PO Box 631244 To sign up for E-mailed invoices and online payments please contact
Cincinnati, OH 45263-1244 abgspecial@gannett.com

Q00074849134000000000000672498620002162067173




FLORIDA

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

Sarah Sweeting

Isles of Bartram Park CDD c/o GMS, LLC
475 W Town PL# 114

St Augustine FL 32092-3649

STATE OF WISCONSIN, COUNTY OF BROWN

gefore the undersigned autharity personally appeared, who
on oath says that he or she is the Legal Coordinator of the
St Augustine Record, published in St Johns County, Florida;
that the attached copy of advertisement, being a Govt Public
Notices, was published on the publicly accessibie website of
St Johns County, Florida, or in a newspaper by print in the
issues of, on:

07/11/2025, 07/18/2025
Affiant further says that the website or newspaper complies
with all legal requirements for publication in chapter 50,

Florida Statutes.
Subscribed and sworn to before me, by the legal clerk, who

wihy to me, on 07/18/2025

seley )
777 Y
Notary, statc’of WI, County of Brown . S,
506

is persona

My commission expires

Publication Cost: $216,20

Tax Amount; $0.00

Payment Cost: $216.20

Order No: 11350986 # of Copies:
Customer No: 789138 1

PO #:

THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE!

Plouse do not v this form for payment renitiance.

MARIAH VERHAGEN
Notary Public

State of Wisconsin

PO Box 631244 Cincinnati, OH 45263-1244

ISLES DOF BARTRAM FARK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
T

DISTRI
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
TO CONSIGER THE ADOPTION
OF THE FISCAL YEAR 102
PROPDSED BUDGET{S}: AND
NOTICE OF REGULAR EBDARD
OF SUPERVISORS" MEETING,
The Baard ol Supervisors (“8oard”)
af lhe Isles of Bartrom Park
Communily Cevelopmeni  District
{(*Dislrict*) will hold o public
heaoring and repulor meeting s
foflows!
DATE: Auqus! 8, 2025
TIME: W:00 ¢
LOCATION; Govermmnentel
Management Services, LLE
475 Wesl Town Place, Suite 114
St, Avgustine, Florido 12092
The purpase of the pubilc hearing is
o raceive comments ond objections
on the adeplion of the Disirici™s
praposed budgeiis) lor the [iscol
vear beginning Cctober 1. 2025, ond
enging Seplember 19, 2074
{"Proposed Budgel”}. A regulor
Boord meating of Ihe District wili
also be held ot 1he obove lme where
the Boord may consider ony alher
business Ihot may properly come
hefore it, A capy of the ogeado ond
Proposed Budget moy be obloined
at the oHices ol the District
Nancger, Governmenlal
Moncgement  Services, 475 Wesl
Town  Ploce, Suite 114, S1
Augusting, Florido 32072, {904 910
5350 {~District Manoger’'s Dfflce”),
during normal business hours, or by
visiting 1he Dislricl’s website ot
ntse . Islesolbortromnorkedd.c

The public hearing ond meeling ore
open 1o the public and wifl be
conducted in occordonce wilh the
provisions ol Flerlde tow. The aublic
heoring  andfor meeling moy  be
coatinued in progress 1o o dofe, time
certoin, ond place o be specitied on
the record at lhe public heoring
ondlor meeting. There moy be
occasions when Goprd Suparvisars
or Districl StaH moy porticioele by
speoker jelephane.

Any  persen  reauiring  speciol
accemmodations  of  the pubfic
hearing or mecling hecouse of a
disabi{lty or physicol impoirment
should contogt ihe District
Manager's Office of leas! forty-eighi
{dl) hours prior 1o the public
heoring ong meeting. 1l you ere
hearing or speech imeclred. oleose
conloct the Florida Relay Service by
dioling 7-1-1, or 1-B00-955-8271 (TTY)
! 1-80D-955.B770 (Moice), for oid in
conlocting 1he Edstrict Moncger's
Oifice,

Each person wha decides 1o uppedl
any decislan mode by lhe Boord
witk  respect  to  any  maotles
considered o1 the public hearinn or
meeting is advised fhal person wil
need D record of proteedings and
fnal occordingly, fhe person maoy
peed o ensyre Mol o wverbolim
record of the proceedings is made,
including  the lestimony  and
evldenca upon which such appeo’ is
io be based,

Jumes Dllver

DIstrict Monouer

July 13, 18, 2025 {11350985)

Page 1 of 1




YELLOWSTONE

968682  8/1/2025

Celestina-Isles of Bartram CDD Net 30

clo GMS»NF, LLC . Remit To:

475 West Town P, Suite 114 .

Saint Augustine, FL 32092 Yellowstone Landscape

PO Box 101017
Property Name: Celestina-Isles of Barfram CDD Atlanta, GA 30392-1017
Address: 475 West Town Pi Invoice Due Date: August 31, 2025
Suite 114

St. Augustine, FL 32092
Invoice Amount:  $3,243.93

onthly Landscape Maintenance Augus

RECEIVED

By Tara Lee at 11:40 am, Aug 04, 2025

Invoice Total $3,243.93

Should you have any questions or inquiries please call (386) 437-6211.

Yellowstone Landscape | Post Office Box 849 | Bunneli FL 32110 | Tel 386.437.6211 | Fax 386.437.1286



‘ BNY INVOICE

F

c

r: GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC
Attn: Jim Qliver

475 West Town Place, Suite 114 Invoice Date: Aug 19, 2025
World Golf Village Due Date: Sep 18, 2025
St Augustine, FL 32092 Account Number: 1062859399-INV
From:  The Bank of New York Melfon Trust Company, National Cycle Date: Aug 1, 2025
Association Legacy Ref#: ISLES2017
333 South Hope Street c . USD
Los Angeles, CA, 90071 urrency:
United States
INVOICE Total Payable Amount: 4,400.00 usp
Current Period Subtotal: 4,400.00 USD
Current Period Tax: 0.00 USD
Current Period Total: 4,400.00 USD
Satisfied to Date: 0.00 UsSD
Balance Due: 4,400.00 USD

Invoice Number:

00252-25-0057656

Terms: Payable upon receipt. Please reference the invoice and account number with your remittance.
Our Tax [D Number is $5-3571558. Please fax Taxpayer Certification requests to {732) 667-9576.
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A is located at 333 South Hope Street, Los Angeles, CA, 90071, United States.

Wire and ACH Payment Instructions:

Check Payment Instructions:
The Bank of New York Mellon
Corporate Trust Department
P.O. Box 392013

Pittsburgh, PA 15251-2013
Please enclose billing stub.




B NY Account Number: 1062859399-INV  Invoice Number: 00252-25-0057656

Details for Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2017

‘Quantity  Rate  Proraton ~ Subtotal Total(USD)

e
Administration Fee
For the period: Aug 1, 2025 to Jul 31, 2026
FlatFee o . 440000 4400.00

4,400.00

Téta! 4,400.00




BNY

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT
SERVICES, LLC

Account Number: 1062859399-INV  Invoice Number: 00252-25-0057656

invoice Number:
Account Number:
Invoice Date:
Cycle Date:

00252-25-0057656
1062859399-INV
Aug 19, 2025

Aug 1, 2025




INWVOIC]E

INVOICE DATE: 6/20/2025

Celestina Master HOA, Inc

To:  Jim Oliver
Istes of Bartram CDD
475 West Town Place, Suite 114
St Augustine, FL 32092

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
Reimbursement for Irrigation Billing (10% of 05330) $748.684
(Reference JEA bill dated 6/20/2025)
Any questions please call Vesta WGV Office 904-747-0181
TOTAL AMOUNT DUE $748.684

Make all checks payable to: Cafesiina Master Homeowners Assocfation  Please mail or deliver to
Vesta Property Services 200 Business Park Circle Suite 101 St. Augustine FL 32095.




Page 10of 6
() CELESTINA MASTER PROPERTY

225 N. Pearl St. OWNERS ASSOCIATION INC
Jacksanvilie, FIL.
32202-4513 Account #: 1209880485 Amount Due
_, Bill Date:  06/20/25 - $1‘is?%5-5%
B ynline: i ] 0 not pay. AutoPay will process
# Online: jea.com Cycle: 14 vour payment on 07/14/25.

Electric 3 5,190.20
WWALET vt et ee et 7,761.26
BOWET i 635.30 Total
- 'ota
Irmigation ... 735.10 Mew Charges Sewer
Total New Charges oo e senoens $ 14,325,868 $14,323.56 BESE 53530
(A complate breakdown of charges ¢an be found on the following pages.)
Previous Balance .............ccocveeniin e 3 13,366.02
Paymeni(s) Received .....c.c.ccoovvrvneernen, -13,366.02
Balance Before New Charges .............. £.00 ;
NeW Charges ... ervceuereriercoseerees 14,325.86 326, g Pt J{okit ey
P =ty
Do not pay. AutoPay will process your - ™
paymertt on §7/14/25. $ 14,526.56
L / Ko BN
5090.72 v

We determined that your consumption was billed : A g

Incorrectly, Your next billing statement will includs 7 ”‘-8 65 LI v

the correction. J

~ .
.’l{? fc‘:s IR ﬁi- f
Changs vour light bulbs to LEDs,
74/,;5’ 634 \/

JEA's 2024 Annual Water Quality report is available _

ot jea.com/WIIR2024. For & paper copy, emall your

addiess to waterquality@fea.com or call 565-5000

to reguest one.

PLEASE DETACH AND RETURN PAYMENT STUB BELOW WITH TOTAL DUE IN ENVELOPE PROVIDED, Additional information on reverse side, —*

D Check here for telephone/mall address correction and fill in on reverse side.

D Add § to my monthly bifi; § for Neighbor to Neighbor andfor $ for
the Prosperity Scholarship Fund, bwill notify JEA when | no ionger wish to confribute.

Acct# 1209680485 8 Date: 06/20/25
ONLINE B0 nat pay, AutoPay Wi pracess your payment on 67/14/25.") TOTAL AMOUNT. PAID
' $14,325.88

CELESTINA MASTER PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION INC
200 BUSINESS PARK CIR STE 101
STAUGUSTINE FL 32095-8824



Servioz Typs

Service Address

110 ANTILAWY APT LS01 W

§ CELESTINA MASTER PROPERTY
@ OWNERS ASSOCIATION INC

Servics Point Service Period  Bill Rate
05/14/25 - DBI15/25  Commercial

FI7.50  Redisim

Page 3 of 6

Account #: 1209880485
Bill Date: 06/20/25

Cycle: 14

el claimed Irrigati
Detzi Charges: Basic Monthly Charge ggp  CommerRl Raclgimiac mgaton
Inspection Fee 5.00 . .
Consumgtion
{fcuft =748 cal}
421 LACAILLE AV APT IRO1 - 58272 05149125 - 08/16/25 Commercial
Comymercia almed Irrigation
Delsf Charges:Basic Monthly Charge 31.50 B et ,_ N S Mm_mwmﬁm 9
Inspection Fee 6.00 _ v ) m Consumod
_ . - urrent nsumption
Tier 1 Consiampd -3 el
Tier 1 Censumption (1-14 keal @ $3.81) 4577 | xeading (4 cu 1t =7.48 gal)
. m 2013488 | Regu 12000 GAL
123 CELESTA PY APT GATE 41 Gale 05/15/25 - 0S/18/25 General Service
Detail Charges:Basic Morihly Charge 23.00
£nergy Charge (50,0667 per kWh) 507.92 . curent | Reading o "
Tox Exempt Fual Cost (§0.0339 per kWh) 250,45 N Roadmg | Tpes | el
Taxable Fuel Cost (30.00511 per kih) 38.91 26189702 32 86777 Regutar 7695 KWH
Gross Receipls Tax 21.23
16 ORIANA CT APT FS01 SR B84Y.47 7 Commaercial « 05/15/25 - 08/16/25 General Service
. . Eleciric
Detail Charges:Basic Monthly Charge 23.00 !
Energy Charge {$0.0667 per kih) 318.56 . __. o w T oot | oot | Concumot
EY. iea sumption
Tax Exempl Fuel Cost ($0.0338 per kWh) 161.91 Number | Biled | Resdng | Ter |
Taxable Fugsl Cost ($0.00611 per kiwh) 24.41 A837BAG 3 62012 Regutar 4776 KWH
N Gross Receipts Tax 135
23 ANILA ST APT LS01 B 827.80  Reclaim 0514/25 - 061525 Commercial
Detail Charges:Basic Monihly Charge 31,50 Commercia MMW._MM_% Imgation
Inspection Feg 6.00 STERRTE R ATS I . ol T
. Mefer 1 Days | Cument ;- Reading |- Consumption
Number: | Billed f. Reading - J::Type. = |y o1y = 7.48 gal)
78582270 32 4 Regular 0 GAL




Page 4 of 6

Service Address Service Type Charges Service Point Service Period  Bill Rate
26 CELESTAPY APT IRO1 TR 020.80  Area Light 05/18/25 - 06/16/25 Street and Area Light
Detail Gharges:74 Unit(s) 40W LED PT 538.72 Rate
38 Unit{s) 72W LED PT 287.16
Fuel Charge 50.3¢ Electric
Gross Receipls Tax 2375 OMMM mﬂmmm_. $4020.80
Fiorida State Sales Tax 70.78 This Addres~ ey Watter
28 CLLESTA PY APT IR0 W $6,368.25 25 LEIER5 Commerclal $7.387.05 $6.366.25
Dotail Charges:Basic Monthly Charge 201.80 mwmwwwmg rigation

Inspection Fee G.07

. » o s o : _ Consumpiicn
Fiet 10 o (1-14 kgal @ $3.81) L ¢ b (4 ot =748 gal
Tier 2 Consumption (> 14 koal @ $4.33) _ I Regular | 1424000 G >~

33 CELESTAPY

Commes n - D6/18/25 General Service

Electri
Delail Cliarges:Basic Monthly Charge serie

Enargy Charge ($0.0667 per kih) P - Consumoio
IR - o ; LA ansul
Py ey el Cost ($0.0338 per kih) 337 Reading plon ocsi
e v : 7 Tolal New :
faxabie Fisel Cost ($0.00511 per kih) 76.05 22853650 39337 | Foguisr 5007 KWH Charges For $578.22
Gross Receipts Tax 14,41 . - o This Address Water
. 22953650 1028 | Reguier | t028kwy | $636.73 $60.51
33 CELESTAPY i . 05114125 - 06/15/25 Commercial Water
. ] Servic
Detail Charges:Basic Monthly Charge - v
Watar Consumption Charge . i
Meler Current | Reading Censumplion
Nomber Reading Typs (1 ouft = 7.48 gal)
514057774 32 227 Reaular 14000 GAL
33 STARLIS PL W $51.83  Redaim 0514125 - 06H5/25 Residential
. . Residential Reclai Irrigation
Detail Charges:Basic Monthly Charge 18.90 esicentia dlaimed lmigat
Reclaimed Waler Inspecfion Fee .00 :...,. 5 Curre 0| Read e o ;
s . vieler .m%m :n.m._.. caning - Lonsumplion
fier 1 Consumption (1-14 kgal @ $2.97) PRT3 bt Biled | Reading TWE | (1 oy fi= 7.48 gal
82186211 32 2253 Regular 9000 GAL
33 TALORI AV APT IR0 $80.24  Reclaim 05/14/25 - 06/15/25 Commercial
. . Commercial Reclaimed [rrigation
Detail Charges:Basic Monthly Charge 31.50 Service 9
Inspection Fee 6.0 et 5 Days |° n.. am.ﬁ '] Readin Consumpt
) . ) Do Meter:. | Days {0 Gument: | Reading - | .. Consumption
Tier 1 Consumption (1-14 kgal @ $3.81) 53.34 Number | Biled | Reading | Type | (1 cu 1= 7.48 gal
78727792 32 4610 Regular 14000 GAL




Page 5 of 6

Service Address Service Type O:mamm Service Point Service Period  Bili Rate
35 MANDARA WY Rl Commerclal - 05M5/25 - 06/16/25 General Service
. . Electric
Detail Charges:Basic Monthly Charge 23.00
Energy Charge (80.0667 per l\wh) 1,288.54 X Eleciric
- e — Curren! Censumption $2118.28
Frisd Cosl (300500 ver k¥ A Reaging ype -
Cost A%O 00511 Total New Wiater
FLEE AU B £D0RY Regular 19320 [ Charges For $196.24
Gross mmnm__:m Tax 1| Reger | AOKW Ammmm%mmw e MMM,_%W .
35 MANDARA WY 05714425 - 0619595 Commercial Watar Iigation
Service $738.10

Aarges:Basic Monthly Charge

Wator Consul

lien Charpe

(f cufi=7.48 gal

| ) 12000 GAL
35 MANDARA WY 5 Cu 25 Commercial Sewer
Detail Charges:Basic Monihly Charge WateriSetwer Service
Sewer Usage Charge | ,
,, waiing Consumption
TPe | (4 gy ft=7.48 gal)
7 79251944 3080 | Reguiar | 12000 GAL
35 MANDARA WY i Irigation 1 - 05114425 - 06/15{25 Commercial Irrigation
. I Sarvice
Detail Charges:Basic Monlhly Charge @ Commersl |
Tior 1 Consumplion (1- 7 Kgal @ $3.49 kgal) 4 4 _
. . : P : Ay Currenl Reading Consumplion
Tier 2 Consumption {> ¥ Kgal @ $4.69 kgal) I Wurhar Reading Tupe {1 cufl =748 gal)
ﬁ 78261618 32 23787 Regular 149000 GAL
44 CALLIEL WY APT IR01 W 873287  Recleim 05/14f25 - 06115125 Commercial
. ) i lai Irrigath
Detail Charges:Basic Monthly Charge £3.00 oDa_dQn_mm MMMWH ed rigation
Inspection Fee 6.00 el ’ Devs | Curent | Readi o i
Tier 1 Consumption (1-14 kgal @ $3.81) 53.36 Number | BileS | Resding | Tope | 1 opfe7 48l
Tier 2 Consurnption (> 14 kgal @ 54.33) 610.52 86302484 2 4473 Regular 155000 GAL
56 CALLIEL WY APT [RO1 rigation 1- 05/15/25 - 06/16/25 General Service
Detad Charges:Basic Monthly Charge 200 et
Energy Charge ($0.0667 per kh) 18.74 ot mavs | cunent. | Readina | ¢ fon’
Tax Exempt Fuel Cost ($0.0339 per kiWh) 9.53 Number | Biled | Readmg | - Tipas | el
Taxabie Fuel Cost ($0.00511 per kWh) 144 23650846 37 14557 Regular 281 KIWH
Gross Receipls Tax 1.35
Florida State Sales Tax 4,03




Service Address

Service Type

Charges  Service Poini

Service Period

Bill Rate

Page 6 of 6

57 SOLIS AV APT LS04

Detail Charges:Basic Monthly Charge
Inspection Fee

65 DELANO ST

Detak Charges:Basic Monthly Charge

ol Fuel Cost (80,0208 :
Taxable Fual Cost (50.00513 per 1ivh)
Gross Receipls Tax
Florida Stale Sales Tax

65 DELANO ST

Deiall Charges;Basic Monihly Charge

$87.03  Reclaim

05/14/25 - 06/15/25 Commercial

i

3150 Commercial Mmmwﬁma Imigation
600 | .
. : Consumption
I : (1 6u k= 7.48 gal)
A 18582271 0 GAL
_ 514084521 13000 GAL

Ou_a_wtﬁ:nmn:]of

7 KWH

Commercial Water
Service

Curient | Rosding
_

ype

79232848

.- Consusnption
{Tcuft=7.48 gal)

Total New
Charges Far

This Address
$43.85




IINWOHCIE

INVOICE DATE: 7/21/2025

Celestina Master HOA, Inc

To:  Jim Oliver
Isles of Bartram CDD
475 West Town Place, Suite 114
St Augustine, FL 32082

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
Reimbursement for Irrigation Billing (10% of 05330) $751.61
(Reference JEA bill dated 7/21/2025)
Any questions please call Vesta WGV Office 904-747-0181
TOTAL AMOUNT DUE $751.61

Make all checks payable to: Celusting #Master Homenwners Associgtion Please mail or deliver to
Vesta Property Services 200 Business Park Circle Suite 101 St. Augustine FL. 32095.




Page 1 of 8
& CELESTINA MASTER PROPERTY

225 N. Pearl St. =2 OWNERS ASSOCIATION INC
Jacksonville, FL : - N o
32202-4513 Account #: 1209880485 Arnount %ﬁ%
@ 7 2
, Bill Date: 07/21/25 oo ot ‘““iff%@””?;
Phone: (904) 665-6000 &% Online: jea.com Cycle: 14 o;gur;) ;gi(mt}r?t jg[ 5\;81”%3%%@

Electric . 5,441.47 .
WBLT ..o s 7,797.01 47
SEWEN (vt ssrrer e e s 654.82 total \sf\a_;a;egr7 o1
HGation .. e 631.23 Mgzw Charges Se:ﬂer '
Total New Charges o nonoenn 5 14,524.53 $14,524.53 $654.82
(A complete breakdown of charges can be found on the following pages.) ggg?“;;
Previous Balance .......ccevveenivneecernne. $ 14,325.86

Payment(s) Received ......ccovevvcrinen s -14,325,86

Balance Before New Charges .............. 0.00

New Charges ......ooeeercvninmeecerenan 14,524 53

Bo not pay. AutoPay will process youy g
k

payment on 8/12/35, 14,524.53

EC

Visit jsa.com (o make sure your contact info ls
current ao we can reach you with imporiant service
updaies and during seveve waesathor

JEMA's 2024 Wader Guality report is available at
lea.comfVQR2024, This report contalhs mpordant

2 information akbout the source and quailty of your

drivsking water, To request a papel copy, emall your

address to waterguality@iea.com orF cail

&65-5000,

PLEASE DETACH AND RETURN PAYMENT STUB BELOW WITH TOTAL DUE IN ENVELOPE PROVIDED. Additional information on reverse side. —%

D Check here for telephonefmall address correction and fill in on reverse side.

Add § to my monthly bill: $ for Neighbor to Neighbor andior § for
the Prospetity Scholarship Fund. | witt notify JEA when | 5o tanger wish to contribute.

[=];

SCAN Acet #: 1209880485 Bitl Date: 07/21/25
TO PAY 10 not pav. AuioBay will process your payment on 08712/25.| TOTALAMOUNT PAID
| ONLINE P you
$14,524.53

CELESTINA MASTER PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION INC
200 BUSINESS PARK CIR STE 101
8T AUGUSTINE FL 32005-8824



h

‘P |
| uaing. | sheq:

0LzzegsL

—HIABS

204 uogoadsuy

9jo ¢ sbeyd

B A :safleyn |ela
yonebiy) pawieaay [BIDJBLEWOY) SRIBLD ARRUOW 2isegisanend 193d
[BIUSWWOD  GZ/GL/L0 - STSLIY0 wigjay i 1087 LdY 1S YINY EZ

xB| skheoay $50i9)

HMOIS6yy | MO | gses | 0E | GFBLZBNE {umy J2d £1500°08) 1500 (8N4 ajgexe]

et b adAp o L Gupesy’ | pelig | JequinNg .
- . B, Aguo :saf, ko
o193 sbreyp Ayiuopy aiseg:sabrey) |leleq
0BG [IBUBYD  §Z/91/.0 - 5219180 - [B12/5WWOD L0523 LV 1D YNYIYO 91
¥e| 5161903} $s0I05)

HWAOSZL | OS] JS0B8 | OF | 20LG8LOZ (ua) Jod |1GQ0°08) 1502 fon.d sjgexeL

Cn i adRp e [ Buipesy | pajg | JBquny . :

uopdnsuoy” - |/ Bupee | uaung | skeq | en | ovese {ypt sad #1.980°08) 1500 1end ydwraxg xeL
ool L R R e e 25°Gap (uany Jod o9g0°0g) ebueys ABisug

abieun Ajyuop aiseg:safiieyd ieleg
0BG [RIAUS  §7/93/40 - §Z/91/90 sjen TIYO 1d¥ Ad VISTTIO €21

O Q0021 leniisy HLGE g 18996611

{efigye=8r01) | aggi - | Bupesy | poma| - sequiny . o -
" vodansuoy | Bupesy | weuny | Skeq _“___M%_zz TLSy (18°¢ ® 120y 71-1} uoncwnsuog | Jsll
RN . ;
Uoebia| pewBioY eIt 05'1E alfireydy Aupuop oiseg:sabireys rejeq
[BIIBURUOT  GZ7LLIL0 - GTI9L/90 wepey  zzoed i LOWI LdV AY ITINOVT 521
W0 enbay | 629) 08 108V598
(e68yL=BPIL) | adsy - | Bupesy’ | popg| - sequny’
uoycwnsuosy: - | Bupeay - jeung | sheq:
ST P T e 008 294 uopoadsy
ERINES . A :

UoneBiw) paLIEDE LY 05'1§ sBieyy Aiguop oisegisebleyo rereg
[elsaLWWoy  SZisl/L0 - G2/5190 wepay  oigd M 1057 1d¥ AM YNV OLL
aey g pouad Soneg Mo aoiaRg sableyn odA} asinlag sSSelppy 90IAeg

i B[2AD
CeIE/L0 EIeq g
ONI NOLLVIDOSSY SHANMO = o - .
S8Y08860T | # JUN0IDY ALY3JOY¥d YALSVA YNILSTTAD @ wooesliaujuo 0009-599 (v06) -euoud




. méo 0005k v I Y {g€'p$ © 1EBY 1. <) uondunsuD? 2 Jal]
{Ebgyi=ym| 1 Bupeey’ | pemg | sequiny - - .
- dopdunsiion: | e e g (183 @ [eBy ¥)-1) uondwnsuog | Jall
S ERE Rl R R 009 294 UORoaGSU]
MBS : ableyn Arjuop s1seg:sabieyn pela
onebiL| pouispey I 05°LE 40 Ajuop olseg 4o Berea
jeruBwWLO) G251/L0 - S2/S1/90 Wigipey  1igeg Lol LdY AV IHOTYL €8
v 0005 Jejnbay 952z Ge 11296178
(e8ers=Hm ) [ adip - [ Bupesy’ | pepg | o < equiny - . . By b
. ponduneuog |- BupeRa | wane | ehe |1 sg¥l {1625 © 128y p1-1) uodwnsuog 4 Js1)
L L T e e T T L 009 984 Uopaadsu| JsIBA DaLNBINaY
X abieyny Auopg oisegisabieys) jiele
uogebiu) pawnepay enuagIsey 068} 40 Aiuoyy oiseq Uy eseq
Eenusplssy  ¢g/a1iL0 - 925180 wensy  sitard Bt Id SITHVLS EE
TS 000EL Jenbey 0¥z 08 yLLIGOPLE
(EBay'L=und L)\ agg; |- Bupesn | popie | sequiny
uendansuon - |- Bupesy: | maing v | sheq | tele
R e R . i BL6E afieyn uogdwnsuoy) Jalemm
- abieyn ALpuoy mseg selizun 110
20Meg e 9L D A[uuoyy miseq 10 e
) Jalefy [BIIBUILOD  S2/5L/40 - 5Z/GLIA0 - |[ElIsUE0) Ad YLSTTID €L
S L5 £L9'081% VA ¥ L0l ®neey | vhoh | 0% T2
i) meuuM._ N ! 808} xe| sydisnay ssoln
- 104 sabieyn Jenba 5. . .
" uopdwinsuog | Bupesy: | jusung’ | skeq [ e o LE8ce (14 12d 71.90'08) 1500 1o Xy x|
Bt bl RTOR. St B BRI SOl BRSO ARE vlzy (uan Jod 7900704} sbleyn ABisug
Bieyn A aiseg:sefiiey) 1eja
ool afireyd Alyiuop aiseq:sefiley] 1E1ag
8dinieg feXsURD  GZ/91fL0 - G2/91/90 = RRBUWOYD " Zamg AdVISTTIO €L
’ w.é 00053 v fonbey | Gaves | 0 | €9090060 £8'282'9 (£6°v% © 1eBY b1, <) uonduinsuoz 7 say
{Eboys=yna Ll odhy " | Bupesy | pomg | . toquny i . . .
" vopdunsuos - | Bupem | e | Seea | aawe 98 (18°6$ @ 128y pi-1) uopduinsuag | Jsl(
RO Rt PR Tl SR 009 834 uoloadsut
E]FSETY . £1 : |
WoEBu pawIBloaY RO 08107 afizyg Auuop isegrsefiey) yeleq
8LEbG 9% LLe9G I8 EIQUBWLIOD  §Z/5 120 ~ SZISLI90 wiepay  grepsd M 10¥l L4V Ad VLSTTIO 62
e wmeuvw sy ZL0L X8) S3[eS 9|8l epuoly
a1 104 saBieyn 3
£6 %___wmov_w frraes R A Xgi $1ds0oy ssous
0568 abreys nd
91162 Ld QF mzL (shun ge
aley L85 14 a3 Moy (shiun v2:saieyd eieq
Wh ealy pue 98NS GZ/9LIL0 - GZ/9L/80 b ey g LON! LdV Ad YLSTTID 62

g j0 ¢ abed

9led i poliad 8dMeg

i0d a0IAIeg

sableysn

adA} 9oialeg

SSalppY 80lAes



Xei 5ajeg slejs epuod
xe| sydienay ss0i9

Jenbed | zzgl o Oe | oveOSSEC (ua Jd 11500°08) 1503 [N aiqexeL
e | puel L {uawt s2d 1L90°08) 1500 [end 3dwaxa xey
{umy sad 2990708} abieyy fbiaug
o abueyn Apuow oiseq:sableyn jerec
VIAG [esBudsy  SZ/8L/L0 - GZ/OL/80 - | uoneBul LOMI 1Y AM TEITTVO 98
A oo oo w by | ges8 1 0F | v9uCZE0R 1951y (6675 © 126 71 <) vondwnsuon ¢ Jat
PRGY L= VL addy | Buipeen [ pepg | - saquiny: . . -
~ vopdumsuos | Supesu | |5 Lmﬁz ge'es {19'¢¢ @ (eBY p|-}) uondwnsuog | JaiL
DR e R R 009 99 uoadsy)
BARG : B A :58b 3
wonebiL) PAuIEIooY B (Hig%] alieyd Ao sisegisenizy) [EeQ
[eloIBIC) Sg/5LIL0 - 25190 WIRPRSY GRS St LM LdV AM 13ITIVO b1
9 00021 Je(néay gl 4 L0Z61 L0080
WD 600pLL ‘ Jejabay LBEEL T4 8191928/
..R.mmn wvﬂwmﬁ_w : thMm . W__%w%w_ mmw_w_m_ i unN - Heby 59p8 © 2B £ <) UoRGLINSLOD Z Jat]
T DR R T {0y 6v°¢$ D (e6y £ - 1) vopdwnsuog | 19t
B A : ije
SOMeS RREWWES afizyg Aupuoy viseq:safieyD (eleq
uoyeBl| [eRIswLOD  §Z/5L/L0 - SZISLA0 - | uopediLy L AM YHYONYIN GE
W9 00084 ejnbay | g60g | OE ¥6H5Z5L
(eB8rL=0m ) [ adky | Bupess. | pema | sequiN
. vogdwnsuog. - |- Bulpesy ™1 7 uanng [ SABG i i se- .
Rt e o ERaitantl Eutt | EEE S o SRt 20°g. abieyn ebesr lomag
; Bieyn A& : ]
aoieg JoMeSITEM w\. 918 o abueyy Anpuop oiseq:sabiey) |EaQ
JoMeg [BIBIN0D  SZ/51//0 - G2/51/90 - ERIBUWOY  EEEEey & AM YHYANYIN S€

V9 00081 ignbay 980¢ 0 7761526,

(EDeyL=Wm W ogry | Bupesy’ | pepg|  mquoyn
+ uoydunsuagy - 1 Buipesy [ wanngy - | sfeq BT
R T P T P T SnL abreyn uondiunsuoy Jatepm
_mw_u.wmmw somIos R afieyn Anguoly oiseg:sabirey?) 121
HER JBIBA [RIIBWIOY  GZ/SE/L0 - $Z/G1/90 - [BlosRLILOD AM YHYONYIN 68
o8Vt s S0'65L°CS NI OFFY | JEmbey | Wb | 08 | 06Leerez
1385 mmennw, sy 199 X8} 511905y ss0i9)
E 304 sofie b
B s oat letot  Hrete _M_mmm e Q_MMHMN | e (ua 4ed 11500°08) 3500 1PN sjgexeL
TEPITTS e  ondwnsuog | Bupesy | wduns | sAeq| o eew el (Ui 1ad £1980°0%) 3800 |anJ dwexd xe)
Bl LE BRI R B B O 10°06€") (upn 2od 7990°03) ebieyn ABlaugy
¥ A :
apeg O mw - abieyy Arpuoly oisegisebiey) eteq
a0IAlag |BIBLBS  GZ/BL/20 - §2/91/90 - [BoseuLog AM YHVONYI 5E
8y [  DOlBd |dMeg W0 a21eg sableys odA} aoueg SSalppy 99IMeg

g jo G ebed



™20 lenbey 0 0g
(B gyL=ym0 1)

- addl | Bupesy’ | pang |

BYEEZ6L

e

© uopdwnsuoy -1 Buipeay | wangy - | skeq _..” e
. . . ofieyn Auuoyy sseg:sebreyd (B1eQ
aameg 1B1BM
18 |BRIBLIWCD  GZ/GLIA0 - SZiGHA0 - [elpsWLIe] 1S CoNvYIAa se
1908 LoEps Xg] sejes oielg epuoly
5 1) SSaIppY Syl xeq sldieoay ssoun
wmu%mw ._wmmﬂmwm‘_m.__.o HMA G Je[nbay Hoe e 688¢ilyi {UMY Jod L1500°08) 1809 [en- ajqexe]
e “ e e e [ R o
it ot adAle o L Guipesy’ X polig |- JAQUINN: ad "04} 1507 [an4 Jdwaxg xe
- vopdunsuog .| Bupeay . Waung | sfeq | - el e Ew”w%wwq% cimig (o3
. abieyn Aupuop aiseg:sebieyn (e
30813
BOAIBS [RIBUDD  §2/91/10 - G2/8LI90 ~ [er1awuieg 1S ONYIaq 69
v 00052 leginbay g€ 0e ._.mmww.oim 9y {e8°p8 @ 126y p1 <) vosduinsuog z e
(ebgyL=umoll|  ads . | Gupesy- | pong | N : - by -1 uondunsuo) | a1
vogdunsuog |- Bujpeay. |- Juauny - | sdeg €S (1868 © 1B py-1) uon 0 | ey
T e e R A 009 354 Uo)Isdsy)
BoIAES - abieyq Ajuopy oiseg:sabieys E)8
Logebiy palwiepay [eloRWeD 051E 4O AlBUOW JIseg HO 1esa
[BIJBUANOT  GZ/GLILL - S2/51/90 wepsy  i7egLs 1087 LdY AV SITOS LS

9 lo g ebed

o1y lig  pobad 2olAles

IO 831AI8S

sabieyn

adA) soIneg

SSaIppY 908



KUTAK ROCK LLP Check Remit To:

Kutak Rock LLP
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA PO Box 30057
Telephone 404-222-4600 Omaha, NE 68103-1157

Facsimile 404-222-4654

Federal ID 47-0597598

August 25, 2025

RECEIVED

Jim Oliver By Tara Lee at 4:03 pm, Aug 25, 2025
Isles of Bartram Park CDD

Governmental Management Services — St. Augustine

Suite 114

475 West Town Place

St. Augustine, FL 32092 Invoice No. 3612312

10623-1

Re:  Isles of Bartram Park CDD - General

For Professional Legal Services Rendered

05/08/25 W. Haber 0.30 70.50 Prepare for Board meeting and
review budget

05/09/25 W. Haber 0.60 141.00 Prepare for and participate in Board
meeting

05/10/25 G. Lovett 0.30 79.50 Menitor legislative process relating
to matters impacting special districts

05/23/25 W. Haber 0.30 '70.50 Review budget notices

05/23/25 K. Jusevitch 0.40 48.00 Prepare budget hearing notice and
correspond with district manager

06/06/25 W. Haber 0.60 141.00 Prepare for and participate in Board
meeting

TOTAL HOURS 2.50

TOTAL FOR SERVICES RENDERED $550.50

TOTAL CURRENT AMOUNT DUE $550.50

PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL
ATTORNEY-CLIENT COMMUNICATION AND/OR WORK PRODUCT



% YELLOWSTONE

Bill To:
Celestina-lsles of Bartram CDD
475 West Town PI, Suite 114 nemil10:
Saint Augustine, FL 32092 ;%“%\gifﬁ%i éf;dscape
Property Name: Celestina-Isles of Bartram CDD Atlanta, GA 30392-1017
Address: 475 West Town P Invoice Due Date: September 21, 2025

Suite 114
St. Augustine, FL 32092

Invoice Amount:  $111.00

iAugust irrigation repairsﬁf 2025
Irrigation Repairs $111.00
invoice Total $111.00

Should you have any questions or inquiries please call (386} 437-6211.

Yellowstone Landscape | Post Office Box 849 | Bunnell FL 32110 | Tel 386.437.6211 | Fax 386.437.1286



INVOICE

First Choice Aquatics firstchoiceaguaticsjax@gmait.com

14289 Denton Rd +2267031
Jacksonville, FL. 32226

Bill to
Isles of Bartram Park

Invoice details

Inveice no.: 3325

Terms: Net 15

Invoice date; 08/29/2025
Due date: 09/13/2025

#  Date Product or service

1. One-Time Treatment

Ship to
isles of Bartram Park

Description Qty Rate Amount
Pend 7 Alum Treatment 1 $1,750.00 $1,750.00
Total $1,750.00

RECEIVED

By Tara Lee at 10:51 am, Sep 02, 2025




First Choice Aquatics

14289 Denton Rd

Jacksonville, FL 32226 USA
+2267031
firstchoiceaquaticsjax@gmail.com

BILLTO INVOICE# 3340
lsles of Bartram Park DATE 08/01/2025

C/O GMS,LLC DUE DATE 10/01/2025

475 West Town Place, Suite TERMS Net 30

114

St. Augustine, Florida 32092

SERVICE GESCRIPTION oy BATE AMOUNT

Fountain Quarterly Fountain Maintenance 1 400.00 400.00
Maintenance

Celestina: 4 Fountaing SUBTOTAL 400.00

TAX 0.00

TOTAL 400.00

RECE’VED BALANCE DUE $40000

By Tara Lee at 10:57 am, Sep 02, 2025




First Choice Aquatics

14289 Denton Rd

Jacksonville, FL 32226 USA
+2267031
firstchoiceaguaticsiax@gmail.com

BILL TO

Isles of Bartram Park

C/O GMS,LLC

475 West Town Place, Suite
114

St. Augustine, Florida 32092

INVOICE # 3372
DATE 08/01/2025
DUE DATE 10/01/2025
TERMS Net 30

SERVICE

Lake
Maintenance

Maintenance

DESCGRIPTION

Isles of Bartram Park

Additional Treatments monthly

Services rendered are for the month listed above.

RECEIVED

By Tara Lee at 10:56 am, Sep 02, 2025

SUBTOTAL

TAX
TOTAL
BALANCE DUE

Ory RATE AMOUNT

2,100.00 2,100.00

b

1 1,000.00 1,000.00

3,100.00
0.00
3,100.00

$3,100.00



Governmental Management Services, LLC

475 West Town Place, Suite 114
5t Augustine, FL. 32002

invoice #:

142
Invoice Date: 9/1/25
Due Date: 9/1/25

Bill To: Casef
isles of Bartram Park CDD P.O. Number:
475 West Town Place
Suite 114
At. Augustine, FL. 32092
Description Hours/Qty Rate Amount
Management Fees - September 2025 4,557.83 4,557.83
Woebsite Administration - September 2025 100.00 100.00
Information Technology - September 2025 150.00 150.00
Dissemination Agent Services - September 2025 655.50 655.50
Office Supplies 0.54 0.54
Postage 13.32 13.32
Coples 30.15 30.15
Total $5,507.34 .
RE c EIVED Payments/Credits $0.00
By Tara Lee at 1:29 pm, Sep 04, 2025 Balance Due $5,507.34




Grau and Associates

1001 W. Yamato Road, Suite 301
Boca Raton, FL 33431
Www. graucpa.com

Phone: 561-994-929%

Istes of Barfram Park
1408 Hamlin Avenue, Unit E
Saint Cloud, FL 34771

Invoice No. 28099

Fax: 561-994-5823

Date 09/04/2025
SERVICE ANMOUNT
Project: Arbitrage - Series 2017 FYE 7/31/2025
Arbitrage Services
Arbitrage
$ 600.00
Subtotal: ...B00.00
Total 600.00
Current Amount Due $______ 60000
By Tara Lee at 1:41 pm, Sep 04, 2025
0-30 31-60 61-80 91 -120 Over 120 Balance
§00.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 600.00

Payment due upon receipt.




INVOICE

tnnovative Fountain Services, In¢ admin@innovativefountainservices.c
11637 Columbia Park Or E om
Ste 4 +1 (904} 551-1017

Jacksonville, FL. 32258-4493

Celestina:GCelastinag Waterfall
Bifl te

Celestina

Istes of Bartram Park CDD

475 West Town Place Ste 114
Saint Augustine, FL 32092

Invoice details

invoice no.: 2029558
Terms: Net 30

Invoice date: 08/02/2025
Due date: 10/02/2025

Product or service Description Qty Amount
Maintenance Service Monthly Fountain Maintenance- August 1 $202.50

2. Chemicals Chemicais Added 1 $112.85
Total $31 5.35

Note to customer

Thank you for your businesst

RECEIVED
By Tara Lee at 4:02 pm, Sep 02, 2025




Vesta,

Invoice
Invoice # 428236
Date 08/01/2025

Vesta Property Services, Inc.
245 Riverside Avenue .
Suite 300 Terms Due on receipt
Jacksonville FL 32202

Due Date 08/01/2025

Memo WGV - MANAGEMENT

Bili To
Istes of Bartram Park CDD

e RECEIVED

Jacksonville FL 32092 By Tara Lee at 10:54 am, Sep 02, 2025

 MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Total 500.00



Isles of Bartram Park CDD ¢/fo GMS LLC 789138 0B8/31/28

Locali

Florida
GANNETT

0007301725 Aug 1- Aug 31, 2025

Legat Entlty: Gannelt Media Corp.

Isles Of Bartram Park Cdd C/O Gms Lic Terms and Conditions: Past due accounts are subject to Interest at the rale of
Shelby Siephens 18% per annum or the maximum tegal rate {whichevar Is less). Advertiser clalms

for a cradit related 1o rates incorrectly invoicad or paid must be submitted in writing
475 W. qun Pl. Ste. 114 . to Publisher within 30 days of the inveice date or the clalm wilt be walved. Any
St Augustine, FL 32092-3649 cradit towards future adveriising must be used within 30 days of Issuance or the

credit will bo forleiled.

ti“'Ilil;ll"llil“"I'i‘III!'III:'"'lll[ih|I“|l“!]l|llh"l All funds payabte in US dollars.

BILLING INQUIRIES/ADDRESS CHANGES 1-877-736-7612 or smb@cce.gannett.com FEDERAL 1D 47-2300983

Save A Tree! Gannett is going paperless. Enjoy the convenience of accessing your billing information anytime and pay online. To
avoid missing an invoice, sign up today by going to https:/igcil.my.site.comffinancialservicesportal/s/.

—

8/1/25 B"élrance Grwar $216.20
8125125 PAYMENT - THANK YOU -$216.20

Start-End Date Order Number Product Description PO Number Package Cost
8/28/25 11598588 SAG St Augustine Record FY26 Mtg Schedule FY26 Miy $75.44
Scheduts

e i SN v?;ﬁ‘
I IR

As an Incentive for customers, we provide a discount off the total Involee cost Total Cash Amount Dua $75.44
equal to the 3.99% service fee if you pay with Cash/Check/ACH. Pay by Service Fee 3.99% $3.01
Cash/Check/ACH and Save! *Cash/Check/ACH Discount -$3.01
*Payment Amount by Cash/Check/AGH $75.44
Payment Amount by Credit Card $78.45

isles of Bartram Park CDD cfo GMS ELC 789138

1-877-736-7612 $78.45

Gannett Florida LocaliQ
PO Box 631244 To sign up for E-mailed invoices and online payments please go
Cincinnati, OH 45263-1244 ) . ) . )
to https://ecil.my.site.com/financialservicesportal/s/

000078913800000000000007301725000075H4E747L



FLORIDA

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

Sarah Sweeting

Istes of Bariram Park CDD ¢/o GMS, LL.C
475 W Town PL # 114

St Augustine FL 32092-3649

STATE OF WISCONSIN, COUNTY OF BROWN

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared, who
on oath says that he or she is the Legal Coordinator of the
St Augustine Record, published in St Johns County, Florida;
that the attached copy of advertisement, being a Govt Public
Notices, was published on the publicly accessible website of
St Johns County, Florida, or in a newspaper by print in the
issues of, on:

08/28/2025

Affiant further says that the website or newspaper complies
with all legal requirements for publication in chapter 50,
Florida Statutes.

subscribed and sworn to before me, by the legal clerk, who
e, on 08/28/2025

is perso owh to

(o p

Legal Cletk &M\ ﬂ/cw
Notary, State of WI, Cou oi‘Brujrn :
“
7

My commission expires

Publication Cost $75.44

Tax Amount: $0.00

Payment Cost: $75.44

Order No; 11508588 # of Copies:
Customer Na: 789138 1

PO# FY26 Mig Schedule

THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE!

Please do not use this form for payment remittance.

PO Box 631244 Cincinnati, OH 45263-1244

NQTICE OF MEETINGS
ISLES OF BARTRAM PARK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
CISTRICT
The Board of Supervisors of the
Isles of Bartram Park Community
Development District will hold their
regularly scheduled public meet-
ings for Fiscal Year 2036 at the
offices of Governmental Manage-
ment Services, LLC located at 475
west Town Place, Suite 114, St.
Augustine, Florida 32092 at 10:00
a.m. on the third Friday of each
month listed as follows or other-
wise noted:
November 14, 2025 (2nd Friday)
February 20, 2026
May 15, 2026 {approve budget)
August 21, 2026 (adopt budget)
The meetings are open to the
public and will be conducted in
accordance with the provisions of
Florida law for Community Develop-
ment Districts., The meetings may
be continued to a date, time, and
place to be specified on the record
at the meeting. There may be occa-
sions when staff or other individu-
als may participate by speaker tele-
phone,
Any person requirlng special
accommodations for the meetings
because of a disability or physicai
npairment should ceontact the
District Office at {904) 940-5850 at
Jeast forty-eight (48) hours prior to
the meeting. If you are hearing or
speach impaired, please contact
the Florida Relay Service at 1-800-
©55-B770, for aid in contacting the
District Cffice.
Each person who decides to appeal
any action taken at the meetings Is
advised that person will need a
recerd of the proceedings and that
accordingly, the person may need
to ensure that a verbatim record of
the proceedings is made, including
the testimony and evidence upon
which such appeal is to be based.
James Dliver
District Manager
Pub: 08/28/25 #11598588

VICKY FELTY
Notary Public

State of Wisconsin

Page 1 of 1




.%%y YELLOWSTONE

A% SEETETE
Bill To:
Ceiestina-Isles of Bartram CDD
c/o GMS"NF, LLC Remit To:

475 West Town P, Suite 114

Saint Augustine, FL 32092 Yellowstone Landscape

PO Box 101017

Property Name: Celestina-Isles of Bartram CDD Atlanta, GA 30392-1017
Address: 47.5 West Town Pl Invoice Due Date: October 1, 2025
Suite 114

St. Augustine, FL 32092

Invoice Amount: $3,243.93

$3,243.93

Inveice Total $3,243.93

Should you have any questions or inquiries please call (386) 437-6211.

Yellowstone Landscape | Post Office Box 849 Bunnelf FL 32110 | Tel 386.437.6211 | Fax 386.437.1286



—
Celestina Master HOA, Inc ENV@EC}—_JJI

INVOICE DATE: 9/10/2025

To:  Jim Oliver
Istes of Bartram CDD
475 West Town Place, Suite 114
St Augustine, FL. 32092

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
Reimbursement for Irrigation Billing {10% of 05330) $141.90

(Reference JEA bill dated B/46/2625¢
819125

Any questions please call Vesta WGV Office 904-747-0181

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE $141.90

RECEIVED
By Tara Lee at 3:00 pm, Sep 16, 2025

Make all checks payable to: Colgstina Master Homeowners Association  Please mail or deliver to
Vesta Property Services 200 Business Park Circle Suite 101 St. Augustine FL 32095.




‘ Page 1 of 6
@) CELESTINA MASTER PROPERTY

225 N, Peari St. =5 OWNERS ASSOCIATION INC

Jacksonville, FL

32202-4513 Account #: 1209830485 ﬁmﬁum @}E@
Bill Date: 08/19/25 5767347

Do not pay. AutoPay will process
your payment an 09/10/25,

&) Oniine: jea.com Cycle: 14

Electric ......... rrerreeraren e b $ 5,128.58

WL .eoecrvrecen oo esen s, 1,690.40 e

Sewer e, 645.06 Total Water

- 2]

frrigation 209.13 Mo {jhayg@g 21’690'40

Total Mew Charges ..., Casmnrarnenaes . B IR TEST $7,873.17 sgr;rus

{A complete breakdown of charges can be found on the following pages.) trrigation
$200.13

Previous 8alance ..o e 3 14,524.53

Paymeni(s) Received ............. -14,524.53

Balance Before New Charges 0.00

New Charges .................. bebrrriarer s 7.687317

Lo not pay, AutoPay will process your % 767347

payment on 09/10/35,

J

To keep your HVAC system iunning efficiantly, - IE - i”’i 4’,’1 {.M( -0 T, E i’w\ \ WCJ = 1 52.7? !"}

remember to inspeet your outdoor unit{s). Clean ol % '?7 C‘
any leaves and debris vou find around it. ; - , C e
t ey l Y, "i \ ‘Zf A Ry
59400
Rememper fo follow your watering days, To ' a. ¢ . &!‘ O
confirm your days assigned by SJRWMD and learn S ‘?5 ST iy I

more visit jeacomiwatetingdays.

PLEASE DETACH AND RETURN PAYMENT STUB BELOW WITH TOTAL DUE IN ENVELOPE PROVIDED. Additional information on reverse side, ™%

Emm D Check here for tefephonelmail address correction and ill in on reverse side,

Add to my monthiy bill: § for Neighbor to Neighbor andfor $___ for
the Prospesity Scholarship Fund, twill notify JEA when | no longer wish to contritite.
BCAN Acet#: 1209880485 BiH Date: 08/19/25
TO PAY Do nat pay. AioPay witl process your payment on 0910/25. | TOTALAMOUNT PAID
W ONEINE . )
§7.673.17

CELESTINAMASTER PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION INC
200 BUSINESS PARK CIR STE 101
ST AUGUSTINE FL 32095-8824



9 000§ Jejnday 0EoY % 26L/248L
{Ebgyi=ump | g0 | Bupesy | pasig. . - . d
- odnsuon | mc_vmwx_ﬁ. nww_a ”%.m 5061 (1e°c$ @ ieBy y1-1.) uondwnsuog | 1L
O T | 00's 894 uonoadsu
SoiMleg : abieun Axpuoys iseq:sabieys s
uoneBut pawieay [BIOJBWLIOY e’ 4Q MiBuoR 3i5eg HoIrERd
[BRIBWWOS  GZ/23/80 - §2/51140 WHEPSY  oggsd A LOH] LdY AV IHOTVL €€
ienBay 922 82 LiZ96128
Coadhy L Bupesy |papg]  squny . : - 3
Supeoy | oo | men | W (268 © 1263 p1-1) uopduinsuog | Jayy
ST ST e 00'g a8 uonoadsu; IS1E DIWRIOTY
: afizeun Apguop oiseq:sebieyn 2o
uoReBu| peWiEpsY Enuspisay 00 BF 40 Aiguop oiseg:sebieys lrerag
[enuspIssy SZ/ZLB0 - GLISLIL0 Wepsy g1 gxg 8 Id SITdvLS €€
WD 06014 Jejndey |5z 82 VLLISOY1S
WB8yL=hm 1) b oaq) - | Bupesy: | poma | sequny
= gogdwnsuog - | Bulpeay | WalRg “$heq RN IR
AR R : : R 9u'Ee sfieyn vondwnsuos e
¥ Bleyn Ajuop oiseg:sefieun [e)e
sanieg o FL I abieyd Auuop siseg:safiiey) ejag
. JSIEf [BIRIBLIWIOT  SZ/ZLI80 - §2/5L/L0 - [BIJBWLLGY Ad ¥1SATNED £€
e e 01 9605 VYIS0l | Ebey | w0b | 87 | 08986622
REm mmm.ﬁ_qu Sy ! 9% xe| sidisosy ssolg
£ soss A e e B T 2 e (4t 184 11600°08) 1909 e algexey
] ot adE | Buipeay ¢ | papig | Jequiny . .
~ vopdunswon” - | Bupesy| auny. | seg | et | 9498 (Up Jod G1260°08) 1500 Jon4 Jdwax3 xey
e P e T e R 0E'sEe {unny 2od £990°04) abiey) ABleu
: afiieyn Ajpuop oseg:sabieun ee
o181 00eg 43 AjLguoly Jiseq o e
B0IAES [erBUBY)  GZ/EL/R0 - SZ/9LIG - [elJauIL0] a8 ADVISZETAD £E
@mmwwguﬂ ) by | loles | B [ co090068 £1'152 (6¢'v$ @ 1263 71, <) uopduinsuog 7 Jaly
AZRBRLERIN M agh ) b Buipeey | Juny: - . .
uopdansuoy | Bupesy | e SE°ES {18'¢$ © 1By y1-1) vondwnsuoy | Jel|
Ty R I R 009 884 uonosdsuy)
ERIIVETS - B Fs aiseg:sabieys |
uoyeBLL| peLisey feplalon ogi0e adueyD Ajuop disegisabieys Jlejag
8021 1912518 [eI2ISLINOY  GZ/Z1/80 - SZISLILO Wepey  errzipd LOYI 1V Ad VASTTIO 62
e, SS21ppYy Sil | rAdr] Xe| s5[eS Se}g epuoly
85 m&wmﬂw Lﬂmﬂ_m“mMMo 896z xe| sidienzy ss0I9
00'68 afiseyg [ang
9l L62 1d 031 MzL {shun gg
orey 24865 1d Q3T Mo {shin +2-sabieyd neeg
Wb Bsly pURIBRAS  SZ/BLIB0 - §2/9L/40 B easy AL LOY! LdV Ad VLST130 62
9leY (i pousd a31Mag ulod eoes sabieyn adA] aoiuag $S9.pPY 921AI8G

g o ¢ abey



S8108860T L # JUNOIOY

9 jo ¢ abed

ONI NOLLVIDOSSY SHINMO
ALMIdOMD ¥ILSYIN YNILST1ED &

woozel jaunuQO

™20 Jenbay 0 8z 0.e8S8L
(Ederi=umi)} sa | pupeay |poig| " sequny’
2 Vepdwnsue). | Bupeay I wang ] skeg
R S T e [ 009 224 Uonoadsy|
SRS - abisyn Apuon Dises:ssbieyn a8
uoebui| pauieay [BIOIULIDT) 051€ D AltpUOp Iseg 43 Ieea
[BIIBWIWOY  GZ/Z21/80 - §2/51120 weRsy  asizg it 1087 LAV IS VINY £2
€L et sidisoay ssaln)
HAOISSGE | by 1 oevol | g | ovelzeng 8602 (uat Jod 11,500°'08) 1500 e siqexel
S adfr | Bupeey | pepg | requiny . - d
uoptunsuog | Bupeey | e | Soa | e 58y} (Ui Jod G12£0°0$) 150D [on4 ¥ lax3 xe)
T E R e R S 00'992 {uany Jed 2990°08) abiey) Abisuz
. afireyn Aguop oiseg:sabieyn 1219
oupsig 00ee LD AfLQLON JIseq YD l1e18q
809G [EISURY)  GZ/EL/B0 - SZ/9LIL0 - [BIIBLALDD LOS4 LV 1D YNYRIO 91
xe; sydieoay ssoig
HI¥A SELS mnbey | 7695 | 82 20468192 (U J2d 11500°08) 1500 80 elqEXat
e adAy | Bupesy | powg | requiny :
" uopdunsuon’ |- Gupesy | weung | sheg L aep (uan Jad G121 £0°08) 109 Jend 1dwexs xeL
REEEG TN Bt Rl B eORARY Hrne O Soit ARR VA A {umy Jod 2990703} abieyn ABlaugy
oree afieyn Ayjuoy sseg:sabiey) reag
0BG [eJsUaDy GZ/EL/B0 - GE9LILD QABY s bwrad ZIVD LdVY A VLSTNZID €21
: m._é_og& ; denbey | ggse | Ze [ 1599661 wy (£¢'7$ @ 126% 7). <) uondwinsuog 7 Jag
ROYL=8M 11" aafy | Bupesy |pepg| " jequoy. - . . .
wopdumsuog | Gupesy. | waums. | SA6a | mRn Se'es {18°¢$ © 1264 v)-1) uopduinsuog | Jel]
S e T e e R 009 aa4 yonoadsy|
SIS - ableyn Auiuopy siseq:safisyy fleje
uoneBiu| pavieay oIRLWOT 0s1e U0 ALauop siseg Uo leyeg
[eusuAlD]  G7/81/80 - SZ/ALIO wepsy  iiest i LOMI LW AV ITUVOVT 121
Woo | Jenbay 5791 8 Logt 1998
(EBEVL=uno)) | - ogfy 1 Gupeoy | pong| . sequrn .
. uefdwnsuogy - | Buipeey L waing- | sheg |
R T T R T 009 234 uogoadsy;
8JAlSG : abiieun Auuop oiseg:sobieys [e19
uonebLL| paugepey eolowwoy 09+ U0 Alyuop oiseg:sebieys 1e1ag
[BloLWWOY  GZ/ZE/80 - SZ/SLIL0 wepsy  gyisd A LOST LW AM VILLNY 011
ajey |ig  pouad aomeg uiod e0IAIBg | sebleyn) adAl aolalag SERIPPY 80IMBg
vl 8Pk
Se/6L/e0 =1.eg g

0009-589 {+08) ‘auoyy




19118

M
20928
aupoay

PLEPS
SSa.ppy S L

104 safileyn
M3} [BIO]

oo lenbay 0 82

~vondwnsuogy - | Buipeayy 1~ Jwenng | sfieq

{leB gy =yno 1) adhp .._..mu.mm.mmm” ol |

adinleg 1BIEM,
JSIEA BI0IBWIIOD  SZ/ZLIB0 - SZISLILD - [eraILOD
IE. 9 JET 14 GeRELIFL
o edAL  pamg | .
- voydwnasuoy . 1 Bupeay |.sfeq

S0MIDG [BIOUST SZ/E /80 - STIOLILO

o0&
~ [BRIBUIIOT

97l

AL
L N S

(248
190
£C°0
f#Al)
0¥ 0
00ee

abieyn Ao siseq:safileys) peisg
1S ONYT1ad 68
XB| $3|ES 9)BIS BpLO)
¥E} S1A1808Y $5019
{un Jad 1L500708) 180D [an B|qexe]
{uan Jod 51 260°0%) 1500 fon 1dwsx3 xeL
(U 18d 2000°08) abieyg ABroug
afilleun Ayluopy oseg:sebleun 1ele(

L8 ONV130 59

Jejnbay ¥9 8z

9 J0 g sbey

WO000% | JEnbey | g | s S6°15 (6278 © 2% 71 <) vodwnsuog z a1
iBgys =m0 1) 1 edfy | Bupesy . f pajig oL . GEES (19'cs @ 1eby #1-}) Londwnsuosy | sarp
.- uogduinsien. - | Bupesy | jusung - | sdeg - -
R MTRRERE SRR R 00°s 894 uanoadsul
EIIVELS . .
UoeBLL| poLLIBRaY] poeuuog OV afirey Auuoly oiseq:sebiey?) ejeq
[BIBIWOY  SZ/ZLI80 - SZ/SLILD Wiepsy Ryl P 1087 LdY AY SIT0S 1§
aley iId  poudd sanIag Wiod 8olAleq safiteyn adA} aonieg SSSIPPY 90IAJ8g



g8t Xe] s9)2g 2188 BpuolY

821 xg| 5)dIeoey S50l
HOLIGT ] denbey eS| ez [oeBessez | o (Ut J2d 11500°08) 1800 [on4 sigexe]
il addy |- Blapesy | pelig | dequiny : :
. uopdwnsuoy - |- Buipesy: |- jusuny. | skeq e (4t s 51.50/08) 1900 o 1o xeL
T L L T $1°0; (uax 154 £9g070%) afireyn ABraug
’ Bieyn Ajgiuoy; sises:sefieyn pela
- 00'e7 sbieys Alyuoy; aiseg Y0 feled
BIMeg [B1aUSD  GT/EL/B0 - GEZ/9LI0 - | uopebiy LOM) LdW AM THTTVD 95
H oD onao \ 0%y | gess | e | poneese 15228 (26°%$ ® By p1 <) vonduinsuog z sa1
WEOBYL=UM L adfy | Gupeey | popg | lequin i - ‘o .
- vondwrsuoy - |- Bupeay- _”__Ew_%%_ “Sheq| e SEES (1868 © 1oy pi-)) uojdunsuog | Jall
S L T R 009 394 uonoadsuy
WINBG ; abireyq Ayuow asegisabireyn (2o
uoneBiL| pausepsy poeuwoy 08 4O Ayiucpy aiseg Uo 1eeq
eplewu]  GZ/ZL80 - SZ/SLIL0 wiefosy e LOY 1dV AM TAITIVO v
VO 0003€E Jeingay 8y 8z 10253400}
198y L=Um ) 1 ot | Bupesy | pama | - sequny - .
2V adAy G | Bupesy. - pemg | N d
wodunsucy - | Bupeoy | weumy | Shed | P (1eB 69°¢$ @ 126 £ <) vondumsuoy g Js))
abieyn Alguonw siseg:sabeyn 1218
30108 Jeplawwon _ BUJ AJYRUO Jiseg 4J i1218q
uonebi] [essIwoy  SZIZLIR0 - SZISLIL0 - | uonesBuy| AM YHYONYIA GE
T¥9 00071 ejpbay oLLE e y615264
(EO8Y2=um 1) | = adty | Bupeey | papg |1 soquiny-
- doptwnsuogy | Bulpeey | uenng T sheg | epep
e L T e T 789 afieyn obesn lomeg
. aBieyn Aypucy oiseg:sableyn 1813
eomiag — ¥2'948 49 Algluciy aiseg uo llejsg
Jomag [BRIBWILIOD  §Z/81/80 - STISLILD - [BIUBWIWOY - ‘gerapas g AM VAYONYIN SE
D 0007+ FETTEN] OLEE Ve YhELGZ8L
1eBgrr=umoi)l oa6 | supesy | peng | sequny
- uondiunsuoy |- Sugpeay” | waangy | skeg S uelep
T AN R I AN Sl Rt mm_m_._O:o_unEmm:oohm_m__S
Au :sah 1215
sanag , TMASISIEM abuey) Ayuop aiseg:sabiey) Jigiag
i J9EMA [RIIBWIWOYD  57/81/20 - G2/5110 - [e0seliweg it AM VHYONYIN S
0SS o WA . e .
1ainag SR mmeuu% st MM 09°EF TR 80°) 2 066822 LGS ey sideosy ss0i9
y 10.f soble B
o N HIVDH 08761 am“ Mm__ | m”we«__ __um_m a“m%ﬁ_ 75766 (uMvt Jod 11500°08) 1500 en ajaexel
o S adhy |- Bupeay | peyg |- sequiny . "
5500276  vopdumsiog | Gupesy’ | waung | sea | e 89'c2s {umr Jad §1.1£0°08) 1500 Jon3 Jdweng xeL
ompsa)y IR SRR R e R e 786621 {uany 2ad fgg0°04) eBleyn ABiaus
A wseg:sab. 1218
599 sfiieyd Auiuon wseg:sebieys Baq
aoines {BIBURG  GZiELA80 - GZ/9LL0 * [eloJawwog) AR THYONYIN GE
ai1ey [ig polad auAles W0 80in3g mmgmcu mam._u EilE sl S83lppy |2idBg

9 jo g sbeyd



Customer - 1sles at Bartram Park Community
“ .7 | Development District
Acct# .. . |522
Date - . . {09/18/2025
5k Achaisors Customer - -
Service | Kristina Rudez
Page - 7| 10of1
~-.. Payment Information
invoice Summary. | $ 12,738.00
istes at Bartram Park Community Development District Payment Amount -~
c/o Governmental Management Services Payment for: Invoice#29495
475 West Town Place, STE #114 100125240
St. Augustine, FL 32092
Customer: Isies at Bartram Park Community Development District
Invoice Effective Transaction R " “Description Amount
Policy #100125240 10/01/2025-10/01/2026
Florida Insurance Alliance
29495! 10/01/2025 | Renew policy
Package - Renew policy 12,738.00
Due Date: 9/18/2025
Please Remit Payment To: Total
Egis insurance and Risk Advisors
P.O. Box 748555 $ 12,738.00
FOR PAYMENTS SENT OVERNIGHT: Bank of America Lockbax Services, Lockbox 748555, 6000 Feldwood Rd. College Park, GA 30349
. 1 Services LLC
Remit Payment To: Egis Insurance Advisors {321)233-9939 Date .
P.O. Box 748555
Atlanta, GA 30374-8555 accounting@egisadvisors.cam 09/18/2025

RECEIVED
By Tara Lee at 2:07 pm, Sep 19, 2025



AP300R
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2025 -

YEAR- TO- DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAI D/ COVPUTER CHECK REG STER
09/ 30/ 2025 *** | SLES OF BARTRAM CAPI TAL RSRVE
BANK B | SLES OF BARTRAM

CHECK VEND# ..... INVOCE. . ... ... EXPENSED TO. . . VENDCR NAME STATUS
DATE DATE INVOCE YRMO DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS
7/ 16/ 25 00023  6/27/25 2029068 202506 300-58400- 60000 *
DEP 2 NEW FLOAT FOUNTAI NS
| NNO\/ATI VE F(JJNTAI N SER\/I CES I NC
7/ 24/ 25 00022 7/ 14/ 25 955707 202507 300 58400 61000 *
BORE PROJECT- | RRI GATI ON
YELLO/\STO\IE LANDSCAPE
8/ 28/ 25 00038 8/ 26/ 25 082625 1 202508 300 58400 61000 *

EW CONTROL PANEL/ CONDUI T
CARLTG\I J MJRPHY

8/ 26/ 25 082625 2 202508 300 58400 61000 *
GROUND BOX/ NEW CTRL PANEL
CARLTCN J MJRPHY

'8/28/25 00038

9/09/25 00023

9/ 03/ 25 2029563 202509 300 58400 60000 *
FNL PMI- POND FOUNT | NSTAL
| NNO\/ATI VE F(JJNTAI N SER\/I CES I NC
9/ 09/ 25 00023 9/ 04/ 25 2029565 202509 300 58400 60000 *
DEP- NEW FOUNTAI N #
I NNOVATI VE FQUNTAI N SERVI CES | NC
TOTAL FOR BANK B
TOTAL FOR REG STER

| BTR | SLES OF BRTRM TLEE

RUN 11/ 05/ 25 PAGE 1
ANMDUNT ... CHECK. .. ..
AMDUNT " #
11, 474. 00
11, 474.00 000003
~ 6,500.00
6, 500. 00 000004
311462
3,114. 62 000005
- 4,337.12
4,337.12 000006
 14,728.00
14, 718.00 000007
6,380
6, 358. 00 000008
46,501. 74
46,501. 74



INVOICE

Innovative Fountain Services, Inc admin@innovativefountainservices.c
11637 Golumbia Park Dr E om
Ste 4 +1{804) 551-1017

Jaciksonvills, FL 32258-4453

Celestina:Celestina Waterfall
Bifl to

Cetestina

Isles of Bartram Park CDD
475 West Town Place Ste 114
Saint Augustine, FL_ 32092

Invoice details P.O. Number: Deposit Invoice Estimate 4236
Invoice no.: 2029068

Terms: Net 30

invoice date: 06/27/2025

Due date: 07/27/2025

#  Product or service Description Qty Amount

1. Founiain Service Deposit invoice for Estimate 4236- H $11,474.90

Innovative Fountain Services propose to furnish alt
materials, labor, and tocls to insta#t two new 3HP
floating fountains. Approximate spray dimensions
of display are 19' high and 34' wide and display
will be similar to existing fountain display.

Fountains comes with 6 LED light set with one
having 15' and one having 200' of cable.

Fountain comes with a five year manufacturer's
warranty and two year warranty on the lights.

Landscapers are to dig a trench from the fountain
controller to the edge of the pond for us to install
the conduit for the fountain on Amaturra road.

2. Terms Terms of sale are 50% deposit required upon 1 $0.00
placement of order with remaining balance due net
30.

Total $1 1 ,474.00



"YELLOWSTONE

955707 7114/2025

Celestina-isies of Bartram CDD Net 30

c/lo GMS-NF, LLC _ Remit To:

475 West Town PI, Suite 114 Y—eIE stone Landscape

Saint Augustine, FL 32092 ow

g PO Box 101017
Property Name: Celestina-Isles of Bartram CDD Atianta, GA 30392-1017
Address: 475 West Town P Invoice Due Date: August 13, 2025
Suite 114

St. Augustine, FL 32092
Invoice Amount: $6,500.00

Bore Project along Celestina Pwky

Irrigation $6,500.00

RECEIVED
By Tara Lee at 3:47 pm, Jul 23, 2025

Invoice Total $6,500.00

Should you have any questions or inquiries please call (386) 437-6211.

Yellowstone Landscape | Post Office Box 849 | Bunnell FL 32110 | Tel 386.437.6211 | Fax 386.437.1286



High Tide Electric

8758 Redbird Creek Dr 8
Jacksonville, FL 32221 US
+19043432153

cariton. hightideelectric@gmail.com

INVOICE

SlILL TO

Isles of Bartram Park CDD

200 Business Park Circle, Suite 101
St. Augustine, FL 32085

DATE SERVICE
08/22/2025 Labor
Sales

DESCRIPTION

Trenched and ran conduit for a 30amp
240volt dedicated circuit from new
electrical service along Celesta Pkwy.
to fountain control panel. Set post for
new control panel and terminated new
circuitin panel.

BALANCE DUE

RECEIVED

By Tara Lee at 11:06 am, Aug 27, 2025

Page 1ol 1

(L]

H}

HIGH TIDE
ELECTRIC
INVOICE 082625-1
DATE 08/26/2025
TERMS Net 30
DUE DATE 09/25/2025
QTy RATE AMOUNT
1 2,500.00 2,500.00
1 614.62 614.62
$3,114.62



High Tide Electric

9758 Redbird Creek Dr $
Jacksonville, Fi. 32221 US
+19043432183

carltan. hightideelectric@gmail.com

INVOICE

BILL VO

Isles of Bartram Park CDD

200 Business Park Circle, Suite 101
St. Augustine, FE 32095

DATE SERVICE
08/22/2025 Labor
Material

INVOICE
DATE
TERMS
DUE DATE

DESCRIPTION Qry

—

Trenched and ran conduit for a 30amp
240volt dedicated circuit from existing
electrical panel (exit side) to fountain
control panel. Set a ground box on
both sides of the street at North Gate.
Repaired 2" conduit on entrance side
so that circuit coutd be pulted under
road. Set post for new control panel
and terminated new circuit in fountain
controi panel.

iy

BALANCE DUE

RECEIVED

By Tara Lee at 11:12 am, Aug 27, 2025

5}

Page Tof 1

o
£

HiE

HIGH TIDE
ELECTRIC
082625-2
08/28/2025
Net 30
09/25/2025
RATE AMOUNT
3,300.00 3,300.00
1,037.12 1.037.12
$4,337.12



#

1.

2,

INVOIGE

Innovative Fountain Services, Inc
11637 Columbia Park Or E

Ste 4

Jacksonville, FL 32258-4493

Celestina:Celestina Waterfall
Bill to

Celestina

Isies of Bartram Park CDD

475 West Town Place Ste 114
Saint Augustine, FL. 32092

Invoice details

tnvoice no.: 2029563
Terms: Net 30

invoice date: 09/03/2025
Due date: 10/03/2025

Product or service

Fountain Service

Fountain Service

admin@innovativefountainservices.c

om

+1{904) 551-1017

P.O. Number: Finat Invoice Estimate 4236

Description Qty Amount

Final Invoice for Estimate 4236- 1 $11,474.00

Innavative Fountain Services propose to furnish all
materials, labor, and tools to install two new 3HP
floating fountains, Approximate spray dimensions
of display are 19' high and 34' wide and dispiay
will be similar to existing fountain display.

Fountains comes with 6 LED light set with one
having 15' and one having 200' of cable.

Fountain comes with a five year manufacturer's
warranty and two year warranty on the ights.

Landscapers are to dig a trench from ihe fountain
controller to the edge of the pond for us 1o install
the conduit for the fountain on Amaturra road.

Additional costs for extending cables and conduit 1 $3,244.00
to accommodate the fountain controller’s current
location

Total $1 4,71 8.00

RECEIVED

By Tara Lee at 3:46 pm, Sep 04, 2025




#

1,

INVOIGE

Innovative Fountain Services, Inc admin@innovativefountainservices.c
11637 Coimbia Parc Dr E om
Ste 4 +1 {904) 551-1017

Jacksonvilie, FL 32258-4493

Celestina:Celestinag Waiterfall
Bill to

Celestina

Isles of Bartram Park CDD
475 West Town Place Ste 114
Saint Augustine, FL 32092

invoice details

Invoice no.: 2029565
Terms: Net 30

Invoice date: 09/04/2025
Due date: 10/04/2025

Product or service

Fountain Service

P.O. Number: New Fountain #7

Description

Deposit invoice for Estimate 4414 Innovative
Fountain Services propose to furnish all materials,
labor, and tools to install one new 3HP floating
fountain with 200" of pump cable. Approximate
spray dimensions of display are 18' high and 34'
wide but customer may select from five display
patterns. New control panel with ail components
including timer 1o be installed on bank of pond.
Includes LED 6 white light set with 200" light cable.
Install conduit from fountain controller to pend to
house the cables

FOUNTAIN PACKAGE CARRIES A 5-YEAR
MANUFACTURER WARRANTY/LED LIGHTS 2-
YEARS

Customer Is 1o have a lcensed electrician to mount
contrafier, supply power and run conduit from
fountain controller 5' into the pond. Fountain
contralier must be within 30' of pond otherwise
additional costs will be incurred.

Terms of sale are 50% deposit required upon
placement of order with remaining balance due net
30.

Qty

Amount

$6,358.00




[RECEIVED

Total $6,358.00
By Tara Lee at 3:46 pm, Sep 04, 2025}




	11.14.25 Agenda
	III. Approval of Minutes of the August 8, 2025 Meeting
	IV.	A. Consideration of Proposals for Capital Reserve Report - Community Advisors Proposal
	IV.	B. Consideration of Proposals for Capital Reserve Report - Custome Reserves
	IV. C. Consideration of Proposals for Capital Reserve Report - Reserve Advisors
	V. A. Grau and Associates Engagement Letter
	B. 	Policies for Use of Lakes and Other Stormwater Management Facilities
	VI. A. 	Innovative Fountain Services for Pond Fountain Services
	B.	Innovative Fountain Services for Installation of Strainer
	C.	Innovative Fountain for Floating Fountain Maintenance
	D. 	Yellowstone Landscape for Bore Project along Sitara Lane
	VII.	Discussion of Fountain Installation at Pond 7
	VIII. Ratification of Proposal from First Choice Aquatics for Treatment of Pond 7 
	IX.	Consideration of Resolution 2026-01, Amending the General Fund & Capital Reserve Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 2025 
	XI. C. 1. Review of Fiscal Year 2025 Goals and Objectives
	XIV. A.	Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2025 and Statement of Revenues & 
	XIV. B. Assessment Receipt Schedule
	XIV. C.	Approval of Check Register



